
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, September 20, 2021 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee ng to Order

II. Execu ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu ve Session to discuss the following ma er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding ballot nomina ons associated with elec ons to the Rockwall Central
Appraisal District (CAD) Board of Directors pursuant to Section 551.074 (personnel matters)

2. Discussion regarding possible lease of real property in the vicinity of Rockwall Technology Park
pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

3. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

III. Adjourn Execu ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca on and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Trace Johannesen

VI. Proclama ons / Awards / Recogni ons

1. "Happy 25th Anniversary, Rockwall School of Music!" Day
VII. Open Forum

This is a me for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other ci zens'

me. If you have a topic that warrants longer me, please contact the City Secretary at kcole@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" por on of the mee ng. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient me for discussion and will permit proper no ce to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permi ed to respond to your comments during the mee ng since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Mee ngs Act requires that topics of
discussion/delibera on be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council mee ng). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

VIII. Take any Ac on as a Result of Execu ve Session

IX. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are rou ne/administra ve in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
mee ng, and/or they do not warrant Council delibera on. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the September 7, 2021 regular city council mee ng, and
take any action necessary.

2. Consider authorizing a repair to Ladder Truck 2 in the amount not to exceed $45,000 to Metro Fire
Apparatus Specialists to be funded out of the General Fund, Fire Opera ons Vehicle Repair
Budget, and take any action necessary.

3. Consider approval of a lease agreement with JBC Land and Ca le Company, LLC for office space in
the Rockwall Technology Park, authorizing the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of
the City of Rockwall, and take any action necessary.

1



4. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an annual interlocal agreement with Rockwall
County related to fire protection services, and take any action necessary. 

5. Consider awarding a bid to Grass Kisser and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for
Neighborhood Improvement Services forced mowing in the amount of $33,000 to be funded out
of the General Fund NIS Code Enforcement Budget, and take any action necessary.

6. Consider awarding bids to Caldwell Country Chevrolet, Rockdale Country Ford and Pursuit Safety,
authorizing the City Manager to execute Purchase Orders for six new Police Pursuit SUV's and
a ermarket vehicle equipment in the amount of $382,890 to be funded out of the General Fund
Police Patrol Budget and take any action necessary.

X. Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representa ve to discuss and answer any
questions regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

2. Appointment with Heath resident, Paul Field to hear comments pertaining to a possible skate
park, and take any action necessary.

XI. Public Hearing Items

If you would like to speak regarding an item listed below, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City Council"
form to the City Secretary either before the mee ng or as you approach the podium. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem
will call upon you to come forth at the proper time. Please limit your comments to no more than three minutes.

1. Z2021-032 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Sam Moore of Main & Main
on behalf of Jason Claunch of 7.1 Ridge LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with a Drive-Through or Drive-In for the
purpose of construc ng a restaurant ( i.e. Dutch Bros. Coffee) on a 0.57-acre por on of a larger
8.583-acre parcel of land iden fied as Lot 1, Block A, Sky Ridge Addi on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within Scenic Overlay (SOV) District,
generally located southeast of the intersec on of Ridge Road [FM-740] and W. Yellow Jacket Lane,
and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

2. Z2021-033 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB
Companies on behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of an
ordinance for a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No.
01-26] to allow a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land
uses) on a 12.1148-acre tract of land iden fied as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1,
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General
Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally located in
between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any
action necessary (1st Reading).

3. Z2021-034 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher of
Masterplan on behalf of Saro Partners, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change
from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District for a 5.07-acre tract of land
iden fied as Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV)
District, located at the southeast corner of the intersec on of John King Boulevard and Airport
Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

4. Z2021-035 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian
Berry of BNSBS, L. P. on behalf of Bradley Gideon for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning
Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-acre
iden fied as Tract 1-04 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205
BY-OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersec on of John King Boulevard and
Quail Run Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

2



5. Z2021-037 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by James Best for the approval
of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building on a 2.60-acre parcel of
land iden fied as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estate Addi on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane, and take any ac on
necessary (1st Reading).

6. A2021-005 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins on behalf of
Be y Thompson for the approval of an ordinance for the annexa on of 6.70-acre tract of land
iden fied as Tract 1-1 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, Texas,
situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdic on (ETJ), con guous to the exis ng
corporate limits of the City of Rockwall, addressed as 911 E. FM-552, and take any ac on
necessary (1st Reading).

7. Z2021-036 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Adam Shiffer of the
Skorburg Company on behalf of Gordon C. Fogg for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning
Change to amend Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) [Ordinance No. 21-36] to incorporate a
20.00-acre tract of land iden fied as Tracts 22-04 & 22-05 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract
No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 505
Clem Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

XII. Ac on Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to wait un l that par cular agenda item is up
for discussion, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call you forth to the podium to hear your comments (please limit
to 3 minutes or less). This allows for all public comments to be grouped with each specific agenda item for the Council
to consider, and they are then easily referenced in meeting recordings.

1. Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora on (REDC) budget
for fiscal year 2022 and amended budget for fiscal year 2021 and take any action necessary.

2. Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Technology Park Associa on budget for fiscal year
2022 and amended budget for fiscal year 2021, and take any action necessary

3. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending the budget for fiscal year 2021, and take
any action necessary.

4. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance adop ng the proposed budget for fiscal year 2022,
and take any action necessary.

5. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance levying ad valorem taxes for the tax year 2021, and
take any action necessary.

6. Discuss and consider approval of a resolu on providing for the submission of names to the
Rockwall Central Appraisal District (CAD) for nomina ons to the Board of Directors, and take any
action necessary.

XIII. Execu ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu ve Session to discuss the following ma er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding ballot nomina ons associated with elec ons to the Rockwall Central
Appraisal District (CAD) Board of Directors pursuant to Section 551.074 (personnel matters)

2. Discussion regarding possible lease of real property in the vicinity of Rockwall Technology Park
pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

3. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

XIV. Reconvene Public Mee ng & Take Any Ac on as Result of Execu ve Session

XV. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda ons or interpre ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

3



The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu ve session at any me to discuss any of the ma ers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta on with A orney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Cole, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby cer fy that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place readily
accessible to the general public at all mes, on the 17th day of September, 2021 and remained so posted for at least 72 con nuous
hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Cole, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

Date Removed

4



 
 

 

 

 

jhereas, in the summer of 1996, the Rockwall School of Music opened its doors and began 

providing lessons for an array of music and instruments, which today includes piano, guitar, drums, violin, 
viola, cello, bass, ukulele, voice and musical theater; and 

 

jhereas, prior to Russ and Karen Porter acquiring the school of music in 2004, Mr. Porter 

served as Worship Pastor/Music Director at various churches throughout his career, always hoping to be 
able to provide a safe place for members of the community to come take music lessons; and 

 

jhereas, after purchasing the school from the previous owner in 2004, the Porters’ dream of 

providing music lessons to the community was realized, and they began enjoying seeing young children, 
teens, adults and seniors pursue their musical passion while finding new ways to bring meaning and 
purpose to their lives through music; and  

 

jhereas, the Rockwall School of Music has over 40 university trained instructors, teaching 

over 650 lessons weekly and operating six days a week and in the evenings to help accommodate 
students’ busy schedules; and 

 

jhereas, with year-round music lessons being taught in a distraction-free, safe environment 

and multiple recitals and other performance opportunities being held annually, the Rockwall School of 
Music has trained literally thousands of individuals to become competent musicians. 

jhereas, students of the Rockwall School of Music find that their training has prepared some 

for music degrees, some to become professional music instructors, many to become performers and 
others who have found music to be an outlet for their musical creativity. 

 

aow? gherefore, I, Kevin Fowler, Mayor of the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby proclaim 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 as  

“Happy 25th Anniversary, Rockwall School of Music!” Day 
in the City of Rockwall and encourage all citizens to help celebrate Russ and Karen Porter and their staff 
for many years of providing the gift of music to members of our Rockwall community. 
 

 \n jitness jhereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal on this 20th day of September 2021. 

   

        

 
Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

eÉv~ãtÄÄ? gxåtá 
Proclamation 

5



MINUTES  
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Tuesday, September 07, 2021 - 5:00 PM  
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087  

      
I.  

 
CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER  
 
Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Kevin Fowler, Mayor Pro 
Tem John Hohenshelt and Council Members Clarence Jorif, Dana Macalik, Trace Johannesen, Bennie 
Daniels and Anna Campbell.  Also present were City Manager Mary Smith and Assistant City Manager 
Joey Boyd. City legal counsel, Patrick Lindner attended the meeting in place of City Attorney, Frank 
Garza. Mayor Fowler read the below listed discussion items into the record before recessing meeting 
to go into Executive Session at 5:01 p.m.    

II.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS AUTHORIZED 
BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding the RCH Water Supply and Blackland Water Supply Corporation (WSC) contracts, 

pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).   
2.  Discussion regarding countywide ambulance services contract, pursuant to §551.071 (Consultation with 

Attorney). 

III.  
 
ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Council adjourned from Executive Session at 5:55 p.m. 

IV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)  
 
Mayor Fowler reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m. with all seven council members present.    

V.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MAYOR KEVIN FOWLER 
 
Mayor Fowler delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

      
VI.  

 
PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS  

 1.  Presentation of Citizen Life Saving Awards to:  Rockwall Police Department 
Officer Mitchell Attaway - Life Saving Award 
Officer Simon Comerford - Life Saving Award 
Officer Curtis Sasson - Life Saving Award 
Sergeant Mike Watson - Life Saving Award 
Presentation of Police Commendation Award to:  Rockwall Police Department 
Officer Aaron Raymond 
 
Police Chief Max Geron came forth with Mayor Fowler to present the above named awards to 
Rockwall police officers this evening for helping save the life of a woman who was recently 
attempting suicide at an IH-30 overpass bridge.  

2.  Constitution Week 
 

6



Mayor Fowler called for Marilyn King and a fellow member of the Daughters of the American 
Revolution (DAR). He then read and presented them with this proclamation.  Each of the ladies 
briefly spoke about the DAR organization and about the U.S. Constitution, encouraging everyone 
to recognize Constitution Week and be sure to read the Declaration of Independence and the U.S. 
Constitution this month. They also recognized three veterans on the City Council – Councilmember 
Johannesen (U.S. Marines); Councilmember Jorif (U.S. Army); and Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt 
(U.S. Army) – recognizing and thanking them for their service to our country.  

3.  Hispanic Heritage Month 
 
Mayor Fowler called forth Alma Ramirez, president of the Rockwall LULAC organization. He then 
read and presented her and her comrades with this proclamation. A member of the Rockwall 
Hispanic Republicans Club also briefly spoke, thanking various individuals for their contributions 
to the local community and thanking the City Council for presenting this proclamation this 
evening. 
 

VII.  
 
OPEN FORUM     

 
Mayor Fowler explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come forth 
and speak at this time. 
 
Stan Jeffus 
2606 Cypress Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75087 
 
Mr. Jeffus came forth and reminded Council that he was here at a city council meeting a couple of 
months back to share concerns about drainage-related issues that he and his neighbors have been 
experiencing in the Ridgecrest subdivision where they live. Mr. Jeffus went on to provide a lengthy 
presentation and speak in great detail about drainage-related concerns and the developer of his 
neighborhood. 
 
David Wrightson 
5803 Yacht Club Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
 
Mr. Wrightston came forth and indicated that he lives in the Chandler’s Landing subdivision. He has 
great concerns about Suntex Marina’s proposal to reconstruct some of the boat docks and drastically 
change the view that residents of Chandler’s Landing have enjoyed for years at the Yacht Club. He 
stressed that the view of the lake is very important, and he implored the City Council to do whatever 
it can possibly do to stop the proposed changes to the docks. 
 
Christopher Curry 
314 Prairie View Road 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Curry came forth and shared that he too has concerns about drainage problems within the 
Ridgecrest subdivision, as previously expressed by Mr. Jeffus.  He shared that when he lived in the 
Stonecreek subdivision (also developed by “Skorburg”), there were also very similar drainage-related 
problems. He expressed extreme dissatisfaction with the Skorburg developer and his lack of attention 
to drainage within the subdivisions he builds. 

7



 
Tiki Sherman 
702 Laurence Drive 
Heath, TX 75032 
 
Mrs. Sherman came forth and shared that she came to the Rockwall area to live about twenty years 
ago; however, she does not live within the Chandler’s Landing subdivision – yet.  She did, however, 
move to this area because of the sailing-related opportunities on Lake Ray Hubbard. She went on to 
explain that she and her husband are avid sailors and lovers of the sailing sport and sailing-related 
competitions. She and her husband and family recently chose to celebrate an important birthday at 
Chandler’s Landing so that they could enjoy the view of both the sailboats and the lake, which are 
both very important to them. 
 
Chip Imrie 
323 Harbor Landing Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
 
Mr. Imrie came forth and shared that he has lived in the Chandler’s Landing subdivision for the last 
twenty-three years. He pointed out that Suntex has not contacted the Chandler’s Landing 
Homeowner’s Association or any of the residents within the neighborhood in an attempt to talk thru 
what they are proposing to do with reconstruction of the boat docks. Suntex is not a ‘good neighbor,’ 
they are trying to “cram this down our throats” (the boat dock changes), and he encouraged the City 
Council to protect the interests of the residents of Chandler’s Landing and their $4 million dollar 
investment with the best view on any lake in the DFW area. 
 
Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone Drive 
Rockwall, TX  
 
Mr. Wacker came forth and briefly spoke about drainage, the Skorburg developer and retention and 
detention ponds. He explained that there have been issues with these types of ponds within the 
Stonecreek subdivision too. His subdivision’s detention pond (in Stonecreek) stays wet, has a very 
slight slope, and he wonders if it was poorly designed. He wonders if there is more the city can do 
and perhaps not put the entire burden on a subdivision’s HOA ‘after the fact.’ 
 
Roy Kuipers 
333 Yacht Club Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
 
Mr. Kuipers came forth and shared that he is a long-term resident of Chandler’s Landing (35 years). 
He shared that he and his neighbors are strongly opposed to Suntex Marina’s proposed changes to 
the existing boat docks at Chandler’s. He especially has concerns about how the existing boat docks 
will negatively impact the current views that residents and Yacht Club visitors enjoy. He strongly 
urged the City Council to help preserve the Chandler’s Landing community and the current tranquility, 
view and quality of life that residents enjoy. 
 
Vicky Chesna 
5727 Cross 
Rockwall, TX (Chandler’s Landing) 

8



 
She explained she has lived in Chandler’s Landing for the past 30 years but has lived in Rockwall since 
1972. She is a realtor, and the lake is so important to our community. She has heard talk that some 
of the sailboats currently docked at Chandler’s might move to Rowlett. She encouraged the Council 
to help keep the sailboats locally here in Rockwall and not give them to Rowlett. 
 
Patrick Woods 
2601 Cypress Drive 
Rockwall, TX 75087 
(Ridgecrest Subdivision resident) 
 
Mr. Woods came forth and spoke, indicating that something is wrong and ‘out-of-the-ordinary’ when 
it comes to the drainage related concerns in his neighborhood.  He suggested that perhaps some of 
the residents might meet with city representatives regarding these concerns that have been 
expressed by residents living within his neighborhood. 
 
Christy Hester 
405 Fox Hollow Drive 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mrs. Hester came forth and indicated that she lives in the Ridgecrest subdivision, and she is an 
attorney by profession. She indicated that even though the plans were signed off on, something is 
not right. There are currently 42 houses in the subdivision with a handful more being built.  It would 
cost over $1,000 per household if a special assessment were to be implemented to help fix the 
drainage problems within the Ridgecrest subdivision.  She encouraged the city to set a private 
meeting with homeowners to try and help them get their concerns addressed related to the Skorburg 
developer and drainage related concerns. 
 
Philomena Buxton 
5502 Yacht Club 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
 
Ms. Buxton shared that she lives with her parents in Chandler’s after getting laid off from her job in 
Houston due to COVID.  She went on to express that she has a problem with Suntex indicating they 
will move forward with boat dock (re)construction later this month, but they have not even obtained 
any permits from the City of Dallas or the City of Rockwall. She explained that people in the Houston 
area lived in subdivisions with similar drainage problems as many residents have expressed this 
evening, and their homes had 3 feet of water in them during Hurricane Harvey. She urged the city to 
help do something to rectify the issues. 
 
There being no one else indicating a desire to speak, Mayor Fowler then closed Open Forum. 
 

VIII.  
 
TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to authorize the city manager to negotiate an amendment to the 
current water contract with Blackland Water Supply Corporation.  Councilmember Daniels seconded 
the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.    

IX.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

9



 
1.  Consider approval of the minutes from the August 16, 2021 regular city council meeting, and take any action 

necessary.  
2.  Consider approval of the minutes from the August 24, 2021 Special City Council (Budget Work Session) 

meeting, and take any action necessary.  
3.  Z2021-028 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Section 10, Fee Schedule, of Article 

11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance 
No. 20-02] for the purpose of creating a Non-Compliant Structure application fee for Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
applications (2nd Reading).  

4.  Z2021-029 - Consider a request by Ed Cavendish of Cavendish Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a 
single-family home on a 0.1465-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 28, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 20, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family 
residential land uses, addressed as 104 Reliance Court, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).  

5.  Z2021-030 - Consider a request by Ed Cavendish of Cavendish Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a 
single-family home on a 0.1637-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 12, Block A, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 20, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family 
residential land uses, addressed as 118 Mischief Lane, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).  

6.  Z2021-031 - Consider a request by Tino and Judy Liscano on behalf of Jeremy Lance Epton for the approval of 
an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family 1 (SF-1) District for a 
4.95-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Epton Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 2065 & 2075 Airport Road, and take any action necessary (2nd 
Reading).  

7.  P2021-045 - Consider a request by David Bond of Spiars Engineering on Andrew Melzer of Gingercrest Inc. for 
the approval of a Replat for Lot 8, Block 1, Meadowcreek Business Center, Phase 2 being a 8.240-acre tract of 
land identified as Lots 6 & 7, Block 1, Meadowcreek Business Center, Phase 2 Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) 
District and the SH-276 Overlay (SH-276 OV) District, addressed as 2301 S. Goliad Street, and take any action 
necessary.  

8.  MIS2021-011 - Discuss and consider a request by Matt Waivering of the Rockwall Economic Development 
Corporation (REDC) for the approval of an Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement for a 137.448-
acre tract of land identified as Tracts 5 & 6 of the J. H. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 125, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the SH-276 (SH-276 OV) District, 
generally located at the northwest corner of the intersection of Springer Road and Rochelle Road, and take 
any action necessary. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda (#s 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 
8). Councilmember Macalik seconded the motion. The ordinances were read as follows: 
 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

X.  
 
APPOINTMENT ITEMS  

 
1.  Appointment with the city's ART Commission Chairman to hear a presentation regarding a public art Painted 

Butterfly Art project and to consider authorizing associated funding in the amount of $10,000 from the city's 
"Art in Public Places" funds, and take any action necessary. 
 
Chris Kosterman with the city’s ART Commission came forth and briefed Council on this project 
and the associated funding request.  Councilmember Macalik moved to approve the request for 
the $10,000 for the Butterfly Art Project.  Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion, which 
passed by a vote of 7 ayes to  0 nays. 

10



 
2.  Appointment with representative(s) of Suntex RHCL Marina, LLC to hear plans for reconstruction of "H," "I," 

and "J" docks at the Chandler's Landing Marina, and take any action necessary. 
 
Michael Warntjes with Suntex came forth and provided a PowerPoint presentation to Council 
concerning the proposed changes to some of the existing boat docks at the Chandler’s Landing 
Marina. 
 
Councilmember Macalik clarified that Suntex is proposing to take the slips from 49 uncovered 
clips down to 36 uncovered boat slips (for sailboats). Councilmember Macalik and Mayor Fowler 
encouraged the Suntex representatives to meet with the Chandler’s Landing neighborhood 
residents, at large, in order to talk thru the proposed changes to the boat docks and glean some 
input and support before asking the City Council to act upon the proposed changes. 
 
Councilmember Campbell asked for and received some additional clarification on the proposed 
changes. 
 
Mayor Fowler shared that the Council will not be taking any action this evening concerning this 
particular agenda item. 

XI.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
If you would like to speak regarding an item listed below, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City Council" form to the 
City Secretary either before the meeting or as you approach the podium. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call upon you to come 
forth at the proper time. Please limit your comments to no more than three minutes.  

 
1.  Hold a public hearing to receive comments regarding the Proposed FY2022 City of Rockwall Budget and tax 

rate, and take any action necessary. 
 
City Manager, Mary Smith, provided background information on this agenda item. She shared 
that the proposed budget reflects a proposed tax rate of .35 cents, which is .02 cents less than last 
year’s.  She went on to briefly highlight some of the items in the proposed, upcoming budget. 
 
Mayor Fowler asked if anyone would like to come forth and speak concerning this Public Hearing 
item. 
 
Jenny Krueger 
805 Heath Street 
Rockwall, TX  
 
Mrs. Krueger thanked Council for considering requested funding in the budget that will benefit 
the local Boys & Girls Club. She went on to explain the reasons behind the funding request and 
what, in general, the money will be utilized for. 
 
Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Wacker came forth and shared that citizens’ tax dollars fund the Rockwall Economic 
Development Corporation (REDC), and he believes that there should be a lot more transparency 
associated with the REDC and its funding. Discussion ensued between Council and Mr. Wacker 
concerning REDC board meetings, what the REDC does, the services it provides to the community, 
and how it is funded (thru sales taxes). Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt challenged Mr. Wacker on 

11



some things he seemed to “insinuate” as part of his comments, and he encouraged Mr. Wacker 
to actually come and attend the REDC board meetings. Hohenshelt indicated that a portion of the 
meetings do involve private, ‘Executive Session’ discussions; however, a good portion of the REDC 
board meetings are open to the public, and anyone is welcome to attend. 
 
There being no one else wishing to come forth and speak at this time, Mayor Fowler then closed 
the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor Fowler made a motion to instruct the City Manager to move forward with advertising the 
.35 cent proposed tax rate for adoption at the September 20 city council meeting. Councilmember 
Jorif seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

XII.  
 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
1.  Discuss and consider directing staff to initiate a text amendment to Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 

Development Code (UDC) for the purpose of changing the Permissible Use Charts to require a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for the Urban Residential land use in the Downtown (DT) District, and take any action necessary. 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information pertaining to this agenda item. 
Following brief discussion, Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt   

2.  Discuss and consider appointments to the city's Youth Advisory Council (YAC), and take any action necessary. 
 
City Secretary, Kristy Cole, explained that interviews were recently held with students who 
applied to serve on the 2021-2022 Rockwall Youth Advisory Council.  Ms. Cole indicated that three 
students live in Fate, and one student lives in Heath. She has reached out to each of those cities 
to secure financial sponsorships ($250/each) for those students, and she feels confident that 
those cities will financially support those few students. Following brief comments, 
Councilmember Campbell moved to reappoint the 8 returning YAC students and the four (4)  new 
appointees, including the following: 
 
Seniors: Mazie Johnson (Rockwall); Peyton Nielsen (Rockwall); Carissa Heimer (Rockwall); Rylee 
Braaten (Fate). 
 
Juniors: Morgan Crosby (Rockwall); Jaxson Stuart (Rockwall); Marvin Villalobos (Rockwall); 
Karmen Fumey-Nassah (Fate) (new appointee) 
 
Sophomores: Miriam Gamez (Fate); Maddoc Johnson (Rockwall) (new appointee); Emily Nielsen 
(Rockwall) (new appointee) 
 
Freshmen: Keaton Steen (Heath) (new appointee) 
 
Councilmember Daniels seconded the motion but asked if the appointments should be made 
contingent upon securing the financial sponsorships from Fate and Heath for their respective 
students.  Councilmember Campbell amended her motion accordingly, and Daniels seconded the 
amended motion.  The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

XIII.  
 
CITY MANAGER'S REPORT, DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND RELATED DISCUSSIONS PERTAINING TO CURRENT CITY ACTIVITIES, 
UPCOMING MEETINGS, FUTURE LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS.  

 
1.  Building Inspections Monthly Report  
2.  Fire Department Monthly Report - July 2021 

12



 
3.  Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - July 2021  
4.  Police Department Monthly Report - July 2021  
5.  Sales Tax Historical Comparison  
6.  Water Consumption Historical Statistics 

 
No discussion and no action took place related to departmental reports. 

XIV.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS AUTHORIZED 
BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding the RCH Water Supply and Blackland Water Supply Corporation (WSC) contracts, 

pursuant to Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).   
2.  Discussion regarding countywide ambulance services contract, pursuant to §551.071 (Consultation with 

Attorney). 

XV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Council did not reconvene in Executive Session following the close of the public meeting agenda. 

XVI.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Fowler adjourned the meeting at 8:12 p.m. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, ON THIS 

20th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 

 
 

KEVIN FOWLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  

 
 

KRISTY COLE, CITY SECRETARY 
 

 
 

13



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: LADDER TRUCK 2 REPAIRS TO AERIAL LADDER CABLES

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
Ladder truck 2 cables that control the aerial ladder extension and retraction have failed.  CFS
Inspections initially performed the inspection on the cables and found the repair issue.  After
receiving CFS report staff contacted Metro Fire Apparatus Specialists to verify the problem in
the cable system and determine what repairs need to be made.    

 

The cost of repair by Metro Fire is estimated and to not exceed $45,000.  Fire Operations
vehicle repair budget is adequate to cover this repair cost.

 

Action Needed
For Council consideration is the approval of the cable repairs to Ladder truck 2 and authorize
the City Manager to execute a purchase order in the amount not to exceed $45,000 for the
repairs to Metro Fire Apparatus Specialists.

 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: September 20, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Interlocal Agreement for Fire Protection Services 
  
 
This is the standard agreement that the city enters into annually with Rockwall County.  
 
Chief Cullins and I will be available to answer any questions.    
  
 
 
 
 
 

38



39



40



41



42



43



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: BID AWARD FOR NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT SERVICES FORCED
MOWING

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
In January 2021, the City accepted sealed bids for the Grounds Maintenance Services Small
Contract that includes mostly tractor mowing managed by our Parks Department and has
historically been used by Neighborhood Improvement Services department for forced mowing
for code compliance purposes.  Council awarded the bid in February to the apparent low bidder,
SRH Landscapes, based on best value.  The second low bidder was Grass Kisser (the prior
years’ contractor for this service). 

The Neighborhood Improvement Services department was informed on September 3rd by SRH
Landscapes that they can no longer perform the forced mowing part of this contract and that
they are going to focus on the large area tractor mowing.  Staff approached Grass Kisser to see
if they would be interested in the City’s contract for forced mowing at the per unit price they
submitted in their January 2021 bid and they agreed.  We expect to spend approximately
$33,000 over the next calendar year for forced mowing service.  Neighborhood Improvement
Services department’s code contracted services budget is adequate to cover this amount.  A
provision in this contract is at the end of the first annual contract period, this contract is
renewable for up to three consecutive years should the contract terms and conditions remain
the same and both the contractor and the City agree to renew.

Action Needed
For Council consideration is the bid award by unit price to Grass Kisser and authorize the City
Manager to execute a contract for this work.

44



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: AWARD BIDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF SIX POLICE PURSUIT SUV'S
AND VEHICLE EQUIPMENT

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
As you are aware, all of the City’s 2021 model vehicles (placed on order Jan. 2021) the delivery
of these vehicles has been delayed due to the “chip” shortage.  Included in the order are 6
police pursuit Tahoe’s that are expected to land at the dealership sometime late Dec. 2021 –
Jan. 2022.  These Tahoe’s will be 2022 models.

On August 31, 2021, General Motors (GM) notified their dealerships that as of this date they
are no longer taking orders for the 2022 model PPV or any other model Tahoe.  GM did not
specify the open order date for 2023 models.  Learning of this manufacturing circumstance,
staff believes it is in the best interest of the City to move forward as quickly as we can and
place the Fiscal Year 2022 PPV order for three Chevrolet Tahoe’s and three Ford Explorers.  It
is our understanding that the dealerships have over ordered on the 2022 model PPV Tahoe and
should have sufficient inventory on their lots at a first come first serve purchase.

The 2022 model year PPV’s would be purchased from Caldwell Country Chevrolet and
Rockdale Country Ford through the Buy Board Contract 601-19 Cooperative Purchasing
Program.  The new vehicle equipment (lights, push bumper, console, prisoner seat, wiring and
install of radio and computer) would be purchased from Pursuit Safety using the City of Allen
Contract Cooperative Agreement.  The City, as a member and participant in these cooperative
programs, has met all formal bidding requirements pertaining to the purchase of these new
vehicles and equipment.  Funding for the purchase of these vehicles and equipment is
proposed out of General Fund Reserves.

 

  

Action Needed

45



Should the FY 2021-22 budget be adopted, for Council consideration are bid awards to
Caldwell Country Chevrolet for three Tahoe’s totaling $117,000 and Rockdale Country Ford for
three Explorers totaling $115,890 as well as the vehicle equipment from Pursuit Safety
$150,000 prior to the start of the Fiscal Year 2022 on 10-1-2021 and authorize the City
Manager to execute purchase orders. 

46



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT:
Z2021-032; SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR A RESTAURANT WITH LESS
THAN 2,000 SF WITH DRIVE-THROUGH OR DRIVE-IN IN A COMMERCIAL
(C) DISTRICT

Attachments
Memorandum

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Sam Moore of Main & Main on
behalf of Jason Claunch of 7.1 Ridge LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with a Drive-Through or Drive-In for the
purpose of constructing a restaurant (i.e. Dutch Bros. Coffee) on a 0.57-acre portion of a larger
8.583-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Sky Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within Scenic Overlay (SOV)
District, generally located southeast of the intersection of Ridge Road [FM-740] and W. Yellow
Jacket Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council will need to announce the updated public hearing date of October 4, 2021;
however, no further action is required.

47



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
CC: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: September 20, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Z2021-032; Specific Use Permit for a Restaurant with less than 2,000 SF with Drive-Through 
or Drive-In in a Commercial (C) District 

 

 

On September 14, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to table Case No. Z2021-032 to the 
September 28, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Moeller absent. The 
purpose of the motion was to allow the applicant additional time to make changes to the proposed concept plan. According to 
Subsection 02.03(C)(3) of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC), “(a) public hearing may be continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council … (t)he continuation of a 
public hearing shall be to a specific time and date no later than 30-days from the first or most recent public hearing … [and] 
(t)he announcement of a continuation at a public hearing shall be sufficient notice and no additional notice is required.” Since 
this case was advertised for a public hearing at the September 20, 2021 City Council meeting, the City Council will need to 
announce the updated public hearing date of October 4, 2021; however, no further action will be required. Should the City 
Council have any questions staff will be available at the September 20, 2021 City Council meeting 

48



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: Z2021-033; AMENDMENT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 4
(PD-4)

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
Applicant's Letter
Survey
Concept Plan
Conceptual Building Elevations
Scenic District (Comprehensive Plan)
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB Companies
on behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of an ordinance for
a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No. 01-26] to
allow a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a
12.1148-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General
Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally
located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740],
and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed

49



The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed
amendment to Planned Development District 4 (PD-4).

50



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: September 20, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Robert Weinstein; WB Companies 
 

CASE NUMBER: Z2021-033; Amendment to Planned Development District 4 (PD-4)   
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB Companies on behalf of Richard Chandler 
of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance 
No. 01-26] to allow a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a 12.1148-acre 
tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) 
District, generally located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any 
action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City Council approved Ordinance No. 60-02 [Case No. A1960-002], annexing the subject property into the City of 
Rockwall on September 5, 1960.  On January 27, 1972, the City Council approved Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) 
[Ordinance No. 72-03] allowing Neighborhood Services (NS) District and General Retail (GR) District land uses.  In addition, 
the Planned Development District allowed Shopping Center land uses on the subject property.  On June 18, 2001, the City 
Council approved a City initiated amendment to Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Case No. PZ2001-053-01] removing 
the Neighborhood Services (NS) District land uses from the base zoning.  This changed the Planned Development District to 
only allow General Retail (GR) District land uses.  The subject property is currently vacant and no changes have been made 
to it since it was annexed in 1960. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The applicant -- Robert Weinstein of WB Companies -- is requesting to amend Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) to allow 
for a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) consisting of 600 multi-family units, 
20,000 SF of retail/office space, and two (2) restaurants consisting of a total of 6,000 SF. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740].  The land 
uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property is a mixed-use development consisting of 202 urban residential units and 

several office/retail land uses.  This property is better known as Rockwall Commons, and which is zoned Planned 
Development District 1 (PD-1) for General Retail (GR) District and Multi-Family 14 (MF-14) District land uses.  
North of this mixed-use development, is another mixed-use development consisting of 140 urban residential units 
and several office/retail land uses.  This property is known as the Lakeview Apartments and is zoned Planned 
Development District 1 (PD-1) for General Retail (GR) District land uses.  

 
South: Directly south of the subject property is Ridge Road, which is identified as a M4D (i.e. minor collector, four [4] 

lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 

51



Comprehensive Plan.  South of this thoroughfare is a 8.583-acre tract of vacant land (i.e. Lot 1, Block A, Sky 
Ridge Addition) zoned Commercial (C) District.  

 
East: Directly east of the subject property is a 100-foot right-of-way with railroad tracks owned by the M. K. & T. 

Railroad.  Beyond this are two (2) vacant tracts of land (i.e. Tract 9 [9.24-acres] & Tract 9-1 [7-acres], of the D. 
Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1), which are situated within the 100-year floodplain and zoned Commercial (C) 
District.  East of the two (2) vacant tracts is the Waterstone Estates Subdivision, which was platted on November 
30, 1994 and consists of 123 single-family residential lots.  This subdivision is zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) 
District.   

 
West: Directly west of the subject property is Ridge Road, which is identified as a M4D (i.e. major collector, four [4] lane, 

divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan. Continuing west are several single-family residential subdivisions (i.e. Lake Ray Hubbard 
Estates [65 lots], The Estates of Coast Royal 1 [four {4} lots], The Estates of Coast Royal 2 [13 lots], and 
Lakeridge Park [87 lots]), which are zoned for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses.   

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST 
 
The applicant has submitted a concept plan, conceptual building elevations, and development standards for a proposed 
mixed-use development.  The concept plan shows that the 12.1148-acre tract of land will be developed in two (2) phases and 
consist of multi-family dwelling units, general retail/office, and restaurant land uses.   More specifically, the development will 
incorporate 600 multi-family dwelling units (i.e. 419, 700-750 SF one (1) bedroom units & 181, 950-1,100 SF two (2) bedroom 
units), ~10,000 SF of retail/office space on the lower level of each phase, and a ~3,000 SF restaurant that will be located on 
the upper level of each phase of the mixed-use development.  It should be noted that the 600 multi-family dwelling units would 
translate to a density of 49.52 dwelling units per acre.  The minimum dwelling unit size (i.e. air-condition space) will range from 
700 SF to 1,100 SF. Staff has incorporated masonry standards into the proposed Planned Development District ordinance in 
accordance with the minimum masonry requirements stipulated by the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District.  Specifically, the 
ordinance will require 90% masonry with a minimum of 20% natural stone to be located on each facade; however, the Planned 
Development District ordinance will also incorporate provisions that allow up to 50% cementitous fiberboard (e.g. HardiBoard 
or Hardy Plank) or stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable material).  The proposed amendment to Planned 
Development District 4 (PD-4) will be subject to the land uses, and density and dimensional requirements stipulated for 
properties within the General Retail (GR) District with some specific restrictions to the land uses (see the attached ordinance).  
The following is a summary of the lot dimensional requirements, unit composition, and parking and loading standards 
contained in the proposed Planned Development District ordinance: 
 

Table 1: Lot Dimensional Requirements 
 

Minimum Lot Width 60’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 100’ 
Minimum Lot Area 10,000 SF 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 15’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 10’ 
Maximum Height 75’ 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 10’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 90% 

 
 

Table 2: Unit Composition 
     

Unit Type Minimum Unit Size (SF) Phase #1 Phase #2 Total Units 
A1 700 SF 70% or 

227 Units 
70% or 

192 Units 419 Units A2 750 SF 
B1 950 SF 30% or 

98 Units 
30% or 
83 Units 181 Units B2 1,025 SF 

B3 1,100 SF 
Maximum Units: 325 Units 275 Units 600 Units 

 
 

52



Table 3: Parking Requirements 
 

Unit/Land Use Types Parking Space Requirements 
A1 1.25 Parking Space/Unit 
A2 1.25 Parking Space/Unit 
B1 1.75 Parking Space/Unit 
B2 1.75 Parking Space/Unit 
B3 1.75 Parking Space/Unit 

Restaurant 1 Parking Space/100 SF 
Retail 1 Parking Space/250 SF 
Office 1 Parking Space/300 SF 

 
The proposed concept plan indicates that the proposed development will provide a five (5) foot sidewalk along the frontage of 
Ridge Road that continues along the northern and eastern property lines of the subject property.  This sidewalk will create a 
loop around the development when completed.  Situated adjacent to the 5-foot walking trail on the southeast portion of the 
development (i.e. Phase 1) are three (3) landscaped courtyards that creates additional greenspace for the site; however, the 
applicant has not indicated the amount of open space provided with the development.  Staff does estimate the open space as 
being less than 20% of the total site area.   
 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Based on the applicant’s submittal the following infrastructure is required to adequately serve this development: 
 
(1) Water & Sewer Improvements. The development will be required to provide all water and sewer improvements per the 

approved infrastructure study, which will need to be completed prior to the submittal of a site plan. 
   

(2) Roadways. Ridge Road is identified as a M4D (i.e. major collector, four [4] lane, divided roadway), which requires a 
minimum of an 85-foot right-of-way and a four (4) lane divided concrete street.  If additional right-of-way is needed this will 
be required to be dedicated at the time of final plat.  Additionally, all requirement called for by Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 
will need to be installed.  Staff should note, that because this development calls for an increase in density from what is 
allowed on the Future Land Use Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA) will need to be completed prior to submitted for a site plan.  

 
(3) Drainage.  Detention will be required and sized per the Engineering Department’s Standards of Design and Construction 

Manual. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY’S CODES 
 
Staff should note that the proposed Planned Development District deviates from the requirements of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) and the Municipal Code of Ordinances in the following ways: 
 
(1) Density. The highest density zoning district permitted by the Unified Development Code (UDC) is the Multi-Family 14 (MF-

14) District, which allows a maximum of 14 dwelling units per acre [i.e. Subsection 07.02, of Article 05, UDC].  In this 
case, the applicant is requesting a total density of 49.52 dwelling units per acre, which exceeds the 14 dwelling units per 
acre by more than 3½ times the amount.  In addition, staff should point out that the Rockwall Commons has a density of 
30.40 dwelling units per acre and the Lakeview Apartments has a density of 36.84 dwelling units per acre; however, these 
unit counts were based on the entirety of Planned Development District 1 (PD-1), which is 39.6443-acres and equates to 
a total density of only 8.63 dwelling units per acre. 
 

(2) Parking Requirements.  According to Article 06, Parking and Loading, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), a Multi-
Family development requires a minimum of 1½ parking spaces for each one (1) bedroom unit and two (2) parking spaces 
for each two (2) bedroom units.  In this case, the applicant is requesting 1.25 parking spaces for the one (1) bedroom 
units and 1.75 parking spaces for the two (2) bedroom units.  Based on the total number of dwelling units (i.e. 419 one [1] 
bedroom & 181 two [2] bedroom units) being requested, the Unified Development Code (UDC) would require a minimum 
of 991 parking spaces for the proposed multi-family units.  The applicant is requesting a total of 841 parking spaces for 
the multi-family units.  When looking at the overall parking requirements per the Unified Development Code (UDC), the 
development would require a total of 1,131 parking spaces (i.e. 991 spaces for the Multi-Family Dwelling Units + 80 

53



spaces for the General Retail/Office + 60 spaces for the Restaurant = 1,131).  The applicant is proposing a total of 995 
parking spaces for the total mixed-use development, which would be deficient by 136 parking spaces per the City’s 
requirements.       
  

(3) Maximum Building Height. Under the Special Use Standards of the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District (Subsection 06.02, of 
Article 05, UDC) and the General Retail (GR) District (Subsection 07.03, of Article 05, UDC) of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC), structures that exceed 36-feet in height require the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP).  In this case, 
the applicant is requesting a five (5) story structure with an overall height of 72.457’, which is more than twice the height 
requirement for a structure in the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District.  

 
The approval of the applicant’s request would amend Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) and would effectively waive 
these requirements. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH OURHOMETOWN VISION 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
According to the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for Commercial/Retail 
land uses and is situated within the Scenic District.  According to the Land Use Plan, the Commercial/Retail land use 
designation “…is characterized by single to multi-tenant commercial retail centers along major arterials at key intersections.  
These areas are typically considered to be convenience shopping centers and serve adjacent residential subdivisions … 
(t)hese areas should be designed with the pedestrian in mind and provide connections between the commercial land use and 
the adjacent residential subdivisions.”  In this case, the applicant’s proposed development of high-density housing mixed with 
commercial, restaurant, and office land uses is more characteristic of the Mixed-Use land use designation, which is defined as 
“…developments that typically offer a mix of housing types and residential densities with integrated retail, personal services 
and/or office … (t)he residential component can include single-family homes, townhouses, condominiums, urban housing, 
lofts, or multi-family.”  While the Mixed-Use land use designation does not stipulate a density, staff should note that the 
proposed 49.52 units per acre falls within the High Density Residential designation.  This designation is defined as any 
development that exceeds 3½ units per gross acre.  Staff should also note, that at 49.52 units per gross acre this would be 
one of the densest developments within the City of Rockwall.  Looking at the District Strategies of the Scenic District, District 
Strategy #4 states that “(i)nfill development within this district should be compatible with the surrounding land uses or conform 
to the Land Use Plan Designations depicted on the district map.”  In this case, the applicant’s proposed development appears 
to be far more intense of a land use than the existing mixed-use developments north of the subject property.  Based on these 
facts the proposed development appears to be inconsistent with the area and therefore would not conform with the Land Use 
Plan. 
 
Looking at the policies and goals for Condominium and Apartments contained in Chapter 08, Housing, of the OURHometown 
Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the applicant’s proposal potentially deviates to the following: 
 
(1) Section 02.05; Goal 01, Policy #3: High-density condominium and apartment projects should be established in areas that 

can support a mix of land uses (e.g. hotel, office, retail, commercial, etc.) and have roadways that can accommodate 
higher volumes of traffic (e.g. IH-30). These areas are typically located away from existing single-family residential 
neighborhoods, east of John King Boulevard and are adjacent to commercial and office land uses. 
 
Staff Response: In this case, Ridge Road [FM-740] does appear to be a roadway that can accommodate higher volumes 
of traffic; however, there are many single-family residential subdivisions along Ridge Road, which do not make it 
conducive to a development that is as intense as to what the applicant is proposing.  The example used in the 
Comprehensive Plan is IH-30, which does not have any single-family residential subdivisions in close proximity to it main 
lanes.  Based on this the applicant’s request does not appear to conform to this policy. 
 

(2) Section 02.05; Goal 01, Policy #4: High-density developments that incorporate more than ten (10) units per gross acre 
should incorporate structured parking that is visually screened from public view on all sides of the development. This can 
be achieved by wrapping the parking garage with buildings or creating false façades. Surface parking should be reserved 
to accommodate visitors, office staff, and prospective residents. 
 
Staff Response: Based on the concept plan one (1) of the proposed parking garages will not be entirely wrapped by 
buildings and will have levels that are visible from the single-family subdivision east of the subject property.  In addition, 

54



the elevations provided by the applicant fail to show what this elevation of the parking garage will look like.  Since staff is 
unable to determine if the proposed plan meets this requirement, staff has included a condition within the proposed draft 
ordinance that requires all structure parking to be visually screened from public view. 
 

(3) Section 02.05; Goal 01; Policy #6: Additional landscaping and canopy trees in landscape buffers and open space areas 
should be required to reduce the scale of buildings, and increase the amount of green space provided for residents. 

 
Staff Response: Currently, the applicant has failed to indicate the amount of open space in the development; however, 
staff estimates the amount of open space to be less than the 20% of the total site area, which is a recommended 
minimum by the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  In addition, the concept plan does not appear to 
incorporate increased landscape buffers (i.e. the current landscape buffer only meets the minimum standards of the 
General Overlay District Standards) or landscaped areas.  Based on this the applicant’s concept plan does not appear to 
meet this policy. 

 
Based on the applicant’s failure to conform with the Future Land Use Map and the Housing policies contained within the 
Comprehensive Plan, staff is required to point out that this request does not conform to the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  With this being said, zoning is discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation 
from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Should the City Council choose to approve the applicant’s request, staff has 
incorporated a condition of approval that would change the Future Land Use Map designation for the subject property from a 
Commercial/Retail designation to a Mixed-Use designation.    
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On August 26, 2021, staff mailed 80 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also notified the Turtle Cove and Waterstone Estates Homeowner’s Association (HOA’s), which are the only HOA’s within 
1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program. Additionally, staff posted a sign on 
the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received the following: 
 
(1) Three (3) property owner notifications representing four (4) properties from property owners within the notification area 

(i.e. within the 500-foot buffer) that are opposed to the applicant’s request. 
(2) One (1) notification from the City’s website portal from a property owner within the notification area (i.e. within the 500-foot 

buffer) that is opposed to the applicant’s request. 
(3) Four (4) notifications from the City’s website portal from property owners that are not within the notification area (i.e. 

outside of the 500-foot buffer) that are opposed to applicant’s request. 
(4) Three (3) email notifications from property owners that are not within the notification area (i.e. outside of the 500-foot 

buffer) that are opposed to applicant’s request. 
(5) One (1) property owner notification representing two (2) properties from a property owner that is not within the notification 

area (i.e. outside the 500-foot buffer) that is opposed to the applicant’s request. 
(6) One (1) letter from the Waterstone Estates Homeowners Association representing property owners that are within and not 

within the notification area (i.e. inside and outside of the 500-foot buffer) that are opposed to applicant’s request. 
(7) One (1) email from a property owner that is not within the notification area (i.e. outside of the 500-foot buffer) that is in 

favor of the applicant’s request. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
1) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to the Comprehensive Plan and 

Future Land Use Map.  Specifically, this will change the designation of the subject property from a Commercial/Retail 
designation to a Mixed-Use designation; and, 

 
2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the requirements set forth by the 

Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 

55



adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
 
On September 14, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission failed to approve a motion for the zoning amendment with a 
motion to approve failing by a vote of 3-3, with Commissioners Deckard, Thomas, and Welch dissenting and Commissioner 
Moeller absent.  According to Subsection 02.04(E), Failure to Approve a Motion, of Article 11, Development Applications and 
Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)f the Planning and Zoning Commission fails to approve a 
motion by a majority vote for any zoning application (i.e. zoning change, Specific Use Permit, or text amendment), then a 
recommendation for denial shall be forwarded to the City Council.”  In addition, Subsection 02.03(G), Protest of a Zoning 
Change, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), states “… 
if such change is recommended for denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission, such zoning change or Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) shall require a supermajority vote (i.e. a three-fourths vote of those members present), with a minimum of four 
(4) votes in the affirmative required for approval.” 

56



57



RID
GE

LA
KE

SH
OR

E

KYLE
YELLO

W JACKET

ALA
MO

BECKY

JULIAN

MURPHY

LAKEVIEW

TANYA

TUPELO

GULLWING

DAMASCUS

PELICAN COVE

LAKEHILL

MEADOWDALE

STAFFORD

LAKEDALE

GREENCREST

OLD COUNTY

SEASCAPE

CAPE HATTERAS

RID
GE

YELLO
W JACKET

Z2021-033- AMENDMENT TO PD-04
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 320 640 960 1,280160
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I58



ALA
MO

RID
GE

OLDCOUNTY

YE
LL

OW JA
CKET

TUPELO

BECKY

JU
ST

IN

GOLIAD

CHANNEL
RIDGE

LAKEVIEW

CLIFF
VIEW

LOCH
VIEW

SEASCAPE

CAPE

HATTERAS

HARBOR COVE

BLUFFVIEW

MU
RP

HY

BRIAR OAKS

TURTLE COVE

LEXINGTON

JULIA
NPE

LIC
AN

 C
OV

E

LAKEDALE

KE

ANDREWS

GULLWING

LA
KE

SH
OR

E

WOODLAND

GOLIAD

LAKEHILL

INTE
RSTA

TE
 30

INTE
RS

TA
TE

 30

STAFFORD

INT
ER

ST
AT

E 3
0

TANYA

MEADOWDALE

INTE
RST

AT
E 3

0

GREENCREST

INTE
RSTA

TE
 30

DARTBROOK

MURPHY

DAMASCUS

YE
LLO

W JA
CKET KYLE

INTE
RSTA

TE
 30

RID
GE

Lakeside
Village

Turtle Cove

Waterstone
Homeowners
Association

0 475 950 1,425 1,900237.5
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

GOLIAD

RID
GE

JOH
N K

ING

MIMS

FM
 54

9

JUSTIN
AIRPORTCLA

RKRUSK

STATE HIGHWAY 66 FAN
NIN

STO
DG

HIL
L

HORIZON

DISCOVERY

TUBBS

KYLE
LAKESIDE

LA
KE

SH
OR

E

RISE

IVY
GLENN T L TOWNSEND

TEAGLE

AM
ITY

AVERY

HAIL

JULIAN

WI
LDR

OS
E

JOHN KING

RID
GE

Case Number:

Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2021-033

Between Lakedale Drive & Becky Lane 
on the East Side of Ridge Road

Zoning
Amendment to PD-4
Planned Development District 4 (PD-4)

8/20/2021 59



From: Gamez, Angelica
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program [Z2021-033]
Date: Thursday, August 26, 2021 3:19:10 PM
Attachments: Public Notice (08.26.2021).pdf

HOA Map (08.20.2021).pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative:
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to
inform your organization that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located
within 1,500-feet of the boundaries of your neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your
organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the residents of your subdivision. 
Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to your
subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that will be published
in the Rockwall Herald Banner on August 27, 2021.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a
public hearing on Tuesday, September 14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public
hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  Both hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at
City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to
Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name,
address, and the case number your comments are referring to.  These comments will be read into
the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current development
cases can be found on the City’s website:
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases.
 
Z2021-033 Amendment to PD-4
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB Companies on
behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of a Zoning Change amending
Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No. 01-26] to allow a Mixed-Use Development
(i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a 12.1148-acre tract of land identified
as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the
Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the
eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action necessary.
 
Thank you,
 
Angelica Gamez
Planning & Zoning Coordinator
City of Rockwall
972.771.7745 Office
972.772.6438 Direct
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/
 

60

mailto:AGamez@rockwall.com
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:HLee@rockwall.com
mailto:Planning@rockwall.com
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/



901


923


1309


1305


1600


1722


970


1602


1724


1408


1608


1728


2005


1406-B


1406-A


1404


1402


1611


1603


1601


1605


1726


1400


1612


210


2003


1613


1607


107


1944


1609


1316


1615


1614


1412


208


222


103


2135


207


188


207


1906


1410


1926


1924


171


203


168


2002


111


205


305


306


1905


204


203


202


204 108


120
1504


209


205
202


102
211


1511


106


104


204


1802


110


209


1908


174


124


207


1502


1606


2031920
205


1507


135


1509


1505


1914


138


1804


1916


129


1910


1918


1912


1514


1915


1610


1508


1512


1601


130


1611


134


1510


1911
1909


1607


1913


1603


1609
1608


1518


1604


206


1600


111219
217 115


301
209


1936


303


119


211


1934


206


213


1928


215


209


123


201


208


207


1932


207


211


203


127


101


205


302
304


131


153


205


121


135
1908


1930


202


1405


143


203


220


105


1416


127


1942


103


118


175


219
218


222


163


305


1938


104


2014


112


212


216


206


201


1901


150


182


106


210


160


214


146
107 156 164


206


214
142


1933


2003


218


1902


1911


115


2013


1516


1929


1612


612


1907


202


124


135


221


1931


1940


1613


215


2004


206


1904


168


2011


210


131


615


136


1791702


202


2008
2006


1907


2010


1903


2005


132


2012


1927


2007


172


116


178


1902


201


176


205


1905
2009


1909


128
215


128


311


209


1963


1605


120


319


624


1534


124


132


315


171 175


1925


1530


6161960


1502


1518


1506


1422


1526


1434
1430


1514


1426


1510


1522


1511


2001


1511


1431


1423


1515


1507


1427


1523


1435


1419


1519


1415


1527


1503


1959


1515


1945


620


323


1509


1955


1962


1951
1939
1935


603


1000


1535


611


751


RI
DG


E


LA
KE


SH
OR


E


BECKY


KYLE


YELLO
W JA


CKET


LAKEDALE


OLD COUNTY


SEASCAPE


RI
DG


E


YELLO
W JA


CKET


0 280 560 840 1,120140
Feet


I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com


The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       


S GOLIAD ST


RID
GE


 RD


DA
LRO


CK
 RD


S F
M 


549


FM 1139
HORIZON RD


S JOHN KING BLVD


STATE HIGHWAY 66


MIMS RD


JUSTIN
 RD STO


DG
HIL


L R
D


RO
CH


ELL
 RD


E INTERSTATE 30


S A
LAM


O R
D


WILLIAMS ST


DA
TA


 DR


SCE
NIC


 DR


WHITE RD


EVANS RD


ARCADIA WAY


RO
CH


ELL
 RD


Case Number:


Case Address:


Z2021-033


Between Lakedale Drive & Becky Lane
on the East Side of Ridge Road


Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Amendment to PD-4
Zoning: Planned Development District 4 (PD-4)


Vicinity Map


For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  8/20/2021


Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties







PUBLIC NOTICE  
 


 


CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 


 


 


Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 


You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 


Case No. Z2021-033: Amendment to PD-4 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB Companies on behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the 
approval of a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No. 01-26] to allow a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, 
Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a 12.1148-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally 
located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action necessary. 
 


For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, September 
14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 


As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 


David Gonzales 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 


385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 


 


You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 


Your comments must be received by Monday, September 20, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 


Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 


 


MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 


PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 


Case No. Z2021-033: Amendment to PD-4 
 


Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 


 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 


 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 


 


 


 


 


Name:  


Address:  


 


Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 


 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 



mailto:planning@rockwall.com






ALA
MO


RID
GE


OLDCOUNTY


YE
LL


OW JA
CKET


TUPELO


BECKY


JU
ST


IN


GOLIAD


CHANNEL
RIDGE


LAKEVIEW


CLIFF
VIEW


LOCH
VIEW


SEASCAPE


CAPE


HATTERAS


HARBOR COVE


BLUFFVIEW


MU
RP


HY


BRIAR OAKS


TURTLE COVE


LEXINGTON


JULIA
NPE


LIC
AN


 C
OV


E


LAKEDALE


KE


ANDREWS


GULLWING


LA
KE


SH
OR


E


WOODLAND


GOLIAD


LAKEHILL


INTE
RSTA


TE
 30


INTE
RS


TA
TE


 30


STAFFORD


INT
ER


ST
AT


E 3
0


TANYA


MEADOWDALE


INTE
RST


AT
E 3


0


GREENCREST


INTE
RSTA


TE
 30


DARTBROOK


MURPHY


DAMASCUS


YE
LLO


W JA
CKET KYLE


INTE
RSTA


TE
 30


RID
GE


Lakeside
Village


Turtle Cove


Waterstone
Homeowners
Association


0 475 950 1,425 1,900237.5
Feet


I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com


The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       


GOLIAD


RID
GE


JOH
N K


ING


MIMS


FM
 54


9


JUSTIN
AIRPORTCLA


RKRUSK


STATE HIGHWAY 66 FAN
NIN


STO
DG


HIL
L


HORIZON


DISCOVERY


TUBBS


KYLE
LAKESIDE


LA
KE


SH
OR


E


RISE


IVY
GLENN T L TOWNSEND


TEAGLE


AM
ITY


AVERY


HAIL


JULIAN


WI
LDR


OS
E


JOHN KING


RID
GE


Case Number:


Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:


Vicinity Map


For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:


Legend
Subject Property
1500' Buffer
Rockwall HOAs


Z2021-033


Between Lakedale Drive & Becky Lane 
on the East Side of Ridge Road


Zoning
Amendment to PD-4
Planned Development District 4 (PD-4)


8/20/2021







901

923

1309

1305

1600

1722

970

1602

1724

1408

1608

1728

2005

1406-B

1406-A

1404

1402

1611

1603

1601

1605

1726

1400

1612

210

2003

1613

1607

107

1944

1609

1316

1615

1614

1412

208

222

103

2135

207

188

207

1906

1410

1926

1924

171

203

168

2002

111

205

305

306

1905

204

203

202

204 108

120
1504

209

205

202

102

211

1511

106

104

204

1802

110

209

1908

174

124

207

1502

1606

2031920

205

1507

135

1509

1505

1914

138

1804

1916

129

1910

1918

1912

1514

1915

1610

1508

1512

1601

130

1611

134

1510

1911

1909

1607

1913

1603

1609
1608

1518

1604

206

1600

111219
217

115

301

209

1936

303

119

211

1934

206

213

1928

215

209

123

201

208

207

1932

207

211

203

127

101

205

302
304

131

153

205

121

135

1908

1930

202

1405

143

203

220

105

1416

127

1942

103

118

175

219

218

222

163

305

1938

104

2014

112

212

216

206

201

1901

150

182

106

210

160

214

146

107 156 164

206

214
142

1933

2003

218

1902

1911

115

2013

1516

1929

1612

612

1907

202

124

135

221

1931

1940

1613

215

2004

206

1904

168

2011

210

131

615

136

1791702

202

2008
2006

1907

2010

1903

2005

132

2012

1927

2007

172

116

178

1902

201

176

205

1905

2009
1909

128

215

128

311

209

1963

1605

120

319

624

1534

124

132

315

171 175

1925

1530

6161960

1502

1518

1506

1422

1526

1434
1430

1514

1426

1510

1522

1511

2001

1511

1431

1423

1515

1507

1427

1523

1435

1419

1519

1415

1527

1503

1959

1515

1945

620

323

1509

1955

1962

1951

1939

1935

603

1000

1535

611

751

RI
DG

E

LA
KE

SH
OR

E

BECKY

KYLE

YELLO
W JA

CKET

LAKEDALE

OLD COUNTY

SEASCAPE

RI
DG

E

YELLO
W JA

CKET

0 280 560 840 1,120140
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

S GOLIAD ST

RID
GE

 RD

DA
LRO

CK
 RD

S F
M 

549

FM 1139
HORIZON RD

S JOHN KING BLVD

STATE HIGHWAY 66

MIMS RD

JUSTIN
 RD STO

DG
HIL

L R
D

RO
CH

ELL
 RD

E INTERSTATE 30

S A
LAM

O R
D

WILLIAMS ST

DA
TA

 DR

SCE
NIC

 DR

WHITE RD

EVANS RD

ARCADIA WAY

RO
CH

ELL
 RD

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2021-033

Between Lakedale Drive & Becky Lane
on the East Side of Ridge Road

Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Amendment to PD-4
Zoning: Planned Development District 4 (PD-4)

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  8/20/2021

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

61



NEFF DARRYL LEE JR 
101 BECKYLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KJT FLYING PROPERTIES LLC 
102 LAKEDALE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MARSHALL RICHARD A AND 
KENNETH F WILSON 

103 BECKY LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

STAVINOHA JIM L & MITZIE J 
103 JULIAN DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

GARNER CASEY 
104 BECKY LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MCCULLAR EMILY JEAN 
104 LAKEDALE DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

COX MARCUS D 
105 BECKY LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

7.1 RIDGE LLC 
106 E RUSK SUITE 200 
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MARTINEZ GRACE & JESSE LEE III 
106 LAKEDALE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

VILLASENOR HENRY ROBERT & 
HAYDY E VILLASENOR 
106 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HAMBRICK GARY/GRACE HAMBRICK 
107 BECKY LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

PECK RUTH H 
108 LAKEDALE DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ECKERT TRUST 
DAVID W & BONNIE L ECKERT 

112 PELICAN COVE DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HAMPTON MATTHEW & CORINA 
118 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HPA TEXAS SUB 2017-1 LLC 
120 S RIVERSIDE PLZ STE 2000 

CHICAGO, IL 60606 

HFS MANAGEMENT INC 
C/O HANNA SAHLIYEH 

122 W JOHN CARPENTER FWY STE 400 
IRVING, TX 75039 

SHUGART WILLIAM E & MERIDITH JUNE 
124 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

HALL STEPHANIE MCGARRY 
130 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

T ROCKWALL APARTMENTS TX LLC 
1309 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WILLCOXEN R GENE & MARY F 
134 PELICAN COVEDR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ANDERSON JERRY C AND MELVA J 
138 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BOBST DANIEL W AND JENNIFER L 
1400 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

MASON RONALD E & GLORIA M 
1402 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

ROGERS FAMILY LIVING TRUST 
MICHAEL WAYNE ROGERS AND RELLA 

VILLASANA ROGERS, TRUSTEES 
1404 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

BURKE CASEY JOE AND ANDREA GAYDEN 
1406-A RIDGERD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NORMAN LINDA 
1406-B RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

JBR2 LLC 
1408 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

WONG ERIK J & ELIZABETH M 
1410 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

NAJMABADI NATHAN R & JENNIFER N 
1412 RIDGE ROAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

KROPKE JAMES & MARY 
142 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

=RESPONSE RECEIVED

62

RMiller
Oval

RMiller
Oval

RMiller
Oval

RMiller
Oval

RMiller
Oval



CRANE ADAM T 
146 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

TEBBUTT BRIAN & MYLA 
150 PELICAN COVE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SCHWERDT JOSHUA MICHAEL 
1502 RIDGE ROAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

BARRON ENRIQUE JR & ELIZABETH 
1504 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

TEBBUTT BRIAN C 
156 PELICAN COVE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

MCANALLY JOHN L & CINDY N 
1600 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

HENDRICKS JAMES & BARBARA 
1602 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

T ROCKWALL APARTMENTS TX LLC 
16600 DALLAS PARKWAY SUITE 300 

DALLAS, TX 75248 
 

 

UHLIG JANET KAY 
168 MURPHY CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

UNRUH CECIL J ESTATE 
TAMARA SUE HARRIS INDEPENDENT EXECUTRIX 

1722 RIDGE RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

GREEN STEVEN T 
1724 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PALOS MICKEY SUE & 
CODY S & MARIA T LOWERY 

1726 RIDGE RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

RICKERSON CHARLES AND VIRGINIA 
1728 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

AMERICAN RESIDENTIAL LEASING COMPANY LLC 
174 MURPHY CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

UNRUH CECIL J ESTATE 
TAMARA SUE HARRIS INDEPENDENT EXECUTRIX 

17627 CEDAR CREEK CANYON  
DALLAS, TX 75252 

 

KELLY TANNER B 
178 MURPHY CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

THAMES HOLDING LLC 
1887 ENGLISH RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PETTIGREW TERESA VIOLA 
1901 LAKEVIEW DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

BALL DEREK AND AMANDA 
1903 LAKEVIEW DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

VAUGHAN DANIEL J AND JESSICA 
1905 LAKEVIEW DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PADILLA KRIS AND JOE 
2005 LAKESHORE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

RUSSELL CURTIS J & JENNIFER J 
2006 S LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

FRITSCH TERYL W AND JANICE L 
2007 S LAKESHORE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CHARLES JACOB 
2008 S LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

HIGGINS BYRON STEPHEN AND 
KIMBERLY LEE PETRIELLO 
2009 S LAKESHORE DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

STEBBINS ROBERT A ESTATE 
ROBERT A STEBBINS II INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR 

2010 LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

HPA TEXAS SUB 2017-1 LLC 
2011 LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

SALAZAR AARON AND OLGA 
2012 LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

FREEMAN C L 
2013 S LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

THAMES HOLDING LLC 
2014 LAKESHORE DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

63

RMiller
Oval



RICKY LEE RIIS LIVING TRUST 
TRUSTEE RICKI LEE RIIS 
203 LAKEVIEW DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

SIMS CHRISTOPHER P AND KRISTEN 
206 LAKEVIEW DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

LAUREA ANTHONY BLAINE AND 
CHRISTINE LONG 

208 LAKEVIEW DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

MFR PROPERTIES LLC AND 
YELLOW JACKET PLAZA LLC 

2135 RIDGE RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

BOBST DANIEL W AND JENNIFER L 
2701 SUNSET RIDGE SUITE 610 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

JBR2 LLC 
2701 SUNSET RIDGE DR SUITE 610 

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MFR PROPERTIES LLC AND 
YELLOW JACKET PLAZA LLC 

28632 ROADSIDE DR SUITE 270 
AGOURA HILLS, CA 91301 

 

 

RPSC ROCKWALL PROPERTIES LLC 
3201 E PRESIDENT GEORGE BUSH HIGHWAY 

SUITE 101 
RICHARDSON, TX 75082 

 

 

WILLCOXEN R GENE & MARY F 
4820 SUTCLIFF AVE  
SAN JOSE, CA 95118 

 

SYVRUD JAMES P & MARY JEAN 
519 E INTERSTATE 30  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

HENDRICKS JAMES & BARBARA 
5903 VOLUNTEER PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CHURCH ON THE ROCK 
6005 DALROCK RD  

ROWLETT, TX 75088 
 

NEFF DARRYL LEE JR 
7214 BENNINGTON DR  

DALLAS, TX 75214 
 

 

ROCKWALL I S D 
801 E WASHINGTON ST  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

KELLY TANNER B 
9801 ROYAL LN APT 708 

DALLAS, TX 75231 
 

AMERICAN RESIDENTIAL LEASING COMPANY LLC 
ATTN: PROPERTY TAX DEPARTMENT 23975 

PARK SORRENTO, SUITE 300 
CALABASAS, CA 91302 

 

 

HAMBRICK GARY/GRACE HAMBRICK 
P.O. BOX 907  

BELMONT, TX 78604 
 

 

STEBBINS ROBERT A ESTATE 
ROBERT A STEBBINS II INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR 

PO BOX 101  
DENTON, TX 76202 

 

KJT FLYING PROPERTIES LLC 
PO BOX 1476  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

BURKE CASEY JOE AND ANDREA GAYDEN 
PO BOX 2514  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

  

     

     

     

64

RMiller
Oval

RMiller
Oval



PUBLIC NOTICE  
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 

Case No. Z2021-033: Amendment to PD-4 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB Companies on behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the 
approval of a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No. 01-26] to allow a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, 
Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a 12.1148-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally 
located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action necessary. 
 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, September 
14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

David Gonzales 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 

Your comments must be received by Monday, September 20, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 

Case No. Z2021-033: Amendment to PD-4 
 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

65

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


66



67



68



From: Addison Ferullo
To: Planning
Subject: Rockwall: The New Downtown Dallas
Date: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 2:45:42 PM

Good afternoon,

Not sure if this email will make its way to someone's eyes, but I thought I'd give it a try. I
don't have much to say other than I wish this city would stop building more apartment
complexes. I know I'm not the only Rockwallian that enjoys the small bits of nature around
our small city, and I am truly saddened to see yet another plan for more complexes.

Please consider keeping trees, preserving what little open space Rockwall has, and listening to
those that will actually be affected by it.

Kindest regards, 
Addison F. 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

69

mailto:addisonnf@gmail.com
mailto:planning@rockwall.com


From: Nelda Gillilan
To: Planning
Subject: Zoning change
Date: Wednesday, September 8, 2021 12:47:10 PM

Once again someone is wanting to change the zoning of the eastside of RidgeRoad between
Lakedale and Becky Lane.
We have lived for 40 years this year in the west side neighborhood of this planned zoning change.
We highly encourage the planning and zoning committee to deny this zoning change.
There are already apartment buildings just north of this area. We don’t need more apartments in
Rockwall.
Thanks.
Nelda Gillilan
310 Stonecrest Drive
Rockwall, TX 75087

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

70

mailto:nelda@larrygcpa.com
mailto:planning@rockwall.com


From: Sarah Freed
To: Planning
Subject: Z2021-033
Date: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 11:49:12 AM

I vehemently oppose rezoning this property to multi-family. Rockwall already has too many empty apartments in the
area! Our city infrastructure cannot support the traffic, nor is this in the best interest of our community. No, no-Just
NO!

Sent from my iPhone

________________________
This email was scanned by Bitdefender
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

71

mailto:sarah.freed@sbcglobal.net
mailto:planning@rockwall.com


1

Miller, Ryan

From: Bob Wacker <bobwacker@att.net>
Sent: Tuesday, September 14, 2021 3:05 AM
To: Miller, Ryan; Eric Chodun; Gonzales, David
Cc: Robert Weinstein
Subject: Z2021-033  The Edge Apartments

I did oppose The Lofts apartments site plan, SP2021-020, for many reasons. 
 
I do support The Edge mixed use zoning change, Z2021-033, for many reasons. 
 
I ask that you do not deny this request, and let City Council make the final 
decision based on a simple majority vote. 
 
 
Why do I support The Edge (PD-4) request ? 
 
 
1. If the PD-4 request is approved, this complex would be in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan,  
Scenic District land use: 
 
    DESCRIPTION - The area adjacent to Ridge Road represents a mixed-use district and includes 
                                 one of the City’s larger mixed residential/office developments (ie, The Commons). 
 
   STRATEGIES - Any development of vacant land or redevelopment of these areas should  
                               generally conform to the existing land uses. 
                          -  Infill development within this district should be compatible with the 
                              surrounding land uses. 
 
 
2.  The change in PD-4 is allowed per UDC page 5-7 but would still need an SUP. 
                      (B) Special Use Standards.  
                          Development within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District and the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District      
                          shall comply with the Land Use Schedule contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of this Unified  
                          Development Code (UDC); however, the following land uses may be considered on a case-by case basis 
                          through a Specific Use Permit:  

(1) Retail Store with Gasoline Sales (Any Number of Dispensers or Vehicles)  
(2) Car Wash (Any Type)  
(3) Structures Over 36-Feet in Height 
 

 
3. If approved, this change to PD-4 will have a minimum effect on the City’s Mixed Use breakdown. 
                        MU before change = 364.7 acres  ( 1.35% of City ) 
                         MU after change   = 376.9 acres  ( 1.39% of City) 
 
 
4.  PD-4 should have the same ‘opportunities’ as PD-1 has had (  per the PD-1 approved precedent-setting  
      changes ).    
                    1972   PD-4 was GR and NS, PD-1 was GR and MF-2 
                    1983   PD-4 removed NS       PD-1 added OF 
                    2002                                       PD-1 changed MF-15 and added TH 
                    2012                                       PD-1 added UR 
                    2016                                       PD-1 added BD (brewery and distillery) 
      This change would also negate this statement  contained in the packet … “Based on these facts the  
       proposed development  appears to be inconsistent with the area”.     It SHOULD be even more consistent. 
 
 
5. The EDGE density would be significantly less than one complex and comparable to others nearby: 

72



2

              Lofts          =78.7 units per acre 
              Edge         = 49.5 (ie, not “one of the densest developments within the City of Rockwall) 
              Lakeview  = 48.6 
              Commons = 36.4 
 
6.  Per County Judge David Sweet (GOP meeting Sep 11), the City of Rockwall population growth  
     currently is the lowest of the larger cities in Rockwall County.    The City needs to provide affordable  
      housing for first-time buyers wanting to move to Rockwall. Unfortunately the latest residential approvals 
      have been for very expensive homes ( eg, Saddlestar which advertises … “in the low $500’s”. 
 
 
7. The Edge is a true multi-use development, with shops, residences, and public amenities …  
     unlike the recently approved Lofts apartments  hose amenities ( eg rooftop restaurant)   
     are for residents only. 
 
 
8. The Edge will provide this district the opportunity to live up to its name, SCENIC. 
 
 
9. Finally, I believe this developer has the resources to build the MU complex 
    without any ‘public or government subsidies’, and has a proven track record of  
    maintaining ownership its properties. 
 
 
 
 
Again, please allow this to go forward to the Council for a simple majority vote. 
I don’t believe there are enough ‘non-discretionary’ items to justify denial of this request 
by P&Z. 
 
 
Regards, 
Bob Wacker 
 
 
Footnotes:  I know this will be in the packet, but could you please 
                  forward this email to the other members of P&Z.  I don’t 
                  have their addresses.  Also it might allow them more time 
                  to consider my comments above.      
 
                 My absence at the P&Z meeting, but not the ARB, will be because  
                 we have close relatives visiting and Tuesday at 6:30 pm is the only  
                 time we can “Sail With Scott”  … unless it rains ! 
 
 
 
      
 
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender  

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



WB Companies LLC
Robert Weinstein

917-670-8267
Robert@wbpropertygroup.com

495 Broadway 7th Floor
New York, NY 10012

August 18th 2021

Dear Mr. Miller,

Thank you for your time and your feedback. Please consider this my formal application letter to
rezone from PD-4 General Retail to PD-4 with Mixed Use parcel number: 0001-0000-0002-00-0R

We propose building the first Sky Restaurants with water features in Rockwall on top of two
phases of multifamily. Each 3,000 sq. ft. restaurant will be located on the 5th floor of the Parking
structure. We also propose 4,000 sq. ft of retail located on the ground floor of each building.

The restaurants and water features will be open to the public and will have unobstructed
views of Lake Ray Hubbard. The public will be able to enjoy roof time meals and relaxing time
by our water features for generations to come. We are currently in talks with three restaurant
owners, similar to Landry’s, to lease the restaurant space.

Phase I 350 Units with 3,000 sq. ft. restaurant and water feature and 4,000 sq. ft. of retail on
the ground floor

Phase II 350 Units 3,000 sq. ft. restaurant and water feature and 4,000 sq. ft. of retail on the
ground floor

Community Amenities Pool on parking structure Meditation garden with water feature Rooftop
restaurant Outdoor grilling area Running Trail Fitness Center Food Truck area & Picnic Tables
Yoga & Spin classes

Apartment Interiors Large master bedroom suites Expansive walk-in closets Vinyl flooring in
kitchen, living and dining areas Oversized soaking tubs Working kitchen island Modern slate GE
appliances Washer and dryer in-unit Side-by-side refrigerators

Our development exceeds, parking requirements green space and setbacks and is in compliance
with fire and storm water requirements.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Robert Weinstein

92



!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

TRACT 2
3.85 AC

TRACT 1
9.52 AC

S 1
3-3

-16
 W

29
.37

'

N 10-30-0 W
48'

N 1
3-5

3-0
 E

99
.4'

N 1
9-2

4-0
 E

10
0'

N 
0-2

7-0
 E

10
0'

N 6-12-0 W
100'

N 
6-3

4-0
 E

10
0'

N 1
2-3

0-0
 E

10
0'

N 1
2-2

6-0
 E

10
7.8

'

N 1
8-2

9-0
 E

12
5.4

'

N 2
2-3

0-0
 E 

24
5'

S 71-17-0 E 307.4'

S 71-17-0 E 400.3'

CB
 S 

21
-56

-54
 W

C 
 45

8.1
24

'
R  

21
43

.78
6'

D 1
2-1

6-3
AL

 45
9

S 1
8-4

3-0
 W

 66
6.5

'

CB  
S 3

3-0
-39

 W
C   7

93.
752

'
R  

 27
21.

625
'

D  
 16

-46
-12

AL
 79

6.5
92

N 1
5-1

7-0
 E 

82
3'

1407

1600

209

1410

1613

208

104

2013

106

1724

203

1728

104

206

2011

1405

103

1602

205

1903

2014

202

108

107

1504

102

112

107

1502

1412

1722

207

204

106

1901

103

1726

1603

105

201

101

1408

1407
1406

RID
GE

 RD

BECKY LN

LAKEVIEW DR

S LAKES
HO

RE
DR

S ALAMO RD

LAKEDALE DR

The data represented o n this map was o btained with the
best metho ds available. Data is supplied fro m vario us so urces
and accuracy may be o ut o f the City o f Ro ckwall’s co ntro l.
The verificatio n o f accuracy and / o r co ntent lies entirely with
the end user. The City o f Ro ckwall do es no t guarantee the
accuracy o f co ntained info rmatio n. All Info rmatio n is pro vided
‘As Is’ with no  warranty being made, either expressed o r implied.I 0 10050 Feet

Date: 8/24/2021 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT #4City of
Rockwall

POB

POB

93



0' 30' 80' 180'

SCALE

SITE PLAN 

26'-0" FIRELANE

2

6

'
-

0

"

 
F

I
R

E

L

A

N

E

26'-0" FIRELANE

2
6
'
-
0
"
 
F

I
R

E
L
A

N
E

5
' W

A
L
K

IN
G

 T
R

A
IL

5
' W

A
L
K

IN
G

 T
R

A
IL

5

'
 
W

A

L

K

I
N

G

 
T

R

A

I
L

5
' 
W

A
L
K

IN
G

 T
R

A
IL

5

'
 

W

A

L

K

I

N

G

 

T

R

A

I

L

5

'
 

W

A

L

K

I

N

G

 

T

R

A

I

L

5

'
 
W

A

L

K

I
N

G

 
T

R

A

I
L

5

' 
W

A

L

K

I
N

G

 
T

R

A

I
L

5' WALKING TRAIL

5' WALKING TRAIL

5
'
 
W

A
L
K

I
N

G
 
T

R
A

I
L

5
'
 
W

A
L
K

I
N

G
 
T

R
A

I
L

R
ID

G
E R

O
AD

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

RAILROAD RAILROAD

2

6

'
-
0

"
 
F

I
R

E

L

A

N

E

12

16

16

12

L CARC

L1
L3

L2
L4

go
v

UNIT B3

UNIT B2

UNIT B2 UNIT B2

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1 UNIT A1

UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT B2

10

10

4

UNIT B5

UNIT B2

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

POOL

COURTYARD

APPROX.

7,000 S.F.

2-STORY

CLUBHOUSE

2

6

'
-
0

"
 
F

I
R

E

L

A

N

E

2
6
'-
0
"
 
F

I
R

E
L
A

N

E

2
6
'-
0
"
 
F

I
R

E

L
A

N

E

10

10

4

10

6

5

P

R

O

P

E

R

T

Y

 
L

I
N

E

2

6

'-
0

"
 
F

I
R

E

L

A

N

E

P

R

O

P

E

R

T

Y

 
L
I
N

E

"SKY CAFE"

APPROX. 4,000 S.F.

TOP LEVEL OF GARAGE

"WATER

FEATURE"

APPROX. 1,300 S.F.

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

UNIT B3 UNIT B3 UNIT B3

UNIT B1 UNIT A1

UNIT B1

UNIT A1

UNIT B1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT B1

UNIT A1

LANDCAPE

COURTYARD

LANDCAPE

COURTYARD

UNIT A1

LANDCAPE

COURTYARD

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

ACCESS TO

GARAGE FOR

ADDITIONAL

RETAIL PARKING

UNIT B5

UNIT A1

UNIT B2

2
6
'
-
0
"
 
F

I
R

E
L
A

N
E

UNIT A1

2
6
'-
0
"
 F

IR
E

L
A

N
E

2
0
' 
L
A

N

D

S
C

A
P

E
 
B

U

F
F

E
R

2

0

'
 
L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

2
0
' L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 B
U

F
F

E
R

2
0
' 
L
A

N

D

S
C

A
P

E
 B

U

F
F

E
R

5
' 
W

A
L
K

IN
G

 T
R

A
IL

10

10

10

10

+4 - UNITS ON CLUB

5

UNIT B2

UNIT A1

UNIT B3

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

UNIT A2 UNIT A2 UNIT A2 UNIT A2

UNIT B2

UNIT A2 UNIT A2 UNIT A2 UNIT A2

UNIT B2

UNIT A2UNIT A2

UNIT B2

UNIT A2 UNIT A1

UNIT B2

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

POOL

COURTYARD

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A1

UNIT B3

UNIT A2

UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1 UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT B1

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT B1

UNIT A1 UNIT A1

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A2

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

UNIT B1

COURTYARD

UNIT B2 UNIT B2UNIT A2 UNIT A2

APPROX.

7,000 S.F.

2-STORY

CLUBHOUSE

+4 - UNITS ON CLUB

1

GARAGE

ENTRY/

EXIT

GARAGE

ENTRY/

EXIT

UNIT A1

UNIT A1

"SKY CAFE"

APPROX. 4,000 S.F.

TOP LEVEL OF BUILDING OVER

RETAIL

T:
\W

B 
Pr

op
er

ty 
Gr

ou
p\F

utu
re

 S
ite

s\R
oc

kw
all

\P
re

-D
es

ign
\A

rch
ite

ctu
re

\W
B 

Ro
ck

wa
ll A

pa
rtm

en
ts 

Si
te 

Pl
an

_O
PT

IO
N_

5.d
wg

JMTAAG

F
r
i
d
a
y
,
 
S

e
p
t
e
m

b
e
r
 
1
0
,
 
2
0
2
1
 
8
:
5
0
:
3
5
 
A

M

  SITE PLAN

SEAL

RE
VI

SI
ON

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO.

ISSUED FOR:

SUBMITTAL DATE:

SCALE:

T
h

e
 
E

d
g

e
 
a

t
 
R

o
c
k
w

a
l
l

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

09/07/2021

DD REVIEW SET

PHASE # 1

325 TOTAL UNITS:  - 5 stories w/ parking structure &

retail portion

70% "A-units" - 227 units

30% "B-units" - 98 units

PARKING GARAGE:

Parking Req'd:

1.0 for 1- Bedroom = 227 x 1.25 =  284 spaces

2 for 2- Bedroom = 98  x 1.75 =     172 spaces

1/100  Restaurant Retail = 3,000 s.f. = 30 spaces

1/250  General Retail      = 10,000 s.f. = 40 spaces

(526 Total parking spaces required)

PARKING PROVIDED:

(Garage) :Approx. 88 spaces per tier ( 5 levels)

- total of approx. 440 spaces provided.

(Surface): 90 spaces

Grand Total parking spaces provided: 530

PHASE # 2

275 TOTAL UNITS: - 4 stories on podium w/ retail

portion

70% "A-units" - 192 units

30% "B-units" - 83  units

PARKING GARAGE:

Parking Req'd:

1.0 for 1- Bedroom = 192 x1.25 = 240 spaces

2 for 2- Bedroom = 83 x 1.75 =     145 spaces

1/100  Restaurant Retail = 3,000 s.f. = 30 spaces

1/250  General Retail      = 10,000 s.f. = 40 spaces

(455 Total parking spaces required)

PARKING PROVIDED:

(Garage) :Approx. 440 spaces in podium.

( Surface ): 25 spaces

Grand Total parking spaces provided: 465

BASEMENT LEVEL

Basement level - shown hatched

UNIT SQUARE FOOTAGES:

Basement level - shown hatched

-Unit A1 - Approx. 700,.s.f    (+-)

-Unit A2 - Approx. 750 s.f.    (+-)

-Unit B1 - Approx. 950 s.f.    (+-)

-Unit B2 - Approx. 1,025 s.f. (+-)

-Unit B3 - Approx. 1,100 s.f. (+-)

PHASE # 1 PHASE # 2

Retail Area - shown hatched

94

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9



12

16

16

12

L CARC
L1
L3

L2
L4

go
v

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

100'-0"

T.O. SLAB

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4

"

9
'
-
1

 
1

/
8
"

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4

"

9
'
-
1

 
1
/
8

"

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4
"

9
'
-
1

 
1

/
8
"

114-1 1/8"

T.O. PLATE

115'-7 7/8"

T.O. DECK

126'-3 3/4"

T.O. DECK

136'-11 5/8"

T.O. DECK

135'-4 7/8"

T.O. PLATE

124'-9"

T.O. PLATE

7
2

'
-
2

 
5

/
8
"

1
4

'
-
1

 
1
/
8

"

146'-0 3/4"

T.O. PLATE

9
'
-
1

 
1
/
8

"

147'-7 1/2"

T.O. DECK

156'-8 5/8"

T.O. PLATE

1
'
-
6

 
3
/
4

"
2

'
-
0

"

158'-8 5/8"

T.O. DECK

162'-8 5/8"

T.O. PARAPET

4
'
-
0

"
9

'
-
6

"

172'-2 5/8"

T.O. PLATE SKY BAR

SITE - KEY LEGEND

02 01

A5.01

T:
\W

B 
Pr

op
er

ty 
Gr

ou
p\F

utu
re

 S
ite

s\R
oc

kw
all

\P
re

-D
es

ign
\A

rch
ite

ctu
re

\W
B 

Ro
ck

wa
ll E

lev
ati

on
s_

RE
TA

IL_
9-

10
-2

1.d
wg

JMTAAG

F
r
i
d

a
y
,
 
S

e
p

t
e

m
b

e
r
 
1

0
,
 
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
0

3
:
3

1
 
A

M

  A5.01 PHASE 1 CONCEPT ELEVATIONS

SEAL

RE
VI

SI
ON

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO.

ISSUED FOR:

SUBMITTAL DATE:

SCALE:

T
h

e
 
E

d
g

e
 
a

t
 
R

o
c
k
w

a
l
l

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

09/07/2021

DD REVIEW SET

SCALE

01

CONCEPTUAL-EXTERIOR ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0" PHASE 1

SCALE

02

CONCEPTUAL-EXTERIOT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0" PHASE 1

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E
M

A
T

C
H

L
I
N

E

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E

SCALE

03

CONCEPTUAL-FRONT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0" PHASE 1

03

95

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9



100'-0"

T.O. SLAB

1
'
-
6
 
3
/
4
"

9
'
-
1
 
1
/
8
"

1
'
-
6
 
3
/
4
"

9
'
-
1
 
1
/
8
"

1
'
-
6
 
3
/
4
"

9
'
-
1
 
1
/
8
"

114-1 1/8"

T.O. PLATE

115'-7 7/8"

T.O. DECK

126'-3 3/4"

T.O. DECK

136'-11 5/8"

T.O. DECK

135'-4 7/8"

T.O. PLATE

124'-9"

T.O. PLATE

7
2
'
-
2
 
5
/
8
"

1
'
-
6
"

1
4
'
-
1
 
1
/
8
"

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

158'-8 5/8"

T.O. DECK

146'-0 3/4"

T.O. PLATE

1
2
'
-
0
"

160'-2 5/8"

T.O. DECK SKY BAR

172'-2 5/8"

T.O. PLATE SKY BAR

9
'
-
1
 
1
/
8
"

147'-7 1/2"

T.O. DECK

156'-8 5/8"

T.O. PLATE

1
'
-
6
 
3
/
4
"

100'-0"

T.O. SLAB

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4

"

9
'
-
1

 
1

/
8

"

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4

"

9
'
-
1

 
1

/
8

"

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4

"

9
'
-
1

 
1

/
8

"

114-1 1/8"

T.O. PLATE

115'-7 7/8"

T.O. DECK

126'-3 3/4"

T.O. DECK

136'-11 5/8"

T.O. DECK

135'-4 7/8"

T.O. PLATE

124'-9"

T.O. PLATE

7
2

'
-
2

 
5

/
8

"

1
'
-
6

"

1
4

'
-
1

 
1

/
8

"

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

158'-8 5/8"

T.O. DECK

146'-0 3/4"

T.O. PLATE

1
2

'
-
0

"

160'-2 5/8"

T.O. DECK SKY BAR

172'-2 5/8"

T.O. PLATE SKY BAR

9
'
-
1

 
1

/
8

"

147'-7 1/2"

T.O. DECK

156'-8 5/8"

T.O. PLATE

1
'
-
6

 
3

/
4

"

SKY BAR

OUTDOOR

SEATING

AREA

SITE - KEY LEGEND

02 01

A5.01

T:
\W

B 
Pr

op
er

ty 
Gr

ou
p\F

utu
re

 S
ite

s\R
oc

kw
all

\P
re

-D
es

ign
\A

rch
ite

ctu
re

\W
B 

Ro
ck

wa
ll E

lev
ati

on
s_

RE
TA

IL_
9-

10
-2

1.d
wg

JMTAAG

F
r
i
d

a
y
,
 
S

e
p

t
e

m
b

e
r
 
1

0
,
 
2

0
2

1
 
9

:
5

5
:
3

9
 
A

M

  A5.01 PHASE 1 CONCEPT ELEVATIONS

SEAL

RE
VI

SI
ON

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO.

ISSUED FOR:

SUBMITTAL DATE:

SCALE:

T
h

e
 
E

d
g

e
 
a

t
 
R

o
c
k
w

a
l
l

R
O

C
K

W
A

L
L
,
 
T

E
X

A
S

09/07/2021

DD REVIEW SET

SCALE

01

CONCEPTUAL-EXTERIOR ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0" PHASE 2

SCALE

02

CONCEPTUAL-EXTERIOT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0" PHASE 2

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E
M

A
T

C
H

L
I
N

E

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E
M

A
T

C
H

L
I
N

E

SCALE

03

CONCEPTUAL-FRONT ELEVATION

3/32" = 1'-0" PHASE 2

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E
M

A
T

C
H

L
I
N

E

96

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 x 6 STUD WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9



14 SCENIC DISTRICT 
 
 
 
   

DISTRICT DESCRIPTION 
The Scenic District is situated between S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and Ridge Road [FM-740], 
which are two (2) of the City’s major north/south arterials.  This district is significantly 
developed and has residential land uses that range from medium to high density.  The area 
adjacent to Ridge Road represents a mixed-use district and includes one of the City’s larger 
mixed residential/office developments (i.e. the Commons).  In addition, this district has a large 
percentage (~26.58%) of public and quasi-public land uses, which include Rockwall High 
School, Yellow Jacket Park, Heritage Christian Academy and Our Lady of the Lake Catholic 
Church.  This district should continue to function as it does today, with the vacant areas -- 
designated for Commercial land uses -- adjacent to Ridge Road [FM-740] eventually 
developing with office or neighborhood/convenience center uses that will service the residential 
areas on the west side of Ridge Road. 

DISTRICT STRATEGIES 
The Scenic District being significantly developed is not anticipated to 
change or transition in the future.  As a result, the following are the 
strategies for this district:  
❶ Live/Work.  The properties designated for Live/Work land uses (i.e.

at the end of Old County Road) have limited access and low visibility 
making the land not suitable for retail land uses.  In addition, one of
the three (3) properties has already transitioned to a non-residential
land use and one (1) of the properties is currently vacant.  The
flexibility provided by the Live/Work designation allows these
properties to establish unique land uses that are destination type
uses.

❷ Mixed-Use.  The mixed-use areas in this district are mostly
established and are anticipated to continue to function as they do
today.  Any development of vacant land or redevelopment of these
areas should generally conform to the existing land uses.

❸ Neighborhood/Convenience Centers.  The commercial in this district
is intended to support the existing and proposed residential
developments in and adjacent to the district, and should be
compatible in scale with the adjacent residential structures.  In
addition, these properties should use berms, landscaping and large
buffers to transition uses.

❹ Infill Development.  Infill development within this district should be
compatible with the surrounding land uses or conform to the Land
Use Plan Designations depicted on the district map.

POINTS OF REFERENCE 
A. Rockwall Commons
B. Spring Sports Complex
C. Waterstone Estates Subdivision
D. Rockwall High School
E. Yellow Jacket Park

LAND USE PALETTES
 Current Land Use 
 Future Land Use 

 DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
(PAGE 1-14) 

E

D

B

A

02.87% 
 

15.14% 
 

05.68% 
 

21.75% 
 

20.90% 
 

01.04% 
 

11.14% 
 13.19% 

 

08.30% 
 

MINOR COLLECTOR 
M4D 

CEMETERY (CEM) 7.22-ACRES 

COMMERCIAL/RETAIL (CR) 20.89-ACRES 

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HDR) 54.77-ACRES 

LIVE/WORK (LW) 2.63-ACRES 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) 28.04-ACRES 

MIXED USE (MU) 33.21-ACRES 

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE (OS) 38.13-ACRES 

PUBLIC (P) 52.63-ACRES 

QUASI-PUBLIC (QP) 14.31-ACRES 

❷ The Commons

59.35% 
 

COMMERCIAL 14.97% 

RESIDENTIAL 59.35% 

MIXED USE 25.68% 

25.68% 
 

14.97% 
 

CU
RR

EN
T 1,040 

71 
2,309 

BU
ILD

 O
UT

 

1,092 
2,424 

%
 O

F 
RO

CK
W

AL
L 5.20% 

3.91% 
3.88% 

❸ Future Neighborhood/ 
Convenience Center

❹ Current Suburban Residential

C 

= SUBJECT PROPERTY

97

RMiller
Oval

RMiller
Oval



CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 4 (PD-4) [ORDINANCE NO.’S 72-03 & 01-26] AND THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 4 
(PD-4) TO ALLOW MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT ON A 12.1148-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 2 OF THE D. ATKINS 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED 
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall has received a request from Robert Weinstein of WB Companies on behalf 
of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of an amendment Planned Development 
District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No.’s 72-03 & 01-26] for the purpose of allowing a Mixed-Use Development 
(i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a 12.1148-acre tract of land identified as Tract 
2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, which is more fully 
described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, and hereinafter shall be referred to as 
the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of the 
City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public hearings and afforded 
a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the 
affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, 
has concluded that Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No.’s 72-03 & 01-26] and the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in Ordinance 
No.’s 72-03 & 01-26; 

SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes authorized 
by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] 
of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and as 
maybe amended in the future; 

SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with the Concept 
Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as 
Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the amended zoning classification for 
the Subject Property; 

SECTION 4. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with the Concept 
Building Elevations, depicted in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the amended zoning 
classification for the Subject Property; 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

98



SECTION 5. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with the PD 
Development Standards, described in Exhibit ‘E’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference as Exhibit ‘E’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the amended zoning 
classification for the Subject Property; 
 
SECTION 6. That the official zoning map of the City of Rockwall, Texas be corrected to reflect the change 
in zoning described here in. 
 
SECTION 7. That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not to exceed 
the sum of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every day such offense shall 
continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 
 
SECTION 8. That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section, 
paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged invalid, the 
adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application 
of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation or situation, nor shall 
adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance 
No. 04-38], and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of 
the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be 
severable; 
 
SECTION 9. The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this ordinance 
and any provision of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] of any provision of the City 
Code, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is different 
from and inconsistent with this ordinance.  References to zoning district regulations or other standards in 
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 04-38] (including references to the Unified Development 
Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits hereto are those in effect 
on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 10.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS THE 
4TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 
 
1st Reading: September 20, 2021 
 

2nd Reading: October 4, 2021 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

99



BEING two (2) tracts out of that certain lot, tract or parcel of land lying in and situated in the City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, a part of the Daniel Atkins Survey, and being Tracts 4 & 5 out of a subdivision of 
that certain 49.56-acres of land in the B. J. T. Lewis and Daniel Atkins survey as subdivided by C. F. 
Rhoades and wife, and conveyed to Al I. Folsom and Arthur A. Folsom by five (5) separate deeds, being 
numbered in Tracts 1-5 inclusive, the above described two (2) tracts being Numbers 4 & 5 of said 
subdivision, and being the same property conveyed by Al I. Folsom and wife, Ita H. Folsom, and Arthur A. 
Folsom and wife, Betty S. Folsom, to the Folsom Company by deed dated May 2, 1953, of record in Volume 
49, Page 249, Deed of Records of Rockwall County, Texas, less a strip off the west ride of said two (2) 
tracts conveyed to the State of Texas for right-of-way purposes for FM-740; said two (2) tracts described 
as follows: 
 
TRACT NO. 1:  
 
BEGINNING at a stake in the west right-of-way of M.K.T. Railroad 1032-feet South 18 Degree 43’ West of 
the northeast survey line of D. Atkins Survey;  
 
THENCE South 13 Degrees 3' 16” West 29.37-feet for a point; 
 
THENCE South 18 Degrees 43' West 666.5-feet to point of curve along Railroad Right-of-Way, following a 
curve having a radius of 2143.786 feet, a chord distance of 458.124 feet, chord bearing of S 21° 56’ 54” for 
a corner;  
 
THENCE North 71 Degrees 17' West 321-feet to a stake in the east margin of said FM-740;  
 
THENCE along the east right-of-way line of said road as follows:  

North 18 Degrees 29' East 125.4-feet;  
North 15 Degrees 17' East 825-feet;  
North 13 Degrees 53' East 99.4-feet;  
North 12 Degrees 26' East 107.8-feet to a stake for a corner;  

 
THENCE South 71 Degree 17' East 339.5-feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING containing 9.52-acres. 
 
TRACT NO. 2:  
 
BEGINNING at a stake in the southwest intersection of the M.K.T. Railroad right-of-way and the northeast 
intersection of FM-740;  
 
THENCE along the east right-of-way line of said road as follows:  

North 10 Degrees 30' West 48-feet;  
North 6 Degrees 34' East 100-feet;  
North 12 Degrees 30' East 100-feet;  
North 19 Degrees 24' East 100 feet; 
North 22 Degrees 30' East 245-feet to a stake for a. corner;  

 
THENCE South 71 Degrees 17' East 321-feet to a stake in the west right-of-way of said railroad;  
 
THENCE along the west right-of-way of said Railroad Right-of-Way, following a curve having a radius of 
2,721.625 feet, a chord distance of 793.752 feet, chord bearing of S 33° 0’ 39” W to the PLACE OF 
BEGINNING containing 3.85 acres. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

100



  
D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

101



D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

102



  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

103



  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

104



(A) Permitted Uses.  The Subject Property shall be subject to the land uses permitted in the General Retail 
(GR) District contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning change, and 
as maybe amended in the future, with the following additional land uses and restrictions: 
 
Land Uses Permitted By-Right: 
 
 Multi-Family Development (as regulated by this Planned Development District Ordinance). 

 
Prohibited Land Uses: 
 
 Animal Clinic for Small Animals without Outdoor Pens 
 Animal Boarding/Kennel without Outside Pens 
 Convent, Monastery, or Temple 
 Hotel or Motel (i.e. Limited Service, Full Service, Residence) 
 Hotel, Residence 
 Caretakers Quarters/Domestic or Security Unit 
 Convalescent Care Facility/Nursing Home 
 Daycare with Seven (7) or More Children 
 Emergency Ground Ambulance Service 
 Group or Community Home 
 Hospice 
 Hospital 
 Public Library, Art Gallery or Museum 
 Local Post Office 
 Public or Private Primary School 
 Public or Private Secondary School 
 Cemetery/Mausoleum 
 Mortuary of Funeral Chapel 
 Temporary Carnival, Circus, or Amusement Ride 
 Outdoor Commercial Amusement/Recreation 
 Indoor Gun Club with Skeet or Target 
 Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic 
 Garden Supply/Plant Nursery 
 Night Club, Discotheque, or Dance Hall 
 Secondhand Dealer 
 Full Service Car Wash and Auto Detail 
 Self Service Car Wash 
 Service Station 
 Mining and Extraction of (Sand, Gravel, Oil and/or Other Materials) 
 Helipad 
 Railroad Yard or Shop  
 Transit Passenger Facility 
 
Land Uses that Require a Specific Use Permit (SUP): 
 
 Animal Hospital, Clinic 
 Social Service Provider 
 

(B) Retail/Restaurant Land Use Requirements 
 
(1) Restaurants.  One (1) restaurant with a minimum of 3,000 SF in area shall be constructed with 

each phase of the proposed development.  These restaurants shall be situated on the highest floor 
level of each proposed building and generally conform with the Concept Plan and Building 
Elevations depicted in Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’.   
 

(2) Retail. A minimum of 10,000 SF of retail area shall be constructed with each phase of the proposed 
development and generally conform to the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘C’. 

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

105



(C) Development Standards. The Subject Property shall be developed in accordance with the Concept 
Plan and Concept Building Elevations depicted in Exhibits ‘C’ & ‘D’ of this ordinance.  In addition, 
development of the Subject Property shall adhere to the following requirements: 

 
(1) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development 

District ordinance, any development of the Subject Property shall conform to the requirements 
stipulated for the General Retail (GR) District and the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District as specified 
by Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).  The Multi-
Family Development land use shall be limited to a maximum permissible density of 50.00 dwelling 
units per gross acre of land; however, in no case should the total number of dwelling units exceed 
600.  In addition, the development shall conform to the following standards: 
 
Table 1: Lot Dimensional Requirements 
 

Minimum Lot Width 60’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 100’ 
Minimum Lot Area 10,000 SF 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 15’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 10’ 
Maximum Height 75’ 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 10’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 90% 

 
(2) Unit Composition. The unit composition shall conform to the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ 

and stated in Table 2 below for the Multi-Family Development land use; however, in no case should 
the minimum unit size for any phase or building be less than 700 SF and the average unit area 
decrease below 805 SF. 
 
Table 2: Unit Composition 

     

Unit Type Minimum Unit Size (SF) Phase #1 Phase #2 Total Units 
A1 700 SF 70% or 

227 Units 
70% or 

192 Units 419 Units A2 750 SF 
B1 950 SF 30% or 

98 Units 
30% or 
83 Units 181 Units B2 1,025 SF 

B3 1,100 SF 
Maximum Units: 325 Units 275 Units 600 Units 

 
(3) Parking and Loading Standards. The minimum parking requirements shall be as follows:  

 
Table 3: Parking Requirements 
 

Unit/Land Use Types Parking Space Requirements 
A1 1.25 Parking Space/Unit 
A2 1.25 Parking Space/Unit 
B1 1.75 Parking Space/Unit 
B2 1.75 Parking Space/Unit 
B3 1.75 Parking Space/Unit 

Restaurant 1 Parking Space/100 SF 
Retail 1 Parking Space/250 SF 
Office 1 Parking Space/300 SF 

 

 
(4) Building Standards. The building elevations shall generally conform to the Concept Building 

Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘D’; however, all development shall adhere to the following building 
standards: 
 
(a) Masonry Requirements. The minimum masonry requirement for each exterior façade shall be 

90%.  For the purposes of this ordinance, the masonry shall be limited to full width brick, natural 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

106



stone, and cast stone.  Cementaceous fiberboard horizontal lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or 
Hardy Plank) and stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff) 
may be used for up to 50% of the exterior of the building; however, stucco may not be used 
within the first four (4) feet above grade on a façade visible from a public street or open space.  
A minimum of 20% natural stone is required on all building façades.  

 
(b) Roof Design Requirements. All buildings shall be designed such that no roof mounted 

mechanical equipment (i.e. HVAC, satellite, vents, etc.) shall be visible from any direction.  
Note: Screening of mechanical equipment is necessary for all equipment regardless of location 
(i.e. roof mounted, ground mounted, or otherwise attached to the building and/or located on the 
site).  

 
Screening of roof mounted mechanical equipment and/or other rooftop appurtenances shall be 
accomplished through the construction of an architectural feature, which is integral to the 
building's design and ensures that such equipment is not visible from adjacent public rights-of-
way. 

 
(c) Architectural Requirements. All buildings shall be architecturally finished on all four (4) sides 

with the same materials, detailing and features.  In addition, all buildings shall be subject to the 
architectural requirements of the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District contained in Section 06, 
General Overlay Districts, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 
 

(d) Parking Garage. The development should incorporate structured parking that is visually 
screened from public view on all sides.   

 
(D) Landscaping and Hardscaping Standards. 

 
(1) Landscape Requirements. Landscaping shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.  All 

Canopy/Shade Trees planted within this development shall be a minimum of four (4) caliper inches 
in size and all Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height 
at the time of planting. The tree species for this project shall be in accordance with the trees 
permitted within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District as specified in Appendix C, Landscaping 
Guidelines and Requirements, of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 

 
(2) Landscape Buffers. A minimum of a 20-foot landscape buffer shall be provided along the frontage 

of Ridge Road.  Each landscape buffer shall incorporate a minimum of three (3) canopy trees and 
four (4) accent trees per 100-feet linear feet of buffer area.  To avoid conflict with utilities, the buffer 
trees along Ridge Road shall be located a minimum of ten (10) feet from the existing 16-inch water 
line and any proposed sanitary sewer and storm lines.  The developer shall also be responsible for 
the construction of a five (5) sidewalk along Ridge Road located two (2) feet inside the right-of-way 
(i.e. setback a minimum of two [2] from the back of curb).  

 
(3) Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping located within 

common areas, landscape buffers and/or open space.  Irrigation installed in these areas shall be 
designed by a Texas licensed irrigator or landscape architect. 

 
(4) Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall be reviewed 

and approved with the PD Site Plan and/or Opens Space/Amenity Plan. 
 
(E) Trash Receptacles. Trash and recycling receptacles shall be four (4) sided, with eight (8) foot walls 

constructed and cladded with materials matching the primary structures, and have a self-latching gate.  
All trash and recycling receptacles shall be internal to the site and not be situated within any established 
building setbacks or landscape buffers.   

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

107



(F) Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in the Unified 
Development Code shall apply to any application for variances to this ordinance. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

108



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT:
Z2021-034; ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) DISTRICT AT THE INTERSECTION OF AIRPORT
ROAD AND JOHN KING BOULEVARD

Attachments
Memorandum

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher of Masterplan on
behalf of Saro Partners, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an
Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District for a 5.07-acre tract of land identified
as Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205
BY-OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and
Airport Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council will need to announce the updated public hearing date of October 18, 2021;
however, no further action will be required.

109



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
CC: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: September 20, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Z2021-034; Zoning Change from Agricultural (AG) District to Light Industrial (LI) District at the 
Intersection of Airport Road and John King Boulevard 

 
 

On September 14, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to table Case No. Z2021-034 to the 
October 12, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Moeller absent. According 
to Subsection 02.03(C)(3) of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC), “(a) public hearing may be continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council … (t)he continuation of a 
public hearing shall be to a specific time and date no later than 30-days from the first or most recent public hearing … [and] 
(t)he announcement of a continuation at a public hearing shall be sufficient notice and no additional notice is required.” Since 
this case was advertised for a public hearing at the September 20, 2021 City Council meeting, the City Council will need to 
announce the updated public hearing date of October 18, 2021; however, no further action will be required. Should the City 
Council have any questions staff will be available at the October 18, 2021 City Council meeting. 

110



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: Z2021-035; ZONING CHANGE AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO A
NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Property Owner Notifications (1)
Property Owner Notifications (2)
Property Owner Notifications (3)
Public Notice
Applicant's Letter
Concept Plan
Conceptual Building Elevations
Northeast Residential District (Comprehensive Plan)
Neighborhood Services (NS) District Land Uses
Residential Office (RO) District Land Uses
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of
BNSBS, L. P. on behalf of Bradley Gideon for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning
Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-
acre identified as Tract 1-04 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass
Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersection of John
King Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed

111



The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed
zoning change.

112



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: September 20, 2021 
 

APPLICANT: Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry; BNSBS LP 
 

CASE NUMBER: Z2021-035; Zoning Change Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBS, L. P. on behalf of 
Bradley Gideon for the approval of a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) 
District for a 2.751-acre identified as Tract 1-04 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located 
at the southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property was annexed on March 16, 1998 by Ordinance No. 98-10.  At the time of annexation, the subject 
property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  Currently, the subject property is a 2.751-acre vacant tract of land. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The applicants -- Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBS, L. P. -- are requesting to change the zoning of the subject 
property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for the purpose of constructing a ~16,000 
SF retail/office facility. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is located at the southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Quail Run Road.  The 
land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property is E. Quail Run Road, which is identified as a M4U (i.e. major collector, four 

[4] lane, undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  Continuing north is Planned Development District 77 (PD-77) [i.e. the Gideon Grove North 
Subdivision] consisting of 72 single-family residential lots allowing for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses.  
Beyond this is a residential subdivision that is located outside of the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall.  

 
South: Directly south of the subject property is John King Boulevard, which is identified as a P6D (i.e. principle arterial, 

six [6] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 
2040 Comprehensive Plan.  Continuing south is Planned Development District 5 (PD-5) [i.e. Phase 8A of the 
Caruth Lake Estates Subdivision], which consists of 63 single-family residential lots allowing for Single-Family 10 
(SF-10) District land uses.  

 
East: Directly east of the subject property is E. Old Quail Run Road, which is identified as a R2 [i.e. residential , two (2) 

lane, undivided roadway] on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  Continuing east are two (2) lots (i.e. Lot 1 [1.82-acres], and Lot 2 [2.12-acres], Block A, 
Utley Addition) zoned Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District.  Beyond this is a 17.51-acre tract of land (i.e. 
Lot 1, Block A, Cox Acres), which has a single-family home situated on the property and is zoned Agricultural 
(AG) District.    

113



West: Directly west of the subject property is John King Boulevard, which is identified as a P6D (i.e. principle arterial, six 
[6] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan.  Continuing west is Planned Development District 84 (PD-84) [i.e. the GideonGrove South 
Subdivision], which consists of 84 single-family residential lots allowing for Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land 
uses.  

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST 
 
If the zoning change is approved, the applicant is proposing to construct a ~16,000 SF single-story, office/retail building on the 
subject property.  This development would then be subject to the land uses and requirements stipulated by Subsection 04.03, 
Neighborhood Services (NS) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
A summary of the proposed development is as follows: 
 

Density and Dimensional Requirements for the Neighborhood Service (NS) District 
 

Minimum Lot Width  60’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 100’ 
Minimum Lot Area 6,000 SF 
Minimum Front Yard Setback (1) 15’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback  0’/5’ 
Minimum Building Size (SF) (2) 5,000 SF 
Maximum Height 36’ 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback  20’ 
Floor Area Ratio N/A 
Maximum Lot Coverage 40% 
Minimum Distance Between Buildings(3) 0’/15’ 

 

General Notes: 
1:  Parking should not be located between the front façade and the property line. 
2:  A maximum building size of 5,000 SF in area, unless otherwise approved through a SUP by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and City Council. 
3: A minimum of a 15-foot separation between buildings without a fire rated wall shall be required. 

 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Based on the applicant’s submittal the following infrastructure would be required to be constructed if this request is approved: 
 
(1) Water Improvements. The development will be required to tie into the existing 12-inch waterline on the west side of E. Old 

Quail Run Road. 
 
(2) Sewer Improvements. The development will be required to tie to the existing 10-inch sanitary sewer line located adjacent 

to and along the eastern property line of the subject property and along the west side of John King Boulevard.  
Additionally, the applicant will be required to pay pro-rata for sewer improvements in the amount of $593.37/acre.   

 
(3) Roadways. E. Quail Run Road is a M4D (i.e. major collector, four [4] lane, divided roadway), which requires a minimum of 

an 85-foot right-of-way and a four (4) lane divided concrete street.  Old E. Quail Run Road is identified as a R2U (i.e. 
residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway), which requires a minimum of right-of-way width of 50-feet.  The applicant will 
need to verify the right-of-way of both of these roadways and ensure the required right-of-way has been dedicated (i.e. 
42.5-feet as measured from the centerline of the roadway for E. Quail Run Road and 25-feet as measured from the 
centerline for Old E. Quail Run Road).  If additional right-of-way is needed this will be required to be dedicated at the time 
of final plat. 

 
(4) Drainage.  Detention will be required and sized per the Engineering Department’s Standards of Design and Construction 

Manual. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY’S CODES 
 

114



According to Subsection 04.03, Neighborhood Services (NS) District, of Section 04, Commercial Districts, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the Neighborhood Services (NS) District is “…a zoning 
district intended to provide limited retail land uses near neighborhoods for the purpose of supplying the day-to-day retail and 
personal service needs of residents.  The Neighborhood Services (NS) District is typically located at limited corner locations 
on arterials in existing developments, and is intended to serve small service areas.  The average site is from one-half (½) 
acres to a maximum of two (2) acres.  Since these sites are typically small and surrounded by residential development they 
can appear to be spot zones; however, the Comprehensive Plan acknowledges the need to create neighborhood units, which 
involve the need for limited retail and service uses in close proximity to neighborhoods…”  Additionally, the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) goes on to say that “(t)hese convenience centers should be constructed to a residential scale, and 
be visually and dimensionally compatible to adjacent residential developments.  The Neighborhood Services (NS) District 
should not contain uses that create excessive amounts of traffic, noise, litter or that would not be conducive to residential 
adjacency.  Due to the residential adjacency of this zoning district, increased landscaping and buffering requirements are 
necessary.”  In this case, the applicant is proposing to construct a ~16,000 SF office/retail building on the subject property.  It 
should be noted that the Neighborhood Services (NS) District limits the size of buildings to a maximum of 5,000 SF.  
Structures over 5,000 SF in area require approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP).  Based on the concept plan submitted by 
the applicants, a Specific Use Permit (SUP) would be required if the zoning change was approved.   
 
CONFORMANCE WITH OURHOMETOWN VISION 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
According to the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for Low Density 
Residential land uses and is situated within the Northeast Residential District.  The Northeast Residential District, is 
“…characterized by its established low-density residential subdivisions and rural/estate style lots.  This district is anticipated to 
be a future growth center for the City, having several large vacant tracts of land suitable for low-density residential 
development.”  Currently, the subject property is designated for Low Density Residential land uses, which is defined as two (2) 
to two and one-half (2 ½) dwelling units per acre.  If approved, the applicants’ proposed request would require this designation 
to be changed from Low Density Residential to a Commercial/Retail designation.  According to the Land Use Designations 
contained in the Comprehensive Plan, “(t)he Commercial/Retail land use category is characterized by single to multi-tenant 
commercial retail centers along major arterials at key intersections.  These areas are typically considered to be convenience 
shopping centers and serve adjacent residential subdivisions … (t)hese areas should be designed with the pedestrian in mind 
and provide connections between the commercial land use and the adjacent residential subdivisions.”  The applicants’ request 
does appear to be in line with the land use designation change.   
 
When looking at the District Strategies for the Northeast Residential District, District Strategy #4 does address the 
establishment of Neighborhood/Convenience Centers stating that “…commercial in this district is intended to support the 
existing residential subdivisions and should be compatible in scale with the adjacent residential structures…”  In addition, 
when examining strategies for existing residential developments, the Housing section of the Comprehensive Plan states that 
the City should “…(p)rotect existing single-family residential subdivisions from the negative effects of non-residential 
developments by requiring separation and screening using large berms, landscaping, and buffers to create a natural 
transition.” [Policy #3, Goal 01; Section 02.01, Chapter 08]  Based on this, staff should point out that the applicants’ concept 
plan does not appear to provide sufficient space to properly buffer the proposed 16,000 SF office/retail building from the 
adjacent single-family homes that would front to the rear of the proposed building.  In addition, the Non-Residential section of 
the Comprehensive Plan states that “(n)on-residential buildings adjacent to residential properties should be designed to a 
residential scale to assist the transition of land uses, and mitigate any potential negative visual impacts of the commercial 
development.” [Policy 3, Goal 04; Chapter 09]  In this case, the proposed 16,000 SF office/retail building -- while being a 
single story -- would be larger than any other residential structure in the area, and would not be considered to be of residential 
scale. 
 
In summary, the applicants’ request does make a compelling argument to change the Future Land Use Map based on the 
definition of the Commercial/Retail land use; however, the concept plan provided by the applicants appears to propose a more 
intense development than what the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan call for when being located adjacent to 
existing residential developments.  Based on this staff is of the opinion that the applicants’ request does not meet the 
Comprehensive Plan, but this request does remain a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation 
from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  The change from Low Density Residential to Commercial/Retail has been added 
as a condition of approval in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo should this request be approved. 
 

115



STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Based on the size and scope of the applicants’ concept plan, the Commercial (C) District -- or to a lesser degree the General 
Retail (GR) District -- appears to be the most appropriate zoning district for a 16,000 SF office/retail building; however, due to 
the proximity of existing residential land uses these zoning districts would not be appropriate for the subject property.  With 
this being said, the subject property does appear to meet many of the characteristics called for in the Neighborhood Services 
(NS) District as outline in the Unified Development Code (UDC), and this district does provide the ability for the applicant to 
establish the requested 16,000 SF office/retail building through a Specific Use Permit (SUP); however, staff should point out 
that while the Neighborhood Services (NS) District does provide for a limited set of land uses and could act as a transition 
from the adjacent residential properties to John King Boulevard, it is not as restrictive in nature as the Residential Office (RO) 
District.  The Residential Office (RO) District is the City’s most restrictive non-residential zoning classification.  In this case, 
this may be a more suitable zoning designation due to the proximity of the residential homes and the fact that it provides for 
the flexibility of establishing both single-family homes as well as low impact office (and in certain cases retail) land uses; 
however, this remains a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  To help in making this zoning decision, staff has provided the land use charts for both the Neighborhood 
Services (NS) District and the Residential Office (RO) District for the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council’s 
review.    
 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On August 26, 2021, staff mailed 32 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also notified the Stoney Hollow and Caruth Ridge Estates Homeowner’s Associations (HOA’s), which are the only HOA’s 
within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program. Additionally, staff posted a 
sign on the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received the following: 
 
(1) Four (4) property owner notifications from property owners that are within the notification area (i.e. within the 500-foot 

buffer) that are opposed to the applicant’s request. 
(2) One (1) email from a property owner within the notification area (i.e. within the 500-foot buffer) that is opposed to the 

applicant’s request. 
(3) Twenty-one (21) input form notifications from the City’s website portal from property owners within the notification area 

(i.e. within the 500-foot buffer) that are opposed to the applicant’s request. 
(4) Three (3) emails from property owners that did not provide an address in their response and are considered to be outside 

of the notification area (i.e. outside of the 500-foot buffer) that are opposed to applicant’s request. 
(5) Three (3) email notifications from property owners that are not within the notification area (i.e. outside of the 500-foot 

buffer) that are opposed to applicant’s request. 
(6) Forty-three (43) input form notifications from the City’s website portal from property owners that is not within the 

notification area (i.e. outside the 500-foot buffer) that are opposed to the applicant’s request. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
1) By approving this zoning change, the City Council will effectively be approving changes to the Comprehensive Plan and 

Future Land Use Map.  Specifically, this will change the designation of the subject property from a Low Density 
Residential designation to a Commercial/Retail designation; and, 

 
2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the requirements set forth by the 

Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city 
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by 
the state and federal government. 

 
 
 
 

116



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION: 
 
On September 14, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend denial of the zoning change 
request, which passed by a vote of 5-1, with Commissioner Welch dissenting, and Commissioner Moeller absent.  According 
to Subsection 02.03(G), Protest of a Zoning Change, of Article 11, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), states “…if such 
change is recommended for denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission, such zoning change or Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) shall require a supermajority vote (i.e. a three-fourths vote of those members present), with a minimum of four (4) votes 
in the affirmative required for approval.”   
 

117



118



JOHN KING

OLD QUAIL RUN

BA
ILE

Y

KIRKWOOD

QUAIL RUN

EV
ER

T

JOH
N K

ING

Z2021-035- ZONING CHANGE FROM AG TO NS
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 130 260 390 52065
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I119



JOHN KING JOHN KING

QUAIL RUN

GR
OV

ER

RANDAS

BA
ILE

Y

SA
RA

H

STONEYHOLLOW

SA
ND

ST
ON

E

JA
NE

T

EV
ER

T

THE ROCK

TABER

COBBLESTONE

QUAIL RUN
QUAIL RUN

MIDDLETON

KIRKWOOD

ROCKING H

MIRANDA
GIDEON

WINDY

SA
DD

LE
BR

OO
K

OL
D 

QU
AI

L R
UN

Stoney Hollow

Caruth Lakes
(Caruth Ridge

Estates)

0 360 720 1,080 1,440180
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

GOLIAD

FM
 11

41JOH
N K

ING

CLEM

COUNTRY

QUAIL RUN

HA
YS

CORNELIUS

YO
RK

HARKER

WI
ND

Y

ME
MO

RIA
L

TOPAZ

STO
DG

HIL
L

NA
UT

ILU
S

NORMAN

TABER

MIRAMAR

TANNERSON

CARUTH

BARLASS

DEVERSON RANDAS

BAY LINE
PHELPS LAKE OR

CH
AR

DBA
ILE

Y

SA
ND

ER
SO

N

Case Number:

Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2021-035

NEC of John King Blvd. & 
Quail Run Rd. 

Zoning
Zoning Change from AG to NS
Agricultural (AG) District

8/20/2021 120



From: Gamez, Angelica
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program [Z2021-035]
Date: Thursday, August 26, 2021 3:18:40 PM
Attachments: Public Notice (08.26.2021).pdf

HOA Map Z2021-035.pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative:
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to
inform your organization that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located
within 1,500-feet of the boundaries of your neighborhood.  As the contact listed for your
organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the residents of your subdivision. 
Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to your
subdivision boundaries.  Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that will be published
in the Rockwall Herald Banner on August 27, 2021.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a
public hearing on Tuesday, September 14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public
hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  Both hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at
City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to
Planning@rockwall.com  at least 30 minutes in advance of the meeting.  Please include your name,
address, and the case number your comments are referring to.  These comments will be read into
the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current development
cases can be found on the City’s website:
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases.
 
Z2021-035 Zoning Change from AG to NS
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBS,
L. P. on behalf of Bradley Gideon for the approval of a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG)
District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-acre identified as Tract 1-04 of the S. R.
Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG)
District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located at the southeast
corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and take any action
necessary.
 
Thank you,
 
Angelica Gamez
Planning & Zoning Coordinator
City of Rockwall
972.771.7745 Office
972.772.6438 Direct
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/
 

121

mailto:AGamez@rockwall.com
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:HLee@rockwall.com
mailto:Planning@rockwall.com
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/



1800


1501


1691


1425


1445


1751


1815


1415


1435


2002


2006


2010


2014


2018
13111303 13272012


1328


2013


1304 1324


2011
1323


1308 1312 1316 1320


13191307 1315


2007


2015


1309 1317 13211313 1325


20092008


2004 2005


2104


2112


2108


21042105 1204 1208 1212 1302 1306 1310 1314 1318 1322 1326 1330


JOHN KING


OLD QUAIL RUN


QUAIL RUN


BA
ILE


Y


KIRKWOOD


GR
OV


ER


EV
ER


T


JO
HN


 K
IN


G


0 170 340 510 68085
Feet


I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com


The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       


E FM 552


FM
 11


41


N GOLIAD ST


STO
DG


HIL
L R


D


N JOHN KING BLVD


CLEM RD


N COUNTRY LN


CORNELIUS RD


E QUAIL RUN RD


GEARY DR CARUTH LN


WI
ND


Y L
N


FEA
THERSTO


NE D
R TOPAZ DR


COBBLESTONE DR


TABER RD


OR
CH


AR
D L


N


CRESTVIEW CIR


Case Number:


Case Address:


Z2021-035


NEC of John King Blvd &
 Quail Run Rd.


Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change from AG to NS
Zoning: Agricultural (AG) District


Vicinity Map


For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  8/20/2021


Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties







PUBLIC NOTICE  
 


 


CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 


CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 


 


 


Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 


You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 


Case No. Z2021-035: Zoning Change from AG to NS 
 


Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBS, L. P. on behalf of Bradley Gideon for the approval of a Zoning 
Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-acre identified as Tract 1-04 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 
13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and take any action necessary. 
 


For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, September 
14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 


As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 


David Gonzales 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 


385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 


 


You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 


Your comments must be received by Monday, September 20, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 


Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 


 


MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 


PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 


Case No. Z2021-035: Zoning Change from AG to NS 
 


Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 


 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 


 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 


 


 


 


 


Name:  


Address:  


 


Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 


 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 



mailto:planning@rockwall.com






JOHN KING JOHN KING


QUAIL RUN


GR
OV


ER


RANDAS


BA
ILE


Y


SA
RA


H


STONEYHOLLOW


SA
ND


ST
ON


E


JA
NE


T


EV
ER


T


THE ROCK


TABER


COBBLESTONE


QUAIL RUN
QUAIL RUN


MIDDLETON


KIRKWOOD


ROCKING H


MIRANDA
GIDEON


WINDY


SA
DD


LE
BR


OO
K


OL
D 


QU
AI


L R
UN


Stoney Hollow


Caruth Lakes
(Caruth Ridge


Estates)


0 360 720 1,080 1,440180
Feet


I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com


The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       


GOLIAD


FM
 11


41JOH
N K


ING


CLEM


COUNTRY


QUAIL RUN


HA
YS


CORNELIUS


YO
RK


HARKER


WI
ND


Y


ME
MO


RIA
L


TOPAZ


STO
DG


HIL
L


NA
UT


ILU
S


NORMAN


TABER


MIRAMAR


TANNERSON


CARUTH


BARLASS


DEVERSON RANDAS


BAY LINE
PHELPS LAKE OR


CH
AR


DBA
ILE


Y


SA
ND


ER
SO


N


Case Number:


Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:


Vicinity Map


For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:


Legend
Subject Property
1500' Buffer
Rockwall HOAs


Z2021-035


NEC of John King Blvd. & 
Quail Run Rd. 


Zoning
Zoning Change from AG to NS
Agricultural (AG) District


8/20/2021







1800

1501

1691

1425

1445

1751

1815

1415

1435

2002

2006

2010

2014

2018
13111303 13272012

1328

2013

1304 1324

2011
1323

1308 1312 1316 1320

13191307 1315

2007

2015

1309 1317 13211313 1325

20092008

2004 2005

2104

2112

2108

21042105 1204 1208 1212 1302 1306 1310 1314 1318 1322 1326 1330

JOHN KING

OLD QUAIL RUN

QUAIL RUN

BA
ILE

Y

KIRKWOOD

GR
OV

ER

EV
ER

T

JO
HN

 K
IN

G

0 170 340 510 68085
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

E FM 552

FM
 11

41

N GOLIAD ST

STO
DG

HIL
L R

D

N JOHN KING BLVD

CLEM RD

N COUNTRY LN

CORNELIUS RD

E QUAIL RUN RD

GEARY DR CARUTH LN

WI
ND

Y L
N

FEA
THERSTO

NE D
R TOPAZ DR

COBBLESTONE DR

TABER RD

OR
CH

AR
D L

N

CRESTVIEW CIR

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2021-035

NEC of John King Blvd &
 Quail Run Rd.

Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: Zoning Change from AG to NS
Zoning: Agricultural (AG) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  8/20/2021

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

122



GIDEON GROVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION 
INC 

1024 S GREENVILLE AVE #230 
ALLEN, TX 75002 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1304 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1308 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1309 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1311 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1312 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1313 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1315 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1316 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1317 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1319 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1320 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1321 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

JORDAN RAYSHAWN AND LANDRIA 
1323 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1324 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1325 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1327 MIDDLETON DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
1328 KIRKWOOD ROAD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

KOUVELIS HILDA & PETER 
1415 E QUAIL RUN RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

LARRIVIERE MICHAEL R & LISA J 
1425 E QUAIL RUN RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PACESETTER HOMES LLC 
14400 THE LAKES BLVD BUILDING C, SUITE 200 

AUSTIN, TX 78660 
 

TYLER WILLIAM L AND VANITA RAE 
1501 THE ROCK  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

LANKFORD BONNIE 
1691 OLD E QUAIL RUN RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

UTLEY HERMAN AND KRISTI 
1751 E QUAIL RUN ROAD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

COX GERALD GLEN AND ROSALBA CARRASCO 
1800 E QUAIL RUN RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

UTLEY HERMAN D 
1815 E OLD QUAIL RUN RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

BERHE MERHAWI 
2002 BAILEY DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

GARDNER JAMES K JR AND 
KARIN B NEWELL 

2006 BAILEY DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

DEAPEN RICHARD AND ALICIA 
2010 BAILEY DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

HARRIS ALBERT G AND JENNIFER O 
2014 BAILEY DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

123



WIMPEE JAKE M AND REBECCA K 
2018 BAILEY DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

COX GERALD GLEN AND ROSALBA CARRASCO 
815 T.L. TOWNSEND SUITE 101 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



From: David Currie
To: Gamez, Angelica; Planning; Gonzales, David
Subject: Zoning change - John King and East Quail Run Rd
Date: Wednesday, September 8, 2021 5:16:01 PM

I understand that this small parcel of land (2.8Acres) is proposed to be redefined” from
“residential” to “neighborhood services”. I would like to record my disagreement.
This parcel of land is in the midst of single family residential development. It is not clear
exactly what kind of “neighborhood services” are envisaged but I would suggest that this is
not an appropriate location for strip shops, a 7:11, or yet another nail salon.
John King at this location, while being a 45mph zone, is a busy area and does not meet added
traffic from a retail environment.
While my property is not adjacent this parcel of land, I would anticipate a not insignificant
effect on adjacent and nearby properties.
We moved to Rockwall because of the apparent thoughtfulness of development and
residential/commercial segregation. This appears to be an ill-advised use of land.

In summary, there are “neighborhood services” within easy reach for residents in the area and
this is not an appropriate site for additional non-residential development.

David and Avril Currie
596 Miramar Drive
Rockwall 

Sent from my iPhone

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

146

mailto:david.m.currie@att.net
mailto:AGamez@rockwall.com
mailto:planning@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com


147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



From: JAKE WIMPEE
To: Daniels, Bennie; Campbell, Anna; Macalik, Dana; Johannesen, Trace; Jorif, Clarence; Hohenshelt, John; Fowler,

Kevin; Gonzales, David
Subject: Zoning change on East Quail Run
Date: Tuesday, September 14, 2021 4:36:34 PM

Thank you for your time. Im in opposition to the requested zoning change for neighborhood
services on Quail Run and John King. There are a couple of reasons for this opposition.

-The area was zoned with input from residents years ago and that should be honored. With it
being zoned residential it blends well with the residential developments along John King and
Quail Run. Some will make the argument that no one would build a house on that 2 acre lot
but I would conclude I have seen people build on lots on busy roadways in Rockwall before
and a house could easily face the old east Quail run. The owner has yet to attempt to sell the
lot for such purposes I would assume.

-Most of the new neighborhoods along John King have houses close to the road so it wouldn't
be anything unusual. What would be unusual would be an office complex or strip center the
first of its kind on John King in the middle of all the residential developments. There is plenty
of room for such developments in the major intersections of 66 and John King or Dalton rd
and John King.

-My family and I just built a house in Gideon Grove and we are close to the interaction and we
would look at that development and its parking lot lights from our front yard as would many
other concerned residents in Gideon Grove. This changes the look of the neighborhood.

This is why myself and my extended family and many others in Gideon Grove and in North
Rockwall are opposed to this development. There is just a little bit of land left in North
Rockwall, lets use it wisely.

Thank you,

Jake Wimpee

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

159

mailto:jakewimpee@gmail.com
mailto:BennieDaniels@rockwall.com
mailto:AnnaCampbell@rockwall.com
mailto:DanaMacalik@rockwall.com
mailto:TraceJohannesen@rockwall.com
mailto:ClarenceJorif@rockwall.com
mailto:JohnHohenshelt@rockwall.com
mailto:KevinFowler@rockwall.com
mailto:KevinFowler@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com


160



161



162



From: james gardner
To: Gonzales, David; Fowler, Kevin; Hohenshelt, John; ClarenceJoif@rockwall.com; Johannesen, Trace
Subject: Z2021-035
Date: Monday, September 13, 2021 11:39:00 AM

To Whom It May Concern:
 
We do not support the spot rezoning Z2021-035 from agricultural to Neighborhood
Services/Commercial.  The rezoning is in contravention with the City of Rockwall Master Plan/Land
Use Plan designates the future use of this property as single family residential low density.  There are
numerous large Neighborhood Services/Commercial areas within a short distance of this property. 
The City Master Plan is the combined effort of volunteer residents, elected officials and staff.  Each
time the Comprehensive Plan is disregarded in favor of a developer it sends a disheartening
message. We Strongly recommend disapproval of spot rezoning Z2021-035.
 
Thank you for your consideration in this important quality of life decision.
 
James K, Gardner, Jr
Karin Newell
2006 Bailey Drive
Rockwall

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

163

mailto:gardnerjim5645@gmail.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:KevinFowler@rockwall.com
mailto:JohnHohenshelt@rockwall.com
mailto:ClarenceJoif@rockwall.com
mailto:TraceJohannesen@rockwall.com


164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



From: Kim Dignam
To: Gonzales, David; Fowler, Kevin; Hohenshelt, John; Jorif, Clarence; Johannesen, Trace; Daniels, Bennie;

Campbell, Anna; Macalik, Dana
Subject: OPPOSE-the spot rezoning Z2021-035
Date: Tuesday, September 14, 2021 3:42:29 PM

We do not support the spot rezoning Z2021-35 from agricultural to Neighborhood Services/Commercial.
This rezoning is in contravention with the City of Rockwall Master Plan/Land Use Plan. The recently
updated Master Plan/Land Use plan designates the future use of this property as single family residential
low density. There are numerous large Neighborhood Services/Commercial areas within a short distance
of this property. The City Master Plan is the combined effort of volunteer residents, elected officials and
staff. Each time the Comprehensive Plan is disregarded in favor of a developer it sends a disheartening
message. We strongly recommend disapproval of the spot rezoning Z2021-035

Russ & Kim Dignam
Homeowners @ Gideon Grove/Rockwall

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

194

mailto:kim.dignam@verizon.net
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:KevinFowler@rockwall.com
mailto:JohnHohenshelt@rockwall.com
mailto:ClarenceJorif@rockwall.com
mailto:TraceJohannesen@rockwall.com
mailto:BennieDaniels@rockwall.com
mailto:AnnaCampbell@rockwall.com
mailto:DanaMacalik@rockwall.com


195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



From: Mark Zahara
To: Planning; Gonzales, David; Gamez, Angelica
Cc: Mark
Subject: Re-zoning John King and East Quail Run.
Date: Thursday, September 9, 2021 11:07:40 AM

I would like to voice my disapproval of the re-zoning of John King and East Quail Run to Neighborhood Services. 
This area is meant for low density residential. I live in Stone Creek Estates and STRONGLY disagree with the re-
zoning. I would be there at the meeting Tuesday, but have a prior commitment. Thank you for taking my opinion
into consideration as I am a resident of Rockwall.

Mark Zahara, PT
MJB Therapy Services, LLC

________________________
This email was scanned by Bitdefender
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

204

mailto:markzahara@yahoo.com
mailto:planning@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:AGamez@rockwall.com
mailto:markzahara@yahoo.com


From: Mary Yingling
To: Gonzales, David; Fowler, Kevin; Jorif, Clarence; Hohenshelt, John; Johannesen, Trace;

benniedaniels@rockwall.co
Subject: Spot Rezone of John King at East Quail Run
Date: Tuesday, September 7, 2021 1:39:06 PM

This email is referencing rezoning Z2021-035 from ag to NS/Commercial:
 
We are on the corner of John King and East Quail Run.  This rezone will increase traffic on an already
heavily congested road (East Quail Run) and a commercial business will create huge noise and
lighting issues  for a development of a commercial businesses  that will reduce the value of the local
properties, especially the properties that are adjacent to the property in question. Once it is rezoned
to NS/Commercial there is no control over the type of business that could be installed at that
location. The entire area is zoned for single family low to medium. I suppose a liquor store, XXX Adult
 Video or massage parlor is not out of the question! Our quiet neighborhood does not need or
deserve this intrusion.
 
Anything anyone could want is just 1 mile down the road:  Kroger, Kroger gas,  CVS, Walgreens,
Starbucks, MOD Pizza, Chick Fil A, Majestic Nails, Great American Cookie/Ice Cream, Texas Health ER,
Ideal Dental, AtI Physical Therapy and Super Cuts Hair Salon.
 
Please take this information in heart when you consider the rezone request for this property.
 
Please contact me at 214/232-8894 if you have questions about this communication.
 
Mary Yingling
Yinglinjg44@yahoo.com
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

205

mailto:yingling44@yahoo.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:KevinFowler@rockwall.com
mailto:ClarenceJorif@rockwall.com
mailto:JohnHohenshelt@rockwall.com
mailto:TraceJohannesen@rockwall.com
mailto:benniedaniels@rockwall.co
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



From: Gonzales, David
To: "Nicholas Grant"
Cc: Jim and Bonnie Turner; John Yingling; Miller, Ryan
Subject: RE: Case Z2021-035
Date: Friday, September 3, 2021 10:50:04 AM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png

Mr. Grant,
 
The City is required to notify all property owners listed on the certified tax rolls, and to the actual
property address if the property owner does not reside at the physical address.
 
Thank you,
 
DAVID GONZALES, AICP
PLANNING & ZONING MANAGER
PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION • CITY OF ROCKWALL
972.772.6488 OFFICE
DGONZALES@ROCKWALL.COM
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087

HELPFUL LINKS | CITY OF ROCKWALL WEBSITE | PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION WEBSITE | MUNICIPAL CODE WEBSITE
GIS DIVISION WEBSITE | CITY OF ROCKWALL INTERACTIVE MAPS | MAIN STREET DIVISION

 
 

From: Nicholas Grant [mailto:ngrant33@att.net] 
Sent: Friday, September 3, 2021 10:06 AM
To: Gonzales, David <DGonzales@rockwall.com>
Cc: Jim and Bonnie Turner <jimturner55@mac.com>; John Yingling <yingling43@yahoo.com>
Subject: Case Z2021-035
 
Hi David,
 
I have concerns Regarding the Notification List for Z2021-035
 
In reviewing the packet for case Z2021-035 there seem to be inconsistencies and irregularities with the notification list.
 
Background - The results of notifications are used by staff in introducing a case to both the Panning and Zoning Commission and City
Council before a vote.  Both groups use the responses as a data point as they weigh the decision.  City Staff says something like:  "XX
notifications were sent X to Homeowners Association(s) and XX to property owners.  XX responses were received with X in opposition
and X in support.  Copies of the responses are in the packet.”  There are three data points:  support, opposition and apathy (the no
responses).  Arguably, opposition is one data point and support and apathy the other.  
 
Case 2021-035 - In this case although it appears that 32 notifications were sent that number is a significant overcount.
 
1.  The Cox’s are listed twice once with a with a street and once with a business address.  Reducing the total to 31.
 
2.  Pacesetter Homes LLC in Austin is listed as well as 16 Pacesetter lots some under construction and others empty.  These 17
notifications should be only one.  Builders/developers should not be able to respond for lots not owned/occupied only for their overall
interest.  Reducing the total valid notifications to 15.
 
3.  Request that 15 be used as the total valid notifications when the results are presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission and the
City Council.

221

mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:ngrant33@att.net
mailto:jimturner55@mac.com
mailto:yingling43@yahoo.com
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:dgonzales@rockwall.com
http://www.rockwall.com/
http://www.rockwall.com/Planning/index.asp
http://library.municode.com/index.aspx?clientID=14830&stateID=43&statename=Texas
http://www.rockwall.com/gis/index.asp
http://gis.rockwall.com/flexviewers/Rockwall_iMap/index.html
http://mainstreet.rockwall.com/index.asp




 
4.  Request this concern be made part of the packet for Z2021-035.
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Nick Grant
1569 East Old Quail Run Rd.
 
 

222



From: Nicholas Grant
To: Planning; Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry; Gamez, Angelica
Cc: nick Grant
Subject: Information for P&Z Work Session 31 August 2021 Re: Z2021-035
Date: Sunday, August 29, 2021 4:13:41 PM
Attachments: P&Z.pages

P&Z Staff,
Please provide the following information to the P&Z Commissioners for their discussion at the
work session for Z2021-35 on 31 August.

Information for Planning and Zoning Commission Work Session 31 August 2021
Reference Spot Rezoning Case 2021-035

Request the Planning and Zoning Commission consider the following when discussing the
Spot Rezoning Case 2021-035.

1. This spot rezoning is in contravention to the Rockwall Master Plan/Land Use Plan.  This
property is designated Residential Single Family Low Density in the most recent and all
previous Master Plan/Land Use documents. 

2. This Our Hometown 2040 Comprehensive Plan/Land Use Plan was updated in 2018 by
the dedicated and diligent effort of volunteer citizens and City Staff.  The plan was
approved by the Mayor and City Council.  Any time the Planning and Zoning
Commission or City Council allows contravention of guidelines or variances to the plan
it is disheartening to all residents and especially those who volunteered their time and
effort on the committee.  It sets a very bad precedent.

3. The Master Plan/Land Use Plan finds this property in the Northeast Residential District
where Commercial/Neighborhood Services are virtually non existent.

4. The argument that commercial/neighborhood services zoning is needed at this location
is flawed and overstated.  Not only was it not considered needed by the Master
Plan/Land Use Plan Committee,  it is not needed based on Commercial/Neighborhood
Services nearby.  There are three major commercial/neighborhood services areas with 1
to 2 miles to the west south and northwest in other Master Plan Districts.

5. It may be useful to review the City Attorney’s comments regarding the Master
Plan/Land Use Plan on page XIV of the Plan:  Section 211.004 and Chapter 213 of the
Texas Local Government Code recognizes the importance of municipalities to prepare
and adopt their own comprehensive plans.   Frank J. Garza. City Attorney of Rockwall 

The participation of citizens in an open, responsible and flexible planning process is essential to the
designing of the optimum comprehensive plan and adds the ability to legally defend the plan because of
public input and support; 

Significant decisions and actions affecting the immediate and long-range protection, enhancement, growth
and development of communities are made by the City of Rockwall City Council and using the
Comprehensive Plan as a guide for its decisions is a must; and, 

recommendations by Planning and Zoning and decisions of the Board of Adjustment and City Council are
easier to defend if challenged if the decisions are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

6. It may also be useful to review and discuss the pitfalls of spot zoning/rezoning by local
governments.

223

mailto:ngrant33@att.net
mailto:planning@rockwall.com
mailto:RMiller@rockwall.com
mailto:DGonzales@rockwall.com
mailto:HLee@rockwall.com
mailto:AGamez@rockwall.com
mailto:ngrant33@att.net

preview.jpg





224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



This email was scanned by Bitdefender

  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Thanks
Nick Grant
1569 East Old Quail Run Rd, Rockwall, TX

265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



PUBLIC NOTICE  
 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 
 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 
 

Case No. Z2021-035: Zoning Change from AG to NS 
 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBS, L. P. on behalf of Bradley Gideon for the approval of a Zoning 
Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-acre identified as Tract 1-04 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 
13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and take any action necessary. 
 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, September 
14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 
 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 
 

David Gonzales 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   
 

Your comments must be received by Monday, September 20, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 
 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 
 

Case No. Z2021-035: Zoning Change from AG to NS 
 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below:  
 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.         
 

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 
 

 

 

 

 

Name:  

Address:  

 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

 
PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

413

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


414



415



416



11 NORTHEAST RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

A

C

D

E

B

❷ Current Suburban Residential 
 

❶ Current Rural Residential 
 

00.08% 
 

00.17% 
 4.70% 

 

84.33% 
 

9.08% 
 

01.64% 
 

00.09% 
 

99.91% 
 

  

 MINOR COLLECTOR 
  

 M4U 
  

 M4D 
  

  CEMETERY (CEM) 32.34-ACRES 
   

 COMMERCIAL/RETAIL (CR) 1.52-ACRES 
   

 LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (LDR) 1,658.33-ACRES 
   

 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE (OS) 178.54-ACRES 
   

 PUBLIC (P) 92.45-ACRES 
   

 QUASI-PUBLIC (QP) 3.25-ACRES 
 

CU
RR

EN
T  625 

 18 
 1,844 

 

 

  
  
  

   

BU
ILD

 O
UT

 

 1,964 
 5,794 

   

%
 O

F 
RO

CK
W

AL
L 

 3.13% 
 0.99% 
 3.10% 

 

DISTRICT DESCRIPTION 
The Northeast Residential District is 
characterized by its established low-
density residential subdivisions and 
rural/estate style lots.  This district is 
anticipated to be a future growth center 
for the City, having several large vacant 
tracts of land suitable for low-density, 
residential development.  In addition, the 
City currently owns a large tract of land 
that will be a northern community park 
and serve this district in the future. 
 

DISTRICT STRATEGIES 
The Northeast Residential District being mostly an established 
residential district, is not anticipated to change or transition.  
The strategies for this district are: 
 

❶ Estate and Rural Residential.  The maintenance of the 
Estate and Rural Residential housing types are important 
to balancing the diversity of suburban lots to large lot 
housing within the City.  These areas also provide rural 
reserves for the City and create a natural transition zone to 
the east, towards FM-3549. 

❷ Suburban Residential.  Any new Suburban Residential 
developments should include a mix of larger to mid-sized 
lots.  Lots in these developments should not be smaller 
than existing Suburban Residential in this district. 

❸ Infill Development.  Residential infill development within 
this district should be compatible with the surrounding 
structures and should generally follow the guidelines for 
low density, suburban housing or rural/estate housing.   

❹  Neighborhood/Convenience Centers.  The commercial in 
this district is intended to support the existing residential 
subdivisions and should be compatible in scale with the 
adjacent residential structures.  

❺  John King Boulevard Trail Plan.  A ten (10) foot hike/bike 
trail should be incorporated along John King Boulevard 
with rest stops and signage as indicated in Appendix ‘B’ of 
this Comprehensive Plan. 

 

POINTS OF REFERENCE 
A. Stoney Hollow Subdivision 
B. Celia Hays Elementary School 
C. North Country Lane Park 
D. Saddlebrook Estates Subdivision 
E. Resthaven Funeral Home 
 

LAND USE PALETTES 
 Current Land Use  
 Future Land Use  

 
John King Boulevard Trail Plan  
Rest Stop/Trailblazer Pylon 

 
   

 COMMERCIAL 0.09% 
   

 RESIDENTIAL 99.91% 
   

 MIXED USE 0.00% 
   

 

❷  Future Suburban Residential 

417

rmiller
Oval

rmiller
Oval

rmiller
Typewritten Text
= SUBJECT PROPERTY

rmiller
Typewritten Text
`



LEGEND: 

PERMITTED LAND USES IN AN 
NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT 

 Land Use NOT Permitted 

P Land Use Permitted By-Right 

P Land Use Permitted with Conditions 

S Land Use Permitted Specific Use Permit (SUP) 

X Land Use Prohibited by Overlay District 

A Land Use Permitted as an Accessory Use 

LAND USE SCHEDULE 
LAND USE DEFINITION 

REFERENCE 
[Reference Article 13, 

Definitions] 

CONDITIONAL USE 
REFERENCE 

Reference [Article 04, 
Permissible Uses] 

NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT 

AGRICULTURAL AND ANIMAL RELATED LAND USES 2.02(A) 2.03(A)  

Agricultural Uses on Unplatted Land  (1)  P 

Animal Boarding/Kennel without Outside Pens  (2) (2) S 

Animal Clinic for Small Animals without Outdoor Pens  (3) (3) S 

Community Garden  (11) (7) S 

Urban Farm  (12) (8) S 

RESIDENTIAL AND LODGING LAND USES 2.02(B) 2.03(B)  

Bed and Breakfast  (2) (2) S 

Commercial Parking Garage  (6)  A 

INSTITUTIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE LAND USES 2.02(C) 2.03(C)  

Assisted Living Facility  (1) (1) S 

Cemetery/Mausoleum  (3)  P 

Church/House of Worship  (4) (2) P 

Convalescent Care Facility/Nursing Home  (6)  P 

Congregate Care Facility/Elderly Housing  (7) (3) S 

Daycare with Seven (7) or More Children  (9) (4) P 

Group or Community Home  (11) (5) P 

Hospice (14)  P 

Public Library, Art Gallery or Museum  (16)  P 

Local Post Office  (18)  P 

Public or Private Primary School  (21) (7) P 

Public or Private Secondary School  (22) (8) P 

Temporary Education Building for a Public or Private School  (23) (9) S 

OFFICE AND PROFESSIONAL LAND USES 2.02(D) 2.03(D)  

Financial Institution with Drive-Through (1) (1) S 

Financial Institution without Drive-Through  (1)  P 

Office Building less than 5,000 SF  (2)  P 

Office Building 5,000 SF or Greater  (2)  S 

RECREATION, ENTERTAINMENT AND AMUSEMENT LAND USES 2.02(E) 2.03(E)  

Temporary Carnival, Circus, or Amusement Ride  (1) (1) S 

Public or Private Community or Recreation Club as an Accessory Use (4)  S 

Private Country Club  (5)  S 

Golf Driving Range  (6)  S 

Temporary Fundraising Events by Non-Profit (7) (4) P 

Health Club or Gym  (9)  S 

Private Club, Lodge or Fraternal Organization  (10) (6) S 

Public Park or Playground  (12)  P 

Tennis Courts (i.e. Not Accessory to a Public or Private Country Club)  (14)  S 

RETAIL AND PERSONAL SERVICES LAND USES 2.02(F) 2.03(F)  

Antique/Collectible Store  (1)  S 

418



LEGEND: 

PERMITTED LAND USES IN AN 
NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT 

 Land Use NOT Permitted 

P Land Use Permitted By-Right 

P Land Use Permitted with Conditions 

S Land Use Permitted Specific Use Permit (SUP) 

X Land Use Prohibited by Overlay District 

A Land Use Permitted as an Accessory Use 

LAND USE SCHEDULE 
LAND USE DEFINITION 

REFERENCE 
[Reference Article 13, 

Definitions] 

CONDITIONAL USE 
REFERENCE 

Reference [Article 04, 
Permissible Uses] 

NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT 

Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic  (2)  P 

Brew Pub  (5)  P 

Catering Service  (7)  S 

Temporary Christmas Tree Sales Lot and/or Similar Uses  (8) (2) S 

Copy Center  (9)  P 

Incidental Display  (11) (4) P 

Food Trucks/Trailers  (12) (5) S 

Garden Supply/Plant Nursery  (13)  S 

General Personal Service  (14) (6) P 

General Retail Store (15)  P 

Hair Salon and/or Manicurist  (16)  P 

Laundromat with Dropoff/Pickup Services  (17)  P 

Self Service Laundromat  (18)  P 

Massage Therapist  (19)  P 

Private Museum or Art Gallery  (20)  S 

Permanent Cosmetics  (23) (7) A 

Pet Shop  (24)  P 

Temporary Real Estate Sales Office  (25)  P 

Restaurant with less than 2,000 SF with Drive-Through or Drive-In  (27) (9) S 

Restaurant with less than 2,000 SF without Drive-Through or Drive-In (28)  P 

Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more with Drive-Through or Drive-In  (27) (10) S 

Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more without Drive-Through or Drive-In  (28)  S 

Retail Store with Gasoline Sales that has Two (2) or less Dispensers (i.e. a 
Maximum of Four [4] Vehicles) 

(29)  S 

Art, Photography, or Music Studio  (31)  P 

Tailor, Clothing, and/or Apparel Shop  (32)  P 

COMMERCIAL AND BUSINESS SERVICES LAND USES 2.02(G) 2.03(G)  

Electrical, Watch, Clock, Jewelry and/or Similar Repair  (6)  S 

Shoe and Boot Repair and Sales  (16)  P 

Temporary On-Site Construction Office  (18) (6) P 

AUTO AND MARINE RELATED LAND USES 2.02(H) 2.03(H)  

Full Service Car Wash and Auto Detail  (5) (4) S 

Non-Commercial Parking Lot (9)  S 

Service Station  (11) (8) S 

INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURING LAND USES 2.02(I) 2.03(I)  

Temporary Asphalt or Concrete Batch Plant (2) (2) P 

Mining and Extraction of (Sand, Gravel, Oil and/or Other Materials) (12) (5) S 

UTILITIES, COMMUNICATIONS AND TRANSPORTATION LAND USES 2.02(K) 2.03(K)  

Antenna, as an Accessory (2) (1) P 

Antenna, for an Amateur Radio  (4) (3) A 

419



LEGEND: 

PERMITTED LAND USES IN AN 
NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT 

 Land Use NOT Permitted 

P Land Use Permitted By-Right 

P Land Use Permitted with Conditions 

S Land Use Permitted Specific Use Permit (SUP) 

X Land Use Prohibited by Overlay District 

A Land Use Permitted as an Accessory Use 

LAND USE SCHEDULE 
LAND USE DEFINITION 

REFERENCE 
[Reference Article 13, 

Definitions] 

CONDITIONAL USE 
REFERENCE 

Reference [Article 04, 
Permissible Uses] 

NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) DISTRICT 

Antenna Dish (5) (4) A 

Utilities (Non-Municipally Owned or Controlled), Including Sanitary Landfill, 
Water Treatment, and Supply, and Wastewater Treatment 

(10)  S 

Municipally Owned or Controlled Facilities, Utilities and Uses (11)  P 

Private Streets (12)  S 

Railroad Yard or Shop (14)  S 

Satellite Dish (16)  A 

Solar Energy Collector Panels and Systems (17) (7) A 

Transit Passenger Facility (18)  S 

Utilities Holding a Franchise from the City of Rockwall (21)  S 

Utility Installation Other than Listed (22)  S 

Utility/Transmission Lines (23)  S 

Wireless Communication Tower (24)  S 

 

420



LEGEND: 

PERMITTED LAND USES IN AN 
RESIDENTIAL-OFFICE (RO) DISTRICT 

 Land Use NOT Permitted 

P Land Use Permitted By-Right 

P Land Use Permitted with Conditions 

S Land Use Permitted Specific Use Permit (SUP) 

X Land Use Prohibited by Overlay District 

A Land Use Permitted as an Accessory Use 

LAND USE SCHEDULE 
LAND USE DEFINITION 

REFERENCE 
[Reference Article 13, 

Definitions] 

CONDITIONAL USE 
REFERENCE 

Reference [Article 04, 
Permissible Uses] 

RESIDENTIAL-OFFICE (RO) DISTRICT 

AGRICULTURAL AND ANIMAL RELATED LAND USES 2.02(A) 2.03(A)  

Agricultural Uses on Unplatted Land  (1)  P 

Community Garden  (11) (7) S 

Urban Farm  (12) (8) S 

RESIDENTIAL AND LODGING LAND USES 2.02(B) 2.03(B)  

Residential Accessory Building or Structure  (1) (1) P 

Bed and Breakfast  (2) (2) P 

Convent, Monastery, or Temple  (4)  P 

Residential Garage  (7) (4) & (5) A 

Home Occupation  (9) (7) P 

Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision  (16) (11) S 

Single-Family Detached Structure  (18) (13) P 

Single-Family Zero Lot Line Structure  (19) (14) P 

Private Swimming Pool  (20)  A 

Private Tennis Court  (21)  S 

Townhouse  (22) (15) P 

INSTITUTIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE LAND USES 2.02(C) 2.03(C)  

Assisted Living Facility  (1) (1) S 

Convalescent Care Facility/Nursing Home  (6)  P 

Congregate Care Facility/Elderly Housing  (7) (3) S 

Daycare with Seven (7) or More Children  (9) (4) S 

Group or Community Home  (11) (5) P 

Halfway House (13) (6) S 

Public Library, Art Gallery or Museum  (16)  P 

OFFICE AND PROFESSIONAL LAND USES 2.02(D) 2.03(D)  

Office Building less than 5,000 SF  (2)  P 

Office Building 5,000 SF or Greater  (2)  S 

RECREATION, ENTERTAINMENT AND AMUSEMENT LAND USES 2.02(E) 2.03(E)  

Temporary Fundraising Events by Non-Profit (7) (4) P 

RETAIL AND PERSONAL SERVICES LAND USES 2.02(F) 2.03(F)  

Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic  (2)  P 

Portable Beverage Service Facility  (4) (1) S 

Food Trucks/Trailers  (12) (5) S 

General Retail Store (15)  S 

Hair Salon and/or Manicurist  (16)  S 

Massage Therapist  (19)  P 

Private Museum or Art Gallery  (20)  P 

Permanent Cosmetics  (23) (7) A 

Restaurant with less than 2,000 SF without Drive-Through or Drive-In (28)  S 

Art, Photography, or Music Studio  (31)  P 

421



LEGEND: 

PERMITTED LAND USES IN AN 
RESIDENTIAL-OFFICE (RO) DISTRICT 

 Land Use NOT Permitted 

P Land Use Permitted By-Right 

P Land Use Permitted with Conditions 

S Land Use Permitted Specific Use Permit (SUP) 

X Land Use Prohibited by Overlay District 

A Land Use Permitted as an Accessory Use 

LAND USE SCHEDULE 
LAND USE DEFINITION 

REFERENCE 
[Reference Article 13, 

Definitions] 

CONDITIONAL USE 
REFERENCE 

Reference [Article 04, 
Permissible Uses] 

RESIDENTIAL-OFFICE (RO) DISTRICT 

COMMERCIAL AND BUSINESS SERVICES LAND USES 2.02(G) 2.03(G)  

Shoe and Boot Repair and Sales  (16)  S 

UTILITIES, COMMUNICATIONS AND TRANSPORTATION LAND USES 2.02(K) 2.03(K)  

Antenna, as an Accessory (2) (1) P 

Commercial Antenna (3) (2) S 

Antenna, for an Amateur Radio  (4) (3) A 

Antenna Dish (5) (4) A 

Utilities (Non-Municipally Owned or Controlled), Including Sanitary Landfill, 
Water Treatment, and Supply, and Wastewater Treatment 

(10)  S 

Municipally Owned or Controlled Facilities, Utilities and Uses (11)  P 

Private Streets (12)  S 

Railroad Yard or Shop (14)  S 

Satellite Dish (16)  A 

Solar Energy Collector Panels and Systems (17) (7) A 

Transit Passenger Facility (18)  S 

Utilities Holding a Franchise from the City of Rockwall (21)  S 

Utility Installation Other than Listed (22)  S 

Utility/Transmission Lines (23)  S 

Wireless Communication Tower (24)  S 

 

422



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL 
(AG) DISTRICT TO A NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) 
DISTRICT FOR A 2.751-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS 
TRACT 1-04 OF THE S. R. BARNES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 
13, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND 
BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND 
FURTHER DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBs, LP 
on behalf of Bradley Gideon for a change in zoning from an Agricultural (AG) District to a 
Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-04 of the 
S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Agricultural (AG) District, located on the southeast corner of the intersection of John King 
Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ 
of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated 
by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from 
an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District;  

 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a Neighborhood Services (NS) District as stipulated in Section 01.01, Use of Land 
and Buildings, of Article 04, Permissible Uses; Section 04.01, General Commercial District 
Standards; and Section 04.03, Neighborhood Services (NS) District, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the 
City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting of this zoning change, 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

423



and as maybe amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 
zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 4TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 

 
      

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  September 20, 2021 
 
2nd Reading: October 4, 2021 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

424



STATE OF TEXAS  
COUNTY OF ELLIS 
 
 
BEING all of a tract or parcel of land of the S. R. BARNES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. A-13, and 
being a tract of land conveyed to Joe. W. Gideon, as recorded in Volume 35, Page 591, of the 
Deed records of Rockwall County, Texas, as shown on this survey, and being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows; 
 
COMMENCING at a PK nail found for corner being the Southwest corner of a tract of land 
conveyed to Hilda & Peter Kouvelis, as recorded in Volume 1881, Page 115, of the Deed records 
of Rockwall County, Texas, and being the Northeast corner of a 25 foot right-of-way dedication, 
of a Lot 1, Block A, of Cox Acres, as recorded in Cabinet J, Slide 146, of the Deed records of 
Rockwall County, Texas, and being near the centerline of E. Quail Run Road; 
 
THENCE South 54 degrees 37 minutes 50 seconds West, a distance of 238.03 feet to a PK nail 
found for corner, said point being the PLACE OF BEGINNING; 
 
THENCE South 00 degrees 35 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 82.59 feet, to a PK nail 
found for corner being on the West right-of-way line of E. Old Quail Run Road; 
 
THENCE South 03 degrees 01 minutes 04 seconds West, a distance of 130.01feet, to a PK nail 
found for corner being on the Southwest right-of-way line of said E. Old Quail Run Road; 
 
THENCE South 11 degrees 48 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 134.53 feet, to a 1/2 inch 
iron rod found for corner; 
 
THENCE South 07 degrees 18 minutes 24 seconds West, a distance of 86.44 feet, to a PK nail 
found for corner being on the West right-of-way line of said E. Old Quail Run Road; 
 
THENCE South 01 degrees 24 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 103.15 feet, to a PK nail 
found for corner being on the West right-of-way line of said E. Old Quail Run Road; 
 
THENCE South 01 degrees 57 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 143.82 feet, to a 60D nail 
found for corner being the Southeast corner of said Gideon tract; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 04 minutes 14 seconds West, a distance of 48.28 feet, to a 1/2 inch 
red-capped iron rod found for corner being the Southwest corner of said Gideon tract, being in a 
curve to the left with a radius of 1160.00 feet; 
 
THENCE continuing along said curve, a chord bearing of North 14 degrees 01 minutes 14 
seconds West, a distance of 205.28 feet, a central angle of 10 degrees 09 minutes 10 seconds, 
an arc length of 205.55 feet, to a 1/2 inch red-capped iron rod found for corner, being on the 
Northeast right-of-way line of John King Boulevard; 
 
THENCE North 14 degrees 55 minutes 19 seconds West, a distance of 96.58 feet, to a point for 
corner from which a 1/2 inch iron rod found for reference bears South 60 degrees 47 minutes 28 
seconds West, being on the Northeast right-of-way of said John King Boulevard, said point being 
in a curve to the left with a radius of 1171.00 feet; 
 
THENCE continuing along said curve, a chord bearing and distance of North 31 degrees 25 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

425



minutes 08 seconds West, a distance of 289.62 feet, a central angle of 14 degrees 12 minutes 26 
seconds, an arc length of 290.36 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod found for corner, being on the Northeast 
right-of-way line of said John King Boulevard; 
 
THENCE North 04 degrees 19 minutes 10 seconds East, a distance of 43.89 feet, to a 1/2 inch 
red-capped iron rod found for corner being on the Southeast right-of-way line of E. Quail Run 
Road, and being on a curve to the right with a radius of 14.00 feet; 
 
THENCE continuing along said curve, a chord bearing of North 58 degrees 21 minutes 34 
seconds West, a distance of 21.21feet, a central angle of 98 degrees 29 minutes 19 seconds, an 
arc length of 24.07 feet  to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 09 degrees 06 minutes 04 seconds East, a distance of 47.64 feet to a 5/8 inch 
yellow- capped iron rod found for corner; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 39 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 17.74 feet to the PLACE 
OF BEGINNING containing 119,892 square feet or 2.751acres of land. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

426



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

427



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: Z2021-037; SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR AN ACCESSORY BUILDING AT
54 SHADYDALE LANE

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Neighborhood Notification Email
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
Applicant's Letter
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by James Best for the approval of
an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building on a 2.60-acre parcel
of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estate Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane, and take
any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed
Specific Use Permit (SUP).

428



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

DATE: September 20, 2021 

APPLICANT: Andrew Thomas 

CASE NUMBER: Z2021-037; Specific Use Permit for an Accessory Building at 54 Shadydale Lane 

SUMMARY 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by James Best for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an 
accessory building on a 2.60-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estate Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane, and take any action necessary.  

BACKGROUND 

The subject property was platted on July 30, 1968 as Lots 1 & 2, Block B, Highland Acres Addition. In 1980, a 2,475 SF 
single-family home was constructed on Lot 1, Block B, Highland Acres Addition, which was addressed as 10 Shadydale Lane. 
On January 9, 1984, the City Council annexed a portion of the subject property (i.e. Lot 1, Block B, Highland Acres Addition) 
by approving Ordinance No. 84-05 [Case No. A1984-001]. At the time of annexation, this portion of the subject property was 
zoned Agricultural (AG) District. In 1986, a 4,068 SF single-family home was constructed on Lot 2, Block B, Highland Acres 
Addition, which was addressed as 3189 S. Ridge Road. On January 3, 1989, this portion of the subject property was annexed 
by the City Council through the adoption of Ordinance No. 88-67. At the time of annexation, this portion of the subject property 
was zoned Agricultural (AG) District. On May 15, 1989, the subject property -- along with the remaining properties in the 
Highland Acres Addition -- were rezoned from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District by Ordinance 
No. 89-13 [Case No. PZ1989-001]. The single-family home on Lot 2, Block B, Highland Acres Addition was demolished on 
April 30, 2007 by Permit No. DEM2007-0016. The subject property was replatted from Lots 1 & 2, Block B, Highland Acres 
Addition to Lot 1, Block A, Best Estates Addition by Case No. P2018-032. Following this plat, a permit [i.e. BLD2019-2107] to 
demolish the existing single-family home (i.e. the home on the previous Lot 1, Block B, Highland Acres Addition) was issued 
on August 8, 2019. On August 3, 2020, the City Council approved a Specific Use Permit (SUP) [Case No. Z2020-023; S228] 
to construct a single-family home on the subject property. After approval of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) the applicant 
received approval for three (3) separate Special Exceptions [Case No. MIS2020-013, Case No. MIS2021-003, and Case No. 
MIS2021-006] allowing a pre-cast concrete screening wall that exceeded the maximum permissible height.  

PURPOSE 

The applicant -- Andrew Thomas -- is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow for the construction of 
an accessory building that exceeds the maximum square footage permitted for accessory buildings as stipulated by 
Subsection 07.04, Accessory Structure Development Standards, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 

The subject property is addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

North: Directly north of the subject property are two (2) parcels of land (i.e. Lots 3 & 4, Block B, Highland Addition) with 
two (2) single-family homes situated on them. These properties are zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District. 
Beyond this is Phase 1 of the Fox Chase Subdivision, which was platted on January 16, 1989 and consists of 32 
single-family homes. This subdivision is zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for Single-Family 10 
(SF10) District land uses.  

429



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

South: Directly south of the subject property is Shadydale Lane, which is identified R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, 
undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this are two (2) tracts of land (i.e. Tracts 35 & 54 of the E. Teal Survey, Abstract 
No. 207) with two (2) single-family homes situated on them. These properties are zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) 
District. South of these properties is the Benton Woods Subdivision, which was platted on January 13, 1993 and 
consists of 34 single-family homes. This subdivision is zoned Planned Development District 40 (PD-40) for Single-
Family 10 (SF-10) District land use. 

East: Directly east of the subject property is the Shadydale Estates Subdivision, which was platted on March 5, 2014 
and consists of 14 single-family homes. This subdivision is zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for 
Single-Family 12.5 (SF-12.5) District land uses. Beyond this is Phase 4 of the Fox Chase Subdivision, which was 
platted on February 22, 1995 and consists of 40 single-family homes. This subdivision is zoned Planned 
Development District 9 (PD-9) for Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses. 

West: Directly west of the subject property is Ridge Road [FM-740], which is identified as M4D (i.e. minor collector, four 
[4] lane, divided roadway) on the Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040
Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this thoroughfare is Phase 19 of the Chandler’s Landing Subdivision, which was
platted on June 27, 1985 and consists of 77 single-family residential lots. This property is zoned Planned
Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses.

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST 

The applicant has submitted an application, survey, plot plan, example building elevations, and a letter of explanation 
requesting to permit a 12-foot by 16-foot (or 192 SF) accessory building that will be 11-feet, 1-inches in total height. The letter 
of explanation indicates that the accessory building will be a Tuff Shed Premier Pro Tall Ranch.  The proposed accessory 
structure will have a roof pitch greater that the required 3:12 minimum and be constructed of composite shingles.  The 
accessory structure will be situated at the rear of the subject property approximately 60-feet from the eastern property line and 
eight (8) feet from the northern property line.  

CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY’S CODES 

According to Subsection 07.04, Accessory Structure Development Standards, of Article 05, District Development Standards, 
of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District allows a total of two (2) accessory structures.  
For accessory buildings, the Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District allows one (1) accessory building at 144 SF and one (1) 
detached garage at 625 SF.  In addition, accessory buildings are limited to a maximum height of 15-feet and a minimum roof 
pitch of 3:12.  The setbacks for accessory structures in a Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District are three (3) feet from the rear 
property line and eight (8) feet from the side property line.  Accessory buildings are also required to have a minimum of six (6) 
feet of separation from any other primary or accessory structure.  This section of the code goes on to state, “(a)ccessory 
buildings and structures shall be architecturally compatible with the primary structure, and be situated behind the front façade 
of the primary structure … [and] (a)ccessory buildings and structures not meeting the size requirements stipulated by this 
section shall require a Specific Use Permit (SUP).”  In addition, the section states that “(a)ll accessory buildings that are not 
portable accessory buildings require a permanent concrete foundation.” 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

In this case, the applicant’s request conforms with all the density and dimensional requirements for accessory buildings; 
however, the accessory building does not adhere to the maximum size permitted for accessory building. The proposed 
accessory building exceeds the maximum permissible size by 48 SF.  Staff performed a review of the homes in the 
surrounding subdivision using aerial imagery, and determined that there appears to be accessory buildings in the area similar 
in size as to what the applicant is proposing.  Staff should note that eight (8) of the 17 homes surveyed had accessory 
structures, with the largest accessory structure observed being a detached garage that is 2,100 SF. The average size of all 
accessory structures analyzed was 748 SF. With all of this being said, the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) request is 
a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

430



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

NOTIFICATIONS 

On August 26, 2021, staff mailed 83 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also notified the Chandler’s Landing, Fox Chase, and Benton Woods Homeowner’s Associations (HOAs), which are the only 
HOA/Neighborhood Organizations that are within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood 
Notification Program.  Additionally, staff posted a sign on the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the 
Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had 
received the following notices in regard to the applicant’s request: 

(1) Three (3) property owner notifications from property owners within the notification area (i.e. within the 500-foot buffer)
in-favor of the applicant’s request.

(2) One (1) property owner notification from a property owner within the notification area (i.e. within the 500-foot buffer)
opposed to the applicant’s request.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building that 
exceeds the maximum permissible size, then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 

(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational conditions contained in the SUP
ordinance and which are detailed as follows:

(a) The Accessory Building shall generally conform to the concept plan and the conceptual building elevations depicted
in Exhibits ‘B’ & ‘C’ of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance; and

(b) The Accessory Building shall not exceed a maximum size of 192 SF; and

(c) The Accessory Building shall not exceed a maximum height of 15-feet.

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the requirements set forth by the
Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city
adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by
the state and federal government.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

On September 14, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to approve the Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
with the conditions of approval by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Moeller absent. 

431



432



RIDGE

OAK

YA
CH

T C
LU

B

SHADYDALE

BENTON WOODS

CAMBRIA

FOXCHASE

CEDAR

BENTON

PIN OAKS

IND
EPE

ND
EN

CE

EASTERNER HUNTERS GLEN NORTH

FRANCE

HUNTERS GLEN

GREENBRIAR

GENESTA

RIDGE

Z2021-037- SUP FOR AUXILIARY BUILDING 
AT 54 SHADYDALE
ZONING - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 130 260 390 52065
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I433



SUMMER LEE

RIDGE

WHISPER ROCK

RA
LP

H 
HA

LL

SHADYDALE

YACHT
CLUB

HUNTERS GLEN

YA
CH

T C
LU

B

YACHT CLUB

RESOLUTE

OAK

AURORA

BOURBON

STREET
GENESTA

RANGER

PA
RK

WO
OD

GRETEL

CHAPEL

VA
LK

YR
IE

MA
YF

LO
WE

R

FRANCE

SKYLAR

STEEPLECHASE

WINDSONG

NEWPORT

GREENBRIAR

PIN
OAKS

FOXCHASEDE
FE

ND
ER

SCEPTRE

CEDAR

BENTON

YANKEE

BENTON
WOODS

RIDGE

LIONHART

BOURBON STREET

MYSTIC

EASTERNER

ST
EE

PL
E C

HA
SE

MICAH

TURQUOISE

SK
YL

AR

TU
BB

S

INDEPENDENCE

CLIPPER

FOXCHASE

CANTERBURY

BRIST
OL

CHAPARRAL

SO
UT

HW
IN

DRAINBOW

HORIZONLAGOVISTA

BENTON WOODS

HU
NT

ER
S G

LE
N 

NO
RT

H

SE
CR

ET
CO

VE
VOLUNTEER

SOVEREIGN

FREEDOM

VIC
TO

RY

TRUMPETER

CAMBRIA

LIB
ER

TY

RO
CK

WA
LL

Lago Vista

Chandler's
Landing

Fox Chase

Benton Woods

Signal
Ridge

Rainbow
Lakes

0 330 660 990 1,320165
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

RID
GE

EVA

INTERSTATE 30

WH
ITE

OAK

MIMS

BASS

COUNTRY CLUB

CH
RIS

RE
NE

E

SUMMER LEE

ROCKWALL

EVANS

KINGS

YACHT CLUB TU
BB

S

RA
NC

H

LAGO VISTA

LAKEWAY

SEQUOIA

SER
EN

ITY

ALTHEA

CA
NA

DA

RID
GE

Case Number:

Case Address:
Case Type:
Case Name:
Zoning:

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:

Legend
Subject Property

1500' Buffer

Rockwall HOAs

Z2021-037

54 Shadydale Lane
Zoning
SUP for Auxiliary Building
Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District

8/20/2021 434



1

Lee, Henry

From: Gamez, Angelica
Sent: Thursday, August 26, 2021 3:16 PM
Cc: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David; Lee, Henry
Subject: Neighborhood Notification Program [Z2021-037]
Attachments: Public Notice (08.26.2021).pdf; HOA Map Z2021-037.pdf

HOA/Neighborhood Association Representative: 
 
Per your participation in the Neighborhood Notification Program, you are receiving this notice to inform your organization 
that a zoning case has been filed with the City of Rockwall that is located within 1,500‐feet of the boundaries of your 
neighborhood. As the contact listed for your organization, you are encouraged to share this information with the 
residents of your subdivision. Please find the attached map detailing the property requesting to be rezoned in relation to 
your subdivision boundaries. Additionally, below is the summary of the zoning case that will be published in the Rockwall 
Herald Banner on August 27, 2021. The Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, September 
14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM. Both 
hearings will take place at 6:00 PM at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad, Rockwall, TX 75087.  
 
All interested parties are encouraged to submit public comments via email to Planning@rockwall.com at least 30 minutes 
in advance of the meeting. Please include your name, address, and the case number your comments are referring to. 
These comments will be read into the record during each of the public hearings. Additional information on all current 
development cases can be found on the City’s website: 
https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development‐cases. 
 
Z2021‐037 SUP for Accessory Building 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by James Best for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 
an accessory building on a 2.60‐acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estate Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single‐Family 16 (SF‐16) District, addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane, and take any action 
necessary. 
 

Thank you,  

 
Angelica Gamez  
Planning & Zoning Coordinator 
City of Rockwall 
972.771.7745 Office  
972.772.6438 Direct 
http://www.rockwall.com/planning/  
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender  

435



54

1

2 3 4 5 6

3187

3185

3201

109
107

1250

52

2704

2702

106

4725

2976

2974

2978

2970

40

2972

104

4244
50 4648

38

1140
1216

948

1164

102

4704

4684

2987

1188

105

101

5305

104

102

105

4660

5302

103

101

938

36

5308

5306

2715

929

930

103

2996

5601

5406

2701

102

5202

1168

5505

104

5402

5501

5304

5206

5204

2981

2983

5208

101

5408

3006

5507

2982

2976

2993

2971

2990

2998

2977

2981
29842973

2985

2975

2979

2999 3007

2975

5303

29902980

5701 4710

101

7

5108

5106

5104

5508

1239

4671

2962

5604

5602

5607

5608

5603

5610

5606

5605

2963

5613

7B

5102

5502

5609

103

110

2970106

5504

104

1257 4685

2969

5611

1172

922

5603

103 1164

5618

2713

4730

105

4705

5103

106

114

5616

RIDGE

OAK

SHADYDALE

YACHT CLUB
BENTON WOODS

FOXCHASE

INDEPENDENCE

CEDAR

FRANCE

HUNTERS GLEN

HUNTERS GLEN NORTH

GENESTA

BENTON

EASTERNER

RIDGE

0 130 260 390 52065
Feet

I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 
to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express
or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of
the user.                                                                                       

HORIZON RD

RID
GE

 RD

OAK DR

TU
BB

S R
D

SUMMER LEE DR

BASS R
D

WHITE RD

TROUT RD

YACHT CLUB DR
RANGER DR

LAGO VISTA LN
ARISTA RD

LAKEWAY DR

SIGNAL RIDGE PL

FREEDOM CT
ALTHEA RD

ME
DIC

AL
 DR

Case Number:

Case Address:

Z2021-037

54 Shadydale Lane
Case Type: Zoning
Case Name: SUP for Auxiliary Building
Zoning: Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District

Vicinity Map

For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745
Date Created:  8/20/2021

Legend
Parcels
Subject Property
500' Buffer
Notified Properties

436



HATFIELD CLAUDETTE 
1 SHADY DALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BECKER CHRISTIANE AND 
JOSEPH WORRALL 

101 INDEPENDENCE PLACE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

GARDNER PAUL S AND CINDY 
102 INDEPENDENCE PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

RIDGECREST HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 
1024 S GREENVILLE AVE #230 

ALLEN, TX 75002 
 

 

WEEKS MARY 
103 GENESTA PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

UNDERHILL TERESA D AND STEPHEN 
103 INDEPENDENCE PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

GARZA ROY A & DULCE R 
104 GENESTA PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

MCKIBBEN KATHLEEN D 
104 INDEPENDENCE PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

TURNER CATHERINE 
105 GENESTA PL  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SHORT MELISSA HUDSON AND CORY WAYNE 
105 INDEPENDENCE PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

MURRAY DAVID T II & AMBER 
106 INDEPENDENCE PLACE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LEAHOVCENCO ALEXANDR AND 
YULYIA NESTERENKO 

107 INDEPENDENCE PLACE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

LEAHOVCENCO ALEXANDR AND 
YULYIA NESTERENKO 

109 INDEPENDENCE PL  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

EDWARDS RICHARD J 
1140 BENTON WOODS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

TIMBES GARY R & ELIZABETH S 
1164 BENTON WOODS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

HARRIS WILLIAM JOSEPH AND JONNA R 
1188 BENTON WOODS DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HAMILTON LARRY WAYNE & REBA DIANE 
1216 BENTON WOODS DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

PATEL VIBHA & SATISH 
125 AMBROSIA LANE  

HEATH, TX 75032 
 

PATEL VIBHA & SATISH 
1250 BENTON WOODSDR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BYBEE TERRY DON & CATHERINE DENISE 
2 SHADYDALE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LE LINH 
2701 CEDAR COURT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MUMPHREY SCHEDRICK RANDTEZ AND 
MELODY HOSKINS 

2702 FOXCHASE LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

HOUSTON RICHARD AND 
LINDSAY WEATHERREAD 

2704 FOXCHASE LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

KRUSZ WILLIAM C & EVELYN KAY 
2715 CEDAR CT  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

PREWITT CARROLL O JR AND MARY E 
2970 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LANE PATRICIA A 
2971 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VARNER GLENN MERRILL & CARRIE G 
2972 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

BOURQUIN LAUREN 
2973 OAK DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

BOWERMAN FAMILY TRUST 
JACK E AND HELEN R BOWERMAN TRUSTEES 

2974 OAK DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

EVANS JENNIFER BEARD 
2975 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

437



RAMOS EMILIO & MARIA C 
2976 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

KARLEN FRANK W & CHANDRA J 
2977 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FOSTER JOHN CHRISTOPHER & DONNA 
2978 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

SEXTON CHRISTOPHER 
2979 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

SALUCCI JOSEPH LILIA 
2980 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

FLORANCE JOSEPH V 
2981 OAK DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

COOKS LESTER L & DORIS M 
2982 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ELWONGER MARLENA JOY AND JASON 
COLEMAN 

2983 OAK DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

BLACK SHERYL NKA SHERYL L COMPTON AND 
WILLIAM D COMPTON 

2984 HUNTERS GLEN NORTH  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

QUALLS CHARLES S & MARY K 
2985 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HENDRICKS MILLIE E 
2990 HUNTERS GLEN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

CONNET STEPHEN R AND DONNA JEAN 
2990 OAK DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

CHOATE RANDELL G & CAROLYN J 
2993 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

THORNLEY JILL E & GERALD R 
2996 HUNTERS GLN N  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

FRISBY JOHN R & THERESA M 
2998 OAK DR  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

MITCHELL RYAN PATTON & AMANDA NICOLE 
3 SHADYDALE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

VANHORN WILLIAM & PENNI 
JOSEPH HENRY & KRISTINE ELIZABETH ZYLKA 

3021 RIDGE RD SUITE A-66  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

COOKS LESTER L & DORIS M 
3026 ANDREW DR  

FARMERSVILLE, TX 75442 
 

STOKES RICHARD & JULIE 
3185 S RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

LEWELLYN DARYL G & SARAH 
3187 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ST CLAIR PAUL M & GENEVIEVE J 
3201 RIDGE RD  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

RHUDY FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
RHUDY THOMAS RICHARD AND LAURA MARIE- 

TRUSTEES 
3923 POSTRIDGE TRAIL  
MELBOURNE, FL 32934 

 

 

TASSET AUSTIN & KENNEDY 
4 SHADY DALE LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CASTLEROCK CUSTOM BUILDERS LLC 
40 SHADYDALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

PITTMAN JAMES CHRISTOPHER AND AMY 
42 SHADY DALE LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

BREWER ELIZABETH CAITLIN AND 
NICOLAS LUKASHEVICH 

44 SHADY DALE LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

VITALE LINDA A 
46 SHADY DALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

VANHORN WILLIAM & PENNI 
JOSEPH HENRY & KRISTINE ELIZABETH ZYLKA 

4725 BENTON CT  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

FAULKNER DANICA J AND MATTHEW L JOHNS 
48 SHADY DALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

RHUDY FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 
RHUDY THOMAS RICHARD AND LAURA MARIE- 

TRUSTEES 
5 SHADYDALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

438



SLABAS KAREN AND JEFFREY 
50 SHADY DALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

HAMMOND HUDDLE LIVING TRUST 
EUGENE WESLEY HUDDLE AND JANE 

HAMMOND, TRUSTEES 
519 E I-30 #704  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SLABAS KAREN AND JEFFREY 
52 SHADYDALELN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

THOMAS JERRY & MARSHA 
5202 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

BARRY JOYCE 
5204 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

ROCK SOUTH INVESTMENTS LTD. A TEXAS 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
5206 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

METRY GREGORY K 
5208 YACHT CLUB DRIVE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

DAVIES DAVID B & HELEN J 
5302 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

NORTON JO ANN 
5303 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

WILLIAMS VICTORIA L & DAVID B 
5304 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

MARTIN CAREN 
5305 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

ADRIAN AMANDA C AND MICHAEL S 
5306 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

ADDISON MARAVIN G AND FAYE 
5308 YACHT CLUB DR.  
ROCKWALL, TX 75033 

 

 

BEST JAMES AND KIMBERLY 
54 SHADY DALE LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

ODOM JOSHUA D-WAYNE AND LACEY 
ALEXANDRA 

5402 YACHT CLUB DRIVE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

CULLEN SETH LAWRENCE AND GABRIELLE 
5501 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

HAMMOND HUDDLE LIVING TRUST 
EUGENE WESLEY HUDDLE AND JANE 

HAMMOND, TRUSTEES 
5505 YACHT CLUB DR  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

 

ROCK SOUTH INVESTMENTS LTD. A TEXAS 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 
756 RIDGE HOLLOW RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75032 

 

BEST JAMES AND KIMBERLY 
870 W INTERSTATE SUITE 100 

GARLAND, TX 75043 
 

 

HERVEY GAIL 
948 HUNTERS GLN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75032 
 

 

CHANDLERS LANDING COMMUNITY ASSOC 
PO BOX 638  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

STOKES RICHARD & JULIE 
PO BOX 8  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

CASTLEROCK CUSTOM BUILDERS LLC 
PO BOX 8333  

GREENVILLE, TX 75404 
 

  

     

     

439



PUBLIC NOTICE 

CITY OF ROCKWALL ● PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT ● 385 S. GOLIAD STREET ● ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087 ● P: (972) 771 -7745 ● E: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 
EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

Property Owner and/or Resident of the City of Rockwall: 

You are hereby notified that the City of Rockwall Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will consider the following application: 

Case No. Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building 

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by James Best for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building on a 2.60-acre 
parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estate Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 54 
Shadydale Lane, and take any action necessary. 

For the purpose of considering the effects of such a request, the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, September 
14, 2021 at 6:00 PM, and the City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM.  These hearings will be held in the 
City Council Chambers at City Hall, 385 S. Goliad Street. 

As an interested property owner, you are invited to attend these meetings.  If you prefer to express your thoughts in writing please return the form to: 

Henry Lee 
Rockwall Planning and Zoning Dept. 

385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, TX 75087 

You may also email your comments to the Planning Department at planning@rockwall.com.  If you choose to email the Planning Department please 
include your name and address for identification purposes.   

Your comments must be received by Monday, September 20, 2021 at 4:00 PM to ensure they are included in the information provided to the City 
Council. 

Sincerely, 

Ryan Miller, AICP 
Director of Planning & Zoning 

MORE INFORMATION ON THIS CASE CAN BE FOUND AT: https://sites.google.com/site/rockwallplanning/development/development-cases 

PLEASE RETURN THE BELOW FORM 

Case No. Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building 

Please place a check mark on the appropriate line below: 

 I am in favor of the request for the reasons listed below.  

 I am opposed to the request for the reasons listed below. 

Name: 

Address: 

Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, Sec. 211.006 (d) If a proposed change to a regulation or boundary is protested in accordance with this subsection, the proposed change must receive, in 
order to take effect, the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of all members of the governing body.  The protest must be written and signed by the owners of at least 20 
percent of either: (1) the area of the lots or land covered by the proposed change; or (2) the area of the lots or land immediately adjoining the area covered by the proposed 
change and extending 200 feet from that area. 

PLEASE SEE LOCATION MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY ON THE BACK OF THIS NOTICE 

440

mailto:planning@rockwall.com


441



1

Lee, Henry

From: Melissa Short <mrshort@live.com>
Sent: Monday, August 30, 2021 11:11 AM
To: Planning
Subject: Case # z2021-037

P&Z 
 
I am in favor of the request because 1 building is better than 2. 
 
Cory & Melissa Short 
105 Independence Pl. 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
972‐529‐0129 
 
________________________ 
This email was scanned by Bitdefender 
  CAUTION:   This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
 

442



1

Lee, Henry

From: Joe Zylka <JZylka@DogwoodCommercial.com>
Sent: Monday, August 30, 2021 7:16 AM
To: Planning
Subject: Case No. Z2021-037

I am opposed to the request due to the likelihood of the visibility of the structure to Ridge rd. They have done a poor job 
in my opinion of the visibility and sightliness of the project on all sides… 
 
Thanks,  
 
JOE ZYLKA, CPM® 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 
DOGWOOD COMMERCIAL 
 
O: 972.354.8060 | D: 972.332.4400 | C: 214.476.1215 
JZYLKA@DOGWOODCOMMERCIAL.COM 
WWW.DOGWOODCOMMERCIAL.COM 

 

 
 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 

443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 21-XX; SUP # S-2XX 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-XXX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS 
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE 
PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW AN ACCESSORY BUILDING THAT 
EXCEEDS THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE SIZE ON A 2.60-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 1, BLOCK A, 
BEST ESTATE ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DEPICTED AND 
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE 
SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Andrew Thomas on behalf of James Best for 
the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow an Accessory Building that exceeds the 
maximum allowable size on a 2.60-acre tract of land described as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estates 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, 
addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane, and being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit 
‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and 
incorporated by reference herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) allowing an Accessory Building as stipulated by Subsection 07.04, Accessory 
Structure Development Standards, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 

SECTION 2.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth 
in Subsection 07.04, Accessory Structure Development Standards, of Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

451



Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 21-XX; SUP # S-2XX 

heretofore amended and as may be amended in the future --, and with the following conditions: 

2.1. OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 

The following conditions pertain to the operation of an Accessory Building on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these conditions are required for continued operations: 

(1) The Accessory Building shall generally conform to the concept plan and the conceptual
building elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘B & ‘C’ of this ordinance.

(2) The Accessory Building shall not exceed a maximum size of 192 SF.

(3) The Accessory Building shall not exceed a maximum height of 15-feet.

2.2. COMPLIANCE 

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) will require compliance to the following: 

(1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the homeowner fail to meet the minimum
operational requirements set forth herein and outline in the Unified Development Code
(UDC), the City Council may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings to revoke the
Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Section 2.02(F), Revocation, of Article
11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development
Code (UDC).

SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 4TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

452



Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 21-XX; SUP # S-2XX 

Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

1st Reading:  September 20, 2021 

2nd Reading: October 4, 2021 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

453



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Zoning Exhibit 

Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 21-XX; SUP # S-2XX 

Address: 54 Shadydale Lane 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block A, Best Estates Addition 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

454



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Residential Plot Plan 

Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 21-XX; SUP # S-2XX 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

455



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Elevations 

Z2021-037: SUP for Accessory Building Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 21-XX; SUP # S-2XX 

D
R

A
FT

 
O

R
D

IN
A

N
C

E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

456



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: A2021-006; ANNEXATION OF THE THOMPSON TRACT

Attachments
Memorandum
Location Map
Applicant's Letter
Legal Description
Survey
Municipal Services Agreement
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins on behalf of Betty
Thompson for the approval of an ordinance for the annexation of 6.70-acre tract of land
identified as Tract 1-1 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, Texas,
situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), contiguous to the
existing corporate limits of the City of Rockwall, addressed as 911 E. FM-552, and take any
action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve or deny the applicant's request for annexation.

457



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: September 20, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: A2021-006; Annexation of the Thompson Tract 
 
 

On July 30, 2021, staff received a request from Pat Atkins on behalf of Betty Thompson for the approval of an annexation of a 
6.70-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 1-1 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97) [i.e. the Thompson Tract or the subject 
property].  The subject property is situated within the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), at the southeast corner of the 
intersection of John King Boulevard and FM-552.  According to Section 43.0672 of Subchapter C-3, Annexation of Area on 
Request of Owners, of Chapter 43, Municipal Boundaries and Annexation, of the Texas Local Government Code (TLGC), 
“…(t)he governing body of the municipality that elects to annex an area under this section must first negotiate and enter into a 
written agreement with the owners of land in the area for the provision of services in the area.”  Attached to this memorandum 
is the City’s standard Municipal Service Agreement, which the owner signed and returned to staff on September 16, 2021.  
According to Section 43.0673 of Subchapter C-3, Annexation of Area on Request of Owners, of Chapter 43, Municipal 
Boundaries and Annexation, of the Texas Local Government Code (TLGC), “…(b)efore a municipality may adopt an ordinance 
annexing an area under this subchapter, the governing body of the municipality must conduct one public hearing…”  In 
addition to the Municipal Service Agreement, staff has included a copy of the public hearing notice -- which was posted in the 
Rockwall Herald Banner on September 3, 2021 --, and a draft ordinance.  Should the City Council have any questions staff 
and the City Attorney will be available at the September 20, 2021 City Council meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

458



FM 552

JOH
N K

ING

WI
ND

Y

BR
EEZ

Y H
ILL

TO
PA

Z

CALM CREST
WO

OD
ED

FEATHERSTONE

GREEN
WAY

DEVERSON

NA
UT

ILU
S

RANDAS

FAIR

PRINGLE

CR
EST

BR
OO

K

KIMBERLY

RIDGECROSS

PA
RK

 CE
NT

RA
L

MIRAMAR

HA
YS

MOUNTCASTLE

GIDEON

PLEASANT VIEW

MIRANDA

BORDEAUX

CATTERICK

AMBER KNOLL

AM
HE

RST

EMILY

HUNTERS CREEK

CH
ATF

IEL
D

PETREL

RO
YA

L R
IDG

E

MIDDLETON

IRIS

RA
VE

NB
AN

K

BUCKNER

GR
OV

ER

ROCKING H

KNOX

COLBY BLUFF
COUNTRY RIDGE

WH
ISP

ER
ING

 OA
KS

HY
ER

YO
RK

EMBER CREST

DR
EW

SB
UR

Y

FAWN

WA
LES

COZY V
IEW

SO
LA

RO

SAR
AH

WINDY HILL

MELODY MEADOW

PLEASANT BLUFF

NORTH RIDGE

JOH
N K

ING
HA

YS

A2021-006 - THOMPSON TRACT
ANNEXATION - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 450 900 1,350 1,800225
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I459



1

Miller, Ryan

From: kpatatkins@gmail.com
Sent: Friday, July 30, 2021 7:47 AM
To: Miller, Ryan; Gonzales, David
Subject: Fw: SURVEYS THOMPSON
Attachments: 355B-4 Thompson.pdf; 6.5 ac LEGAL DESCRIPTION.docx

Follow Up Flag: FollowUp
Flag Status: Flagged

RYAN ,THOMPSON SURVEY FOR ANNEXATION 
 
----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From: Robert Myers  
To: Pat Atkins ; Kirk Atkins ; ]  
Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021, 08:50:48 AM CDT 
Subject: SURVEYS THOMPSON AND MILLER 
 
Pat, I did not give the correct flood information in the notes area for Miller so here is a revised map. 
Part of both of these tracts lie in flood plain as shown. 
 
--  
Thank you, 
Calvin Myers 
RPLS No. 3963 
R.C. Myers Surveying, LLC 
488 Arroyo Court 
Sunnyvale, Texas 75182 
214.532.0636 Cell 
 
rcmsurveying@gmail.com 
 

This email was scanned by Bitdefender  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 
 

460



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
BEING 6.511 acres of land situated in the P.B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, Texas, 
and all of a called 6.7 acre tract of land described in a Deed to Fred and Betty L. Thompson, recorded 
Volume 707, Page 71, Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas (DRRCT), and being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 5/8" iron rod with a yellow cap stamped "RPLS 3963" set for corner in the east line of 
John King Boulevard (160’ wide right-of-way) at the northwest corner of said 6.7 acre tract, said point 
also being in the south right-of-way line of F.M. 552 (80’ right-of-way); 
 
THENCE N 89 degrees 19 minutes 27 seconds E, along the south right-of-way line of said F.M. 552, a 
distance of 681.71 feet, to a point for corner at the northwest corner of a called 2.025 acre tract 
described in a deed to Bertha Silva recorded as Instrument 201200461779, Real Property Records of 
Rockwall County, Texas, (RPRRCT), as marked by monument and occupied by partial fencing on the west 
line, from which a 1" solid iron rod found for reference bears S 00 degrees 53 minutes 42 seconds W, a 
distance of 0.68 feet; 
 
THENCE S 00 degrees 53 minutes 42 seconds W, along the west line of said 2.025 acre tract as occupied 
and partially fenced, a distance of 420.41 feet, to a point for corner at the southwest corner thereof, 
from which a 1” solid iron rod found for reference bears S 00 degrees 53 minutes 42 seconds W, a 
distance of 1.70 feet, said point also being in the north line of a called 12.000 acre tract of land 
described in a deed to Michael and Stacy Miller recorded as Instrument No. 20170000011122 (RPRRCT).; 
 
THENCE S 89 degrees 27 minutes 59 seconds W, along the common line of said 6.7 acre Thompson tract 
and said 12.000 acre tract, a distance of 670.81 feet, to a point for corner near the edge of a concrete 
apron, at the northwest corner of said 12.000 acre tract and being in the east right-of-way line of said 
John King Boulevard, from which a 5/8" iron rod with a yellow cap stamped "RPLS 3963" set for 
reference bears S 00°04'57" E, a distance of 60 feet; 
 
THENCE N 00 degrees 35 minutes 27 seconds W, along the east right-of-way line of said John King 
Boulevard and the west line of said 6.7 acre tract a distance of 418.59 feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING 
and containing 283,640 square Feet or 6.511 acres of land; 
 
 
 

461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR ANNEXATION 
AND PROVIDING FOR THE EXTENSION OF MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY 
LIMITS TO INCORPORATE SUCH PROPERTY INTO THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS WITH THE ANNEXATION OF A 6.70-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 1-1 OF THE P. B. 
HARRISON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 97, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, WHICH SAID TERRITORY LIES ADJACENT TO AND 
ADJOINS THE PRESENT BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the Subject Property is a 6.70-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-1 of the P. B. 
Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, Texas, addressed as 911 E. FM-552, that 
lies adjacent to and adjoins the present boundaries of the City of Rockwall, and which is depicted 
and described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Betty Thompson provided the City of Rockwall with a signed copy of the Municipal 
Services Agreement contained in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance on September 16, 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements of Subchapter C-3, Annexation of Area on the 
Request of Owners, of Chapter 43, Municipal Annexation, of the Texas Local Government Code, 
a public hearing was held before the governing body of the City of Rockwall, Texas, where all 
interested persons were provided with an opportunity to be heard on September 20, 2021 at 6:00 
PM in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, which is located at 385 S. Goliad Street, Rockwall, 
Texas 75087; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of such public hearing was published in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and in the territory described herein 
on September 3, 2021 and posted on the City of Rockwall’s website on September 3, 2021 said 
dates being not more than twenty (20) days nor less than ten (10) days prior to the dates of such 
public hearings; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

 
SECTION 1. That the above recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and incorporated 
herein for all purposes. 

 
SECTION 2. The land and territory more specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ and incorporated by 
reference as the Subject Property, containing 6.70-acres which is adjacent to and adjoining the 
present corporate boundaries of the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, is hereby added 
and annexed to the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and said territory as described 
herein shall hereafter be included within the corporate boundary limits of the City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas and the present boundary limits of the City at the various points 
contiguous to the areas as described above, are altered and amended so as to include said area 
within the corporate limits of the City. 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

469



SECTION 3. That the official map of the City is hereby amended to reflect the addition of the 
property described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. The above described territory and the acres so annexed shall be a part of the City 
of Rockwall, Texas, and the inhabitants thereof, if any, shall be entitled to all of the rights and 
privileges of all citizens and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions and regulations 
of the City of Rockwall, Texas. 
 
SECTION 5. That the Service Plan for the annexation area, which was made available for public 
inspection at the Public Hearings referenced above, is hereby approved with a copy of said plan 
being attached hereto and incorporated by reference for all purposes and labeled Exhibit ‘B’. 
 
SECTION 6. That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable 
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
approval, in accordance with applicable law and the charter of the City of Rockwall, Texas. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 4TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2021. 
 
 
  Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 
 
1st Reading: September 20, 2021 
 
2nd Reading: October 4, 2021 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

470



BEING 6.511 acres of land situated in the P.B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall 
County, Texas, and all of a called 6.70-acre tract of land described in a Deed to Fred and Betty 
L. Thompson, recorded Volume 707, Page 71, Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas 
(DRRCT), and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 5/8" iron rod with a yellow cap stamped "RPLS 3963" set for corner in the east 
line of John King Boulevard (160’ wide right-of-way) at the northwest corner of said 6.70-acre 
tract, said point also being in the south right-of-way line of F.M. 552 (80’ right-of-way); 
 
THENCE N 89 degrees 19 minutes 27 seconds E, along the south right-of-way line of said F.M. 
552, a distance of 681.71 feet, to a point for corner at the northwest corner of a called 2.025 acre 
tract described in a deed to Bertha Silva recorded as Instrument 201200461779, Real Property 
Records of Rockwall County, Texas, (RPRRCT), as marked by monument and occupied by partial 
fencing on the west line, from which a 1" solid iron rod found for reference bears S 00 degrees 53 
minutes 42 seconds W, a distance of 0.68 feet; 
 
THENCE S 00 degrees 53 minutes 42 seconds W, along the west line of said 2.025 acre tract as 
occupied and partially fenced, a distance of 420.41 feet, to a point for corner at the southwest 
corner thereof, from which a 1” solid iron rod found for reference bears S 00 degrees 53 minutes 
42 seconds W, a distance of 1.70 feet, said point also being in the north line of a called 12.000 
acre tract of land described in a deed to Michael and Stacy Miller recorded as Instrument No. 
20170000011122 (RPRRCT).; 
 
THENCE S 89 degrees 27 minutes 59 seconds W, along the common line of said 6.7 acre 
Thompson tract and said 12.000 acre tract, a distance of 670.81 feet, to a point for corner near 
the edge of a concrete apron, at the northwest corner of said 12.000 acre tract and being in the 
east right-of-way line of said John King Boulevard, from which a 5/8" iron rod with a yellow cap 
stamped "RPLS 3963" set for reference bears S 00°04'57" E, a distance of 60 feet; 
 
THENCE N 00 degrees 35 minutes 27 seconds W, along the east right-of-way line of said John 
King Boulevard and the west line of said 6.70-acre tract a distance of 418.59 feet, to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING and containing 283,640 square Feet or 6.511 acres of land; D

R
A

FT
  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

471



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

472



MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR ANNEXATION 
Annexation Case No. A2021-006 
City and County of Rockwall, Texas 
 
Acreage Annexed: 6.70-Acres 
Survey Abstract and County: Tract 1-1 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall 
County, Texas 
Date of Annexation Request: August 20, 2021 
 
Municipal Services Agreement.  In accordance with Section 43.0672 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, the following agreement outlines the provision and timing of municipal 
services that will be furnished by or on the behalf of the City of Rockwall, Texas to the subject 
property which is described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this agreement: 
 
(A) Police Services. 
 

(1) Patrolling, responses to calls, and other routine police services, within the limits of 
existing personnel and equipment, will be provided within 60-days of the effective date 
of annexation. 

(2) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient police 
personnel and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of 
police services consistent with police services available in other parts of the City with 
land uses and population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area. 

 
(B) Fire Services. 
 

(1) Fire protection by the present personnel and the present equipment of the Fire 
Department, within the limitations of available water and distances from existing fire 
stations, will be provided to this area within 60-days of the effective date of annexation. 

(2) As development and construction commences within this area, sufficient fire personnel 
and equipment will be provided to continue to furnish this area the level of fire services 
consistent with fire service available in other parts of the City with land uses and 
population densities similar to those projected in the annexed area. 

 
(C) Health and Code Compliance Services. 
 

(1) Enforcement of the City’s health ordinances and regulations including, but not limited 
to, weed and brush ordinances, junked and abandoned vehicle ordinances, food 
handlers’ ordinances and animal control ordinances, shall be provided within this area 
on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. These ordinances and regulations 
will be enforced through the use of existing personnel.  Complaints of ordinance or 
regulation violations within this area will be responded and investigated by existing 
personnel beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

(2) The City’s building, plumbing, electrical, gas heating, air conditioning and all other 
construction codes will be enforced within this area beginning with the effective date 
of the annexation ordinance. Existing personnel will be used to provide these services. 

(3) The City’s zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances shall be enforced in this area 
beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

(4) All inspection services furnished by the City of Rockwall, but not mentioned above, will 
be provided to this area beginning on the effective date of the annexation ordinance.  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

473



Any property owner or his/her assigns who in good faith has a new building or 
structure, as defined in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, under construction on 
the effective date of annexation shall be exempted from these inspections for that 
building or structure under construction for a period of one year from the effective date 
of annexation. For the purpose of this ordinance “under construction” shall mean any 
work that requires a building permit from the City of Rockwall.  

(5) As development and construction commence within this area, sufficient personnel will 
be provided to continue to furnish this area the same level of Health and Code 
compliance services as are furnished throughout the City. 

 
(D) Planning and Zoning Services 
 

(1) The planning and zoning jurisdiction of the City will extend to this area on the effective 
date of the annexation ordinance. City planning will thereafter encompass this 
property, and it shall be entitled to consideration for zoning in accordance with the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, Unified Development Code (UDC) [i.e. Zoning 
Ordinance], and Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
(E) Recreation and Leisure Services 
 

(1) Residents of this property may utilize all existing recreational and leisure services 
facilities and sites throughout the City beginning with the effective date of the 
annexation ordinance. 

(2) Existing parks, playgrounds, swimming pools and other recreation and leisure facilities 
within this property shall, upon dedication to and acceptance by the City, be 
maintained and operated by the City of Rockwall. 

 
(F) Solid Waste Collection 
 

(1) Solid waste collection shall be provided to the property owner in accordance with 
existing City policies as to frequency and charges, beginning on the effective date of 
annexation except for properties that are served by a privately-owned solid waste 
management service provider. Such properties will be allowed to continue private 
service for a period of two (2) years from the effective date of annexation at which time 
the property will be required to begin service with a franchised solid waste contractor 
within the City of Rockwall.  

 
(G) Streets 
 

(1) The City of Rockwall’s existing policies with regard to streets, roads and 
street/roadway lighting maintenance, applicable throughout the entire City, shall apply 
to this property beginning immediately as of the effective date of the annexation 
ordinance. 

(2) As development, improvements or construction of streets to the City standards 
commence within this property, the policies of the City of Rockwall with regard to 
impact fees and participation in the cost thereof, acceptance upon completion, and 
maintenance after completion, shall apply. 

(3) The same level of maintenance shall be provided to public streets and roadways within 
this property that have been accepted by the City of Rockwall as is provided to like 
City streets and roadways throughout the City. 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

474



 
(H) Water Services 
 

(1) Connection to existing City water mains for water services for domestic, commercial 
and industrial use within this property will be provided in accordance with existing City 
policies. Upon connection to existing mains, water will be provided at rates established 
by City ordinance for such services throughout the City. 

(2) Water mains of the City will be extended in accordance with provisions of the Municipal 
Code of Ordinances and other applicable ordinances and regulations. City 
participation in the costs of these extensions shall be in accordance with applicable 
City ordinances and regulations and will be provided as otherwise available in other 
parts of the City with topography, land uses, population densities similar to those 
reasonably contemplated or projected in the annexed area. 

(3) Water mains which are within the annexed area and are owned and operated by the 
City shall be maintained beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance 
or upon acquisition by the City. 

(4) Private water lines within this property shall be maintained by their owners, in 
accordance with existing policies applicable throughout the City. 

 
(I) Sanitary Sewer Services 
 

(1) Connections to existing City sanitary sewer mains for sanitary sewage service in this 
area will be provided in accordance with the existing City policies. Upon connection, 
sanitary sewage service will be provided at rates established by City ordinances for 
such services throughout the City. 

(2) Sanitary sewer mains and/or lift stations which are within the annexed area and are 
connected to City mains shall be maintained by the City of Rockwall beginning with 
the effective date of the annexation ordinance or upon acquisition by the City. 

(3) Sanitary sewer mains of the City will be extended in accordance with the provisions of 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances and engineering standards and other applicable 
ordinances and regulations. City participation in the costs of these extensions shall be 
in accordance with applicable City ordinances and regulations and will be provided as 
otherwise availably in other parts of the City with topography, land uses, and 
population densities similar to those reasonably contemplated or projected in the area. 

(4) Previously granted exceptions to the requirements of connections to the City’s sanitary 
sewer treatment system or Off-Site Sanitary Sewer Facilities (OSSF) constructed prior 
to annexation shall be continued until such alternate systems are determined to no 
longer function to meet the sanitary sewer needs of the subdivision granted the 
exception or for systems installed prior to annexation.   

 
(J) Public Utilities. 
 

(1) Other public utilities will be provided by the City’s franchisee or a provider holding a 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) issued by the state to serve that area. 

 
(K) Miscellaneous. 
 

(1) General municipal administration services of the City shall be available to the annexed 
area beginning with the effective date of the annexation ordinance.  

 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

09
.2

0.
20

21

475



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: September 20, 2021

SUBJECT: Z2021-036; AMENDMENT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 91
(PD-91)

Attachments
Memorandum

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Adam Shiffer of the Skorburg
Company on behalf of Gordon C. Fogg for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change to
amend Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) [Ordinance No. 21-36] to incorporate a 20.00-
acre tract of land identified as Tracts 22-04 & 22-05 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No.
72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as
505 Clem Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council will need to announce the updated public hearing date of October 4, 2021;
however, no further action will be required.

476



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
CC: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: September 20, 2021 
 

SUBJECT: Z2021-036; Amendment to Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) 
 

 

On September 14, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to table Case No. Z2021-036 to the 
September 28, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Moeller absent. 
According to Subsection 02.03(C)(3) of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), “(a) public hearing may be continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council … 
(t)he continuation of a public hearing shall be to a specific time and date no later than 30-days from the first or most recent 
public hearing … [and] (t)he announcement of a continuation at a public hearing shall be sufficient notice and no additional 
notice is required.” Since this case was advertised for a public hearing at the September 20, 2021 City Council meeting, the 
City Council will need to announce the updated public hearing date of October 4, 2021; however, no further action will be 
required. Should the City Council have any questions staff will be available at the September 20, 2021 City Council meeting 

477



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: REDC Budget  

  
 
The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation Board approved the attached budget at their 
Board meeting on August 12, 2021. 
 
Included in the Council packet is the Board’s Annual Workplan and List of Accomplishments 
which will be reviewed during  
 
REDC President, Phil Wagner, will be available at the Council meeting to present aspects of the 
budget and answer any questions.  His memo to the Board is included in the Council packet.  
Phil will also review the Board’s Annual Workplan and list of Accomplishments. 
 
Council action will be needed to approve the REDC annual budget for FY2022. 
 

478



Memo

To: REDC Board of Directors

From: Phil Wagner, President

cc: REDC Staff

Date: August 5, 2021

Re: Fiscal Year 2022 REDC Budget

REDC staff, working with City Manager Mary Smith, has proposed the attached FY22 budget for Board 
consideration. The following summary outlines the amount of savings or increases in each budget 
category from FY21 (assuming 100% expenditures in FY21 and FY22), along with the rationale for any 
changes.  

Personnel Salaries and Benefits ($23,056 in additional expenses from FY21):  This reflects 
a staff promotion, as well as scheduled merit increases and potential incentive pool.

Contractual ($37,826 in proposed savings from FY21): A significant reduction occurred in 
consulting fees, as a result of a large portion of the study and design work for the regional 
detention project at SH276 and Corporate Crossing being completed. Additionally, the REDC 
has completed the virtual speculative office program in FY21. Other savings include reductions 
for ad placements, and cuts in temporary labor due to the lack of need for Rockwall Technology 
Park parking enforcement.  Somewhat significant increases have been budgeted for added legal 
costs associated with a new firm handling the REDC’s economic incentive contracts (and 
increased prospecting activity), larger REDC events, and marketing subscription memberships 
– including a proposed TEDC sponsorship and increased workforce data from the REDC’s 
JobsEQ service.  It should also be noted that the Marketing Consultant line item, while increasing 
a modest amount from the previous budget, has transitioned from the use of one marketing 
agency to several firms focused on specific service delivery.

Supplies ($0 in additional expenses from FY21):  No changes suggested in office supplies, 
postage, or printing and binding.

Operational ($3,240 in additional expenses from FY21):  Small amounts of savings in 
Rockwall Technology Park grounds maintenance and tuition/training were offset by proposed 
increases in travel and trade shows as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic hopefully reaching 
its conclusion.  

33 479



2

 Utilities ($2,600 in proposed savings from FY21):  Savings are a result of new contract for 
office phones. 

 Capital ($1,468,050 in additional expenses from FY21):  The vast majority of this line item 
relates to the upcoming Phase III infrastructure project in the Rockwall Technology Park. 
Construction costs have increased (and may increase again with a new OPCC being delivered 
soon), along with added cost for a traffic control alternative on Rochell Road, and increased 
engineering fees.  Additionally, a line item for land acquisition has been established in 2022, 
associated with the acquisition of excess TxDOT ROW near the intersection of Springer and 
Rochell Road. 

 Incentives $850,500 reduction from FY21   
 

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft FY22 budget on July 28 and has recommended approval 
by the full Board of Directors.  If approved, the FY22 budget will be taken to the City Council in September 
– along with the FY22 annual work plan – for adoption.

attachments 

34 480



                                                           

                                                               
Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Work Plan 

Rockwall Economic Development Corporation  1 
 

V 
 
Goal 1:  Expand and Diversify Tax Base 

o Objective 1:  Support a diversified tax ratio by assisting in the growth of commercial taxable 
values 

Benchmark: Maintain at least a 30% non-residential tax ratio of the entire property tax 

base within the City of Rockwall, with the goal of reaching or exceeding 33% 

o Objective 2:  Pursue development agreements at the Rockwall Technology Park and/or Justin 
Road site 

Benchmark:  Execution of at least one land development agreement 

o Objective 3:  Begin adding public infrastructure necessary for the development of business 
growth in the expanded Rockwall Technology Park Phase III 

Benchmark:  Contract awarded and infrastructure work at least 50% completed in Phase 

III of the Rockwall Technology Park at the Board’s direction, as well as resolution and 

clearance on all regulatory or utility issues (ex: FEMA (CLOMR), USACE, and TCEQ, 

utility easements, etc.) 

o Objective 4:  Ensure the REDC Board of Directors are aware of land acquisition possibilities, 
market conditions, and the organization’s strategic and budgetary position to capitalize on 
opportunities to grow capacity of light industrial or office development 

Benchmark:  Make annual update to the previously approved Land Acquisition and 

Improvement Plan and review with the Board of Directors 

 

Goal 2:  Retain & Expand Existing Business 

o Objective 1:  Encourage growth of existing primary employers in Rockwall 
 

Benchmark:  Facilitate or incentivize at least one new business expansion per year 
 

o Objective 2:  Establish and grow relationships with existing primary employers by frequently 
reaching out to promote relevant information, as well as take part in discussions regarding 
each company’s opportunities and threats and how the REDC can better support their efforts 

Benchmark:  Proactively contact every primary employer individually at least once; engage 

in at least three business tours as a sign of growing relationships 

o Objective 3:  Continually serve as advocate for existing primary employers by serving as a 
liaison between company and governmental agencies, utilities, and local organizations on 
various public-facing issues  

481



 

Rockwall Economic Development Corporation  2 
 

Benchmark:  Assist at least five companies – and respond to all inquiries – by helping 

facilitate a positive, streamlined, and/or transparent response from governmental entity, 

public utility, or local organization  

o Objective 4:  Host one event annually recognizing the employees of primary sector employers 
in the community; possibly develop and implement award program as part of the effort   

Benchmark:  Depending upon Board direction, grow the event by at least 10% from the 

number of primary employers represented or the total number of attendees from either 

2019 event (Southern Junction event) or 2021 event (Food Truck event), depending upon 

what event is pursued in 2022.  Additionally, receive positive feedback from participants  

o Objective 5:  Host one event annually recognizing the executives and management of primary 
sector employers in the community 

Benchmark:  Host the event and receive positive feedback from participants 

o Objective 6:  Create opportunities to develop connections with existing businesses between 
both the REDC staff and Board members, including utilizing events and gatherings to further 
build relationships 

Benchmark:  Pursue at least four opportunities to host and entertain local businesses to 

deepen relationships, utilizing events like the Chamber of Commerce Golf Tournament, 

Chamber Clay Shoot, Rockwall ISD Education Foundation Bowling Tournament, BRE 

event at Globe Life Field, etc.  

o Objective 7:  Utilize planned business travel and trade shows opportunities to gather 
information and make connections to suppliers or customers on behalf of existing businesses 
that may not be at the conference; additionally, when travelling staff should schedule 
headquarter visits for local primary employers when appropriate and convenient 

Benchmark: Offer service to at least five companies that may gain valuable information 

from the REDC’s business travel.  

o Objective 8:  Make efforts, where appropriate, to preserve local sales tax – especially in light 
of I-30 expansion challenges 

Benchmark:  Position the REDC to serve as a willing partner, (as requested by the City, 

yet within operational limitations set by the Board of Directors), to assist the community in 

the business outreach and retail retention efforts associated with the I-30 expansion 

project  

 

Goal 3:  Attract New Business & Investment 

o Objective 1:  REDC facilitation or incentivizing of direct commercial investment  

Benchmark:  Facilitate or incentivize at least $36M in private investment 

482



 

Rockwall Economic Development Corporation  3 
 

o Objective 2:  Development and execution of recruitment strategy, including utilization of 
prospecting vendors, local and regional partnerships, responding to leads and requests for 
proposals, hosting familiarization tours with brokers, attendance at trade shows, recruitment 
missions, and site selector conferences, and direct communication with companies as a result 
of database inquiries, predictive analytics, BRE information and news articles 

Benchmark:  Establish at least four qualified prospects for recruitment consideration 

through work conducted, relationships established, or vendors procured by the REDC staff 

(i.e. not inbound leads) 

o Objective 3:  Establish relationships with commercial real estate brokers and/or site selectors 
to promote services provided by the REDC and the benefits of conducting business in 
Rockwall 

Benchmark:  Attend or host at least 11 local gatherings, conference calls, or virtual 

meetings with brokers or site selectors 

o Objective 4:   Promote Rockwall on a national basis through attendance at various trade 
shows, marketing trips and recruitment missions, and/or site selector/commercial real estate 
conferences 

Benchmark:  Attend at least six events that hold national exposure opportunities for the 

REDC.   

o Objective 5:  Engage in sophisticated marketing efforts – including utilization of website SEO, 
paid digital marketing, targeted media, and enhanced website and social media content – with 
the goal of improving the quantity and quality of inbound prospect leads  

Benchmark:  Generate at least one primary employment prospect through marketing 

channels or advertising opportunities procured or managed by REDC; prospect interest 

should be traced directly back to that marketing or advertising effort  

o Objective 6:  Maintain updated marketing information  

Benchmark:  Ensure collateral is updated annually (or as needed), and that the REDC 

website and social media pages are always updated with fresh content, with social media 

pages receiving new posts at least once per week 

 

Goal 4:  Enhance Existing Job Opportunities and Create New Ones 

o Objective 1:  Maintain or grow median household income in Rockwall 
 

Benchmark:  Increase median household income by at least 2% from previous year 

($95,653 in June 2021, with new goal $97,566)  

 

o Objective 2:  REDC facilitation or incentivizing of high quality jobs within Rockwall 
 

483



 

Rockwall Economic Development Corporation  4 
 

Benchmark:  Facilitate or incentivize at least 50 jobs with annual salary greater than 10% 

higher than half the desired median household income listed above ($54,000 per job) 

 

o Objective 3:  Continue to support both local businesses and the general community by hosting 
the Rockwall job fair 

 

Benchmark:  Grow employer and/or attendee participation by 25% from previous event 

OR receive at least 90% satisfaction rate from participating employers surveyed after the 

event  

 

o Objective 4:  Address pertinent workforce recruitment or development challenges by 
identifying issues and facilitating employer partnerships with various community organizations 
(ex: public, non-profit, educational or other institutions) to ascertain programs or educational 
opportunities that exist, or can be developed, that will allow those issues to be addressed or 
gaps to be narrowed  

 

Benchmark:  Actively facilitate at least one partnership where workforce recruitment and/or 

development challenges are addressed  

 

o Objective 5:  Seek to facilitate the development of new, high-quality office inventory in 
Rockwall that will lead to further growth in white collar jobs 

 

Benchmark:  Execute at least one development agreement where the REDC will 

incentivize the construction of additional office inventory; or secure at least one 

commitment for an office tenant to relocate to a Rockwall office project (assuming one is 

available)  

 

Goal 5:  Ensure all Business of the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation is Conducted 

o Objective 1:  Meet all requirements of organizational bylaws and policies 
 

Benchmark:  Achieve 100% compliance with bylaws and REDC policies 

 

o Objective 2:  Keep updated on all germane provisions state law relating to economic 
development sales tax corporations, open meetings law, and the public information act. 

Benchmark:  One staff member (on a rotational basis) to attend a day long sales-tax 

training seminar hosted by the Texas Economic Development Council 

o Objective 3:  Negotiate all REDC agreements and incentives with acceptable rate of return 
and payback periods to safeguard the interest of the Rockwall taxpayer  
 

Benchmark:  Updated REDC Incentive Guidelines, at the Board’s direction, including 

possible consideration for new provisions related to desired financial performance for RTP 

prospects, potential office tenant incentives, consideration for BRE prospects, and 

possibly automation that results in workforce attrition 

484



 

Rockwall Economic Development Corporation  5 
 

 

o Objective 4:   Ensure appropriate value is placed on all incentive offers, including land 
discounts 

Benchmark:  Complete updated appraisals on available, shovel-ready land owned by the 

REDC 

o Objective 5:  Ensure all parties maintain compliance with all REDC development and incentive 
agreements 

 
Benchmark:  Achieve all standards for taxable value, jobs and wages set in REDC 

agreements, or enforce clawback provisions as articulated in each agreement (unless 

waived by the Board of Directors) 

 

o Objective 6:  Maintain a detailed and accurate budget, and ensure that all expenditures are 
appropriately processed and Technology Park assessments are billed in an accurate and 
timely fashion 

 

Benchmark:  Maintain compliance with annual budget, along with no complaints from 

vendors for late payments that were within the REDC’s control 

 

o Objective 7:  Position REDC for next five years (2023 – 2027) by engaging in strategic 
planning update that includes input from the Board of Directors and the City Council 

Benchmark:  Engage in strategic planning effort with a schedule to be complete by end of 

calendar year 2022 

o Objective 8:  Ensure the REDC is an attractive and competitive employer for talented staff  
 

Benchmark:  Achieve 100% retention of staff, with each staff member being encouraged 

to explore a professional development opportunity related to the REDC’s mission  

485



 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year 2021 List of Accomplishments 
from Annual Work Plan 

 
Goal 1:  Expand and Diversify Tax Base 
 

• On schedule to complete Land Acquisition, Development, and Incentive 
Agreement with Project Cocoa Charlie, an international chocolate manufacturer 
that plans a $43 capital investment as part of a headquarter relocation that will 
result in the construction of an estimated 200,000 square foot facility on 10.6 acres 
in the Rockwall Technology Park 
 

• Began design work with Kimley-Horn engineers to create regional detention for 
nearly 25 acres at SH-276 and Corporate Crossing; effort was part of REDC’s 
overall goal to ensure Rockwall Technology Park land is as shovel ready as 
possible for future development 

 
Goal 2:  Retain and Expand Existing Business 
 

• On schedule to complete Development Incentive Agreement for Project Royal, a 
local manufacturer that is adding $22.6M of capital investment, primarily in 
machinery, as part of a new joint venture with a globally known company 
 

• Interceded and advocated for numerous businesses – including Pratt Industries, 
Karat by Lollicup, Lime Media, SPR Packaging, Interstate Wire, and MorPak 
Specialties – on utility, permitting, crime, and various regulatory and governmental 
challenges faced 
 

• Hosted Rockwall Employee Appreciation Event in July, providing 1,018 
complimentary food truck meals for employees of 26 primary employers (plus the 
City of Rockwall), across a two-day event, as a way for the REDC to show 
appreciation for the contributions the local workforce provides to the area economy  
 

Goal 3:  Attract New Business & Investment 
 

• On schedule to facilitate an estimated $65.6M of investment between Project 
Cocoa Charlie and Project Royal 
 

• Engaged in significant discussions with prospects across the food and beverage 
manufacturing, automotive, aerospace, technology, e-commerce, metals, and 
packaging industries 

 

486



 

 

• Facilitated approximately 15 virtual meetings with brokers and site selectors in 
different national markets – including Chicago and New York – meetings that would 
have likely not occurred if not for the COVID-19 pandemic and the increased use 
of videoconferencing  

 
Goal 4:  Enhance Existing Job Opportunities and Create New Ones 
 

• On schedule to facilitate the creation of 52 high quality jobs (Project Cocoa Charlie 
and Project Royal), defined by the REDC in FY2021 as jobs earning more than 
$51,000 in annual salary 
 

• Modest economic incentive provided to Project Legacy for REDC to share in 
marketing costs to generate potential tenant interest to spur the development of a 
147,000 SF Class A office building 
 

• Engaged with architect BOKA Powell on “virtual speculative office program,” 
completing speculative renderings, elevations drawings, site plans, and cost 
estimates for seven potential in-fill office projects ranging in size from 45,000 SF 
to 120,000 SF 
 

• Despite pandemic, Rockwall community saw median household income increase 
approximately 3.7%, from $92,269 in summer 2020 to $95,653 in summer 2021 
(according to US Census Bureau) 
 

• Received strong participation from job seekers (401) and employers (13) at the 
2020 Rockwall Job Fair, an online only event held as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic in September 2020; REDC will once again host an in-person event at 
Lake Pointe Church on September 13, 2021 with plans underway for a significant 
marketing campaign to reach area job-seekers that may have an interest in 
production or manufacturing jobs 

 
 
Goal 5:  Ensure all Business of the REDC is Conducted Appropriately 
 

• REDC sought new contracts in areas such as Rockwall Technology Park grounds 
and irrigation maintenance, as well as engineering services, in part to create cost 
savings, ensure competition is facilitated, and new ideas are explored 

 
• Maintained compliance with all existing incentive agreements; the two incentive 

agreements planned for completion in FY21 were created within payback and 
percent investment standards outlined in REDC incentive guidelines 
 

• Complete retention of staff with promotion of Office Manager to Office Manager / 
Marketing Coordinator, with ongoing plans to maintain a three-member team 
 

487



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Total Revenues 6,626,893         6,206,850         7,662,500         7,652,550         

Total Expenditures 12,876,512       28,455,350       6,763,400         29,414,300       

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (6,249,619)       (22,248,500)      899,100           (21,761,750)      

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 9,831,566         21,277,950       -                   21,800,000       

Net Gain (Loss) 3,581,947         (970,550)          899,100           38,250             

Fund Balance - Beginning 6,304,164         5,871,564         9,886,111         10,785,211       

Fund Balance - Ending 9,886,111         4,901,014         10,785,211       10,823,461       

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Page 1

488



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development 71   EDC Administration

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account Description 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

4150 Sales Tax 6,522,878         6,166,850        7,650,000         7,650,000        
4001 Interest Earnings 95,894              35,000             10,000              50                   
4019 Miscellaneous Revenue 774                  -                  -                   -                  
4020 Interest/Reserve Fund 7,347               5,000               2,500               2,500              
4450 Technology Park Sales -                   -                  -                   -                  
4460 Parking Lease Revenue -                   -                  -                   -                  

Total Revenues 6,626,893         6,206,850        7,662,500         7,652,550        

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

Page 2

489



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

    Bond Proceeds 9,831,566        21,277,950      -                  21,800,000      

Total Other Financing Sources 9,831,566        21,277,950      -                  21,800,000      

Total Other Financing Uses -                  -                  -                  -                  

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) 9,831,566        21,277,950      -                  21,800,000      

Page 3

SUMMARY OF OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

490



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
21   Economic Development

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

REDC Administration 891,998           1,002,250        1,002,250        958,600           
Promotions & Marketing 120,249           391,000           391,000           421,600           
Incentives 1,960,230        2,188,000        928,000           1,495,600        
Capital Projects 7,439,859        20,439,950      8,000               21,908,000      
Debt Service 2,464,176        4,434,150        4,434,150        4,630,500        

Total Expenditures 12,876,512      28,455,350      6,763,400        29,414,300      

Page 4

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

491



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund Division
21   Economic Development 71   Economic Develop.

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Personnel 414,286         424,700               424,700         447,800           
Contractual 436,979         811,950               811,950         775,150           
Supplies 8,364             6,500                   6,500              6,500               
Operational 144,915         141,700               141,700         144,950           
Utilities 7,703             8,400                   8,400              5,800               
Capital 7,439,859      20,439,950         8,000              21,908,000     
Incentive Grants 1,960,230      2,188,000           928,000         1,495,600        

-                  
Total 10,412,336    24,021,200         2,329,250      24,783,800     

Position
FY 21 

Approved
FY 22

Proposed

Economic Development Corporation President 1 1
Director of Project Development 1 1
Office Manager/Marketing Coordinator 1 1

DIVISION SUMMARY
                          Department
                70   Economic Development          

Expenditure Summary

Page 5

Personnel Schedule

Activity Trends

 1,000,000

 6,000,000

 11,000,000

 16,000,000

 21,000,000

 26,000,000

Expended
FY 20

 Budgeted
FY 21

 Amended
FY 21

 Proposed
FY 22

Financial History
Personnel

5% Contractual
4%

Supplies
.5%

Operational
2%

Utilities
.5%

Capital
69%

Incentive 
Grants

6%

FY 2022 Expenditures by Category

492



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund Division
21   Economic Development 71   Economic Develop.

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22
Personnel

Salaries - Wages & Incentives 301,776        323,500         323,500         342,100           

Total Salaries - Wages Incentives 301,776        323,500         323,500         342,100           

120 FICA & Medicare 25,420          24,750           24,750           26,200             
122 Retirement 65,348          52,950           52,950           56,000             
128 Ins. Unemployment 242               2,000             2,000             2,000               
224 Workers Comp. 500               500                500                500                  
230 Health Insurance 21,000          21,000           21,000           21,000             

Total Benefits 112,510        101,200         101,200         105,700           
-                   

Total Personnel Costs 414,286        424,700         424,700         447,800           

Contractual

210 Auditing 1,500            1,500             1,500             1,500               
211 Legal 21,257          50,000           50,000           75,000             
213 Consulting Fees 62,925          270,000         270,000         194,000           
217 Cable and Internet 10,738          12,000           12,000           12,000             
223 Insurance - Blanket Surety Bond 100               100                100                100                  
227 Insurance - Property 1,800            1,800             1,800             1,800               
229 Insurance - Liability 500               500                500                500                  
232 Temporary Labor 2,925            20,000           20,000           5,200               

234.01 Marketing - Consulting 105,118        95,000           95,000           101,000           
234.02 Marketing - Ad Placement 46,771          87,000           87,000           73,500             
234.03 Marketing - REDC Events 41,921          59,000           59,000           79,000             
234.04 Marketing - Subscriptions Memberships 55,098          120,000         120,000         133,100           

242 Copier Rental and Lease 5,400            5,100             5,100             5,100               
243 Building Lease, Cleaning, Storage 60,927          66,950           66,950           70,350             
244 Building Repairs -                3,000             3,000             3,000               
299 Administrative Services 20,000          20,000           20,000           20,000             

Total Contractual 436,979        811,950         811,950         775,150           

Page 6

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Description

Department
 70   Economic Develop.        

493



Annual Budget, Economic Development Cont'd
Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed

Account 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22
Supplies

301 Office Supplies 6,117            5,000             5,000             5,000               
307 Postage 475               500                500                500                  
310 Printing & Binding 1,772            1,000             1,000             1,000               
347 Gen. Maint. Supplies -                -                 -                 -                   

Total Supplies 8,364            6,500             6,500             6,500               

Operational

410.01 News Subscriptions 280               700                700                700                  
410.02 Professional Memberships 929               3,000             3,000             3,000               

428 Meeting Expenses 3,609            5,000             5,000             5,000               
430 Tuition & Training 389               4,000             4,000             3,000               
436 Travel 5,042            15,000           15,000           20,000             
437 Trade Shows 4,890            10,000           10,000           15,000             
438 Prospect Visits/Business Retention 5,199            20,000           20,000           20,000             

439.01 Common Area Maintenance-REDC Portion 78,350          53,400           53,400           52,000             
439.02 Maintenance of Undeveloped Park Land 42,177          27,000           27,000           22,650             
439.03 Maintenance of Undeveloped Justin Road 4,050            3,600             3,600             3,600               

Total Operational 144,915        141,700         141,700         144,950           

Utilities

501 Electricity 4,400            4,800             4,800             4,800               
507 Telephone 3,303            3,600             3,600             1,000               

Total Utilities 7,703            8,400             8,400             5,800               

Capital

601 Land Acquisition 6,676,613     -                 -                 100,000           
610 Furniture & Fixtures -                5,000             5,000             5,000               
612 Computer Equipment 16,703          3,000             3,000             3,000               
678 Phase III Eng/Construction 695,274        20,431,950    -                 21,800,000      
680 Parking Lot Eng/Construction 51,269          -                 -                 -                   

Total Capital 7,439,859     20,439,950    8,000             21,908,000      

Incentives

661 Contracted Incentives 1,960,230     2,188,000      928,000         1,495,600        

Total Incentives 1,960,230     2,188,000      928,000         1,495,600        

Division Total 10,412,336   24,021,200    2,329,250      24,783,800      

Description

Page 7

494



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund Division
21   Economic Development 71   Economic Develop.

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22
Debt Service

750 Administration Fees 4,000              4,500              4,500              4,500              
752 Principal - Bonds 1,725,000       2,210,000       2,210,000       2,375,000       
754 Interest - Bonds 735,176          2,219,650       2,219,650       2,251,000       

Total Debt Service 2,464,176       4,434,150       4,434,150       4,630,500       

Detail Principal Interest
2013- Infrastructure 345,000          239,338          
2013 Land Purchase 200,000          189,264          
2015 Ref Bonds (2006) 350,000          44,661            
2016 Ref Bonds (2008) 325,000          143,825          
2017 Sales Tax Bonds 290,000          82,800            
2019 Sales Tax Ref Bonds 315,000          400,750          
2021 Proposed Debt 550,000          1,150,400       

2,375,000       2,251,037       

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Page 8

Description

Department
 70   Economic Develop.    

495



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: RTPA Budget  

  
 
The Rockwall Technology Park Association Board met Thursday September 9, 2021 to approve 
the budget for maintenance of the Tech Park.  The budget includes a slight decrease in the park 
maintenance budget but will include a refresh of the lighting and plant materials.   
 
EDC President, Phil Wagner, will be available at the Council meeting to answer any questions 
about the proposed budget. 
 

496



Memo
To: RTPA Board of Directors

From: Matt Wavering

cc: REDC Staff

Date: September 3, 2021

Re: RTPA Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Review

The attached documents represent the proposed Fiscal Year 2022 budget for the Rockwall Technology Park 
Association (RTPA). The following summary has been provided for review and consideration. 

Overall Budget
The budget to maintain the RTP CAM areas totals $180,450. This is down from $183,650 in FY21 due to 
fewer budgeted non-annual landscape improvements, identified below.

Landscape/Irrigation Maintenance
This line item includes the following:

Grounds and irrigation maintenance of CAM areas: $115,011.00. This covers maintenance of the 
CAM areas within the RTP including mowing, trimming, fertilizer, plantings, inspection & 
adjustment of flags, trash pick-up, and irrigation system maintenance.  

Additional non-annual improvements to CAM areas: $15,500.00. This includes a budget for 
replacement/upgrade of 14 existing light fixtures at the Innovation & SH-276 and Discovery & 
Corporate Crossing entry features. The halogen fixtures are over 20 years old and many are 
inoperable. The fixtures will be replaced with modern LED units. $10,000 has also been budgeted 
to replace some of the dead perennials throughout the RTP that were damaged during the 
February freeze.

Landscape damage reserve: $3,000.00. A reserve fund to cover the cost of potential repairs due 
to damage caused by trucks or joyriders displacing landscape boulders and/or ruts in landscaping 
beds. Staff has observed a consistent yet sporadic occurrence of damage to flower beds, irrigation 
systems, and the displacement of boulders annually that results in additional unbudgeted costs 
to repair. Beginning in FY21 and continuing in FY22, an additional reserve has been budgeted in 
anticipation of these expenses.

Auditing, Insurance, Administrative Services
These contractual expenses are unchanged for FY22. 

24 497



  

 2 

Supplies & Utilities 
Projected expenses for supplies, flags, and utilities are expected to be unchanged for FY22.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the draft FY22 RTPA budget as presented. If approved by the RTPA Board 
of Directors, the budget will become effective on October 1, 2021. The REDC serves as declarant of the 
RTPA pursuant to the Rockwall Technology Park Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, and in this 
capacity, is authorized to approve budgets on behalf of the RTPA. 
 
 
attachment 

25 498



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
22   Tech Park Association

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Total Revenues 226,441        183,650        183,650          180,450        

Total Expenditures 206,874        183,650        183,650          180,450        

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 19,567          -               -                 -               

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) -               -               -                 -               

Net Gain (Loss) 19,567          -               -                 -               

Fund Balance - Beginning 8,871            28,463          28,438            28,438          

Fund Balance - Ending 28,438          28,463          28,438            28,438          

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Page 1

499



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
22   Tech Park Association

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account Description 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

4470 RTP Dues - Tenants 148,091        130,650        130,650          128,400        
REDC Cam Dues 78,350          53,000          53,000            52,050          

Total Revenues 226,441        183,650        183,650          180,450        

Page 2

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

RTPA

500



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund Division
22   Tech Park Association RTPA

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

158,832       140,150       140,150         136,950       
-               10,000         10,000           10,000         

48,042         33,500         33,500           33,500         

206,874       183,650       183,650         180,450       

Page 3

DIVISION SUMMARY
                          Department
                70   Economic Development          

Expenditure Summary

Contractual
Supplies
Utilities

Total

501



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund Division 75
22   Tech Park Association

Actual Budgeted Amended Proposed
Account 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Contractual

210 Auditing 500             500             500                500              
227 Insurance - Property 900             900             900                900              
247 Landscape/Irrig Maint 155,432      136,750      136,750         133,550       
299 Administrative Svcs 2,000          2,000          2,000             2,000           

Total Contractual 158,832      140,150      140,150         136,950       

Supplies

329 Flag Replacements -             9,000          9,000             9,000           
347 Gen. Maint. Supplies -             1,000          1,000             1,000           

Total Supplies -             10,000        10,000           10,000         

Utilities

501 Electric 1,926          3,500          3,500             3,500           
513 Water 46,116        30,000        30,000           30,000         

Total Utilities 48,042        33,500        33,500           33,500         

Division Total 206,874      183,650      183,650         180,450       

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Department

 70   Economic Develop.        

Description

Page 4

 RTPA Developed Phases

502



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Amending the Fiscal Year 2021 Budget 

  
 
The final General fund budget summary sheets for the fiscal year 2021 amended and fiscal year 
2021 proposed budget are included in the Council packet with the budget adoption agenda item.  
The amended budget was not changed during budget discussions. 
 
 
 

503



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2020 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 
2021; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the budget of the City Council of the City of Rockwall for the 

fiscal year October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2021, be and the same is hereby 
amended and such amendments are indicated and shown on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, this 20th day of September, 2021. 

 
 
 

    
ATTEST:  Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
  
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 

504



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Adopting the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget 

  
 
Notebook.  It is included by reference only, rather than presented again in its entirety.   
 
General Fund  
 
The General Fund budget will anticipate tax collections based on a 35.00 cent tax rate.   
 
The only change to the proposed budget was establishing IT as a department with its own 
budget.  Previously the IT expenses were included in Internal Operations and Police Records so 
those budgets were reduced accordingly. This was discussed during the budget worksession 
but the budget figures were not updated to reflect this change at that time. 
     

 
 
Water – Sewer Fund 
 
The budget as proposed does not reflect an increase in water or wastewater rates.  

505



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, APPROVING AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR 
THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2021, THROUGH 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; PROVIDING THAT EXPENDITURES FOR SAID 
FISCAL YEAR SHALL BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SAID 
BUDGET; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Rockwall, Texas has heretofore filed 

with the City Secretary a proposed General Budget for the City covering the fiscal year 
aforesaid, and 

 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the City has concluded its public hearing on 

said budget, 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 7.06 of the City Charter, the budget for 

fiscal year 2021-22 is being adopted in a timely manner, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That said budget for the fiscal year October 1, 2021, through 

September 30, 2022 be and the same is hereby attached to this ordinance and made a 
part hereof for all purposes and marked “Exhibit A”. 

 
Section 2. That said budget attached hereto and marked “Exhibit A” be, 

and the same hereby is, approved and adopted by fund, by the City Council, as the 
official budget for the City for the fiscal year aforesaid. 

 
Section 3. That expenditures during the fiscal year shall be made in 

accordance with the budget approved by this ordinance unless otherwise amended by a 
duly enacted ordinance of the city. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, this 20th day of September, 2021. 

 
 
   
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
  
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 506



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Adopted
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Total Revenues 40,754,206    38,918,600    47,103,450    44,545,650   
-               

Total Operating Expenditures 36,105,280    36,325,250    36,146,950    40,421,050   

Capital Reserve Expenditures -                794,100         1,599,100      3,721,850     

Excess Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 4,648,925      1,799,250      9,357,400      402,750        

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (2,669,500)     (2,593,350)     (2,593,350)     (3,749,650)    

Net Gain (Loss) 1,979,425      (794,100)        6,764,050      (3,346,900)    
-               

Fund Balance - Beginning 14,635,489    14,057,403    16,614,914    23,378,964   

Fund Balance - Ending 16,614,914    13,263,303    23,378,964    20,032,064   

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

507



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Adopted
Account Description 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

4100 Current Taxes 12,722,424         13,178,100     13,460,000     13,388,800   
4105 Delinquent Taxes 116,735              80,000           80,000           80,000          
4110 Penalty & Interest 64,420                60,000           60,000           60,000          

Total Property Taxes 12,903,578         13,318,100     13,600,000     13,528,800   

4150 Sales Taxes 19,358,248         18,412,500     22,700,000     22,700,000   
4155 Beverage Taxes 226,217              150,000          200,000          200,000        
4160 Sales Tax Rebate (3,590)                -                 -                 -               

Total Sales Taxes 19,580,875         18,562,500     22,900,000     22,900,000   

4201 Electrical Franchise 1,968,903           1,960,000       1,960,000       1,960,000     
4203 Telephone Franchise 106,809              95,000           95,000           95,000          
4205 Gas Franchise 502,836              500,000          500,000          500,000        
4207 Cable TV Franchise 312,947              295,000          260,000          295,000        
4209 Garbage Franchise 353,779              315,000          350,000          350,000        

Total Franchise Fees 3,245,274           3,165,000       3,165,000       3,200,000     

4250 Park & Recreation Fees 15,610                15,000           30,000           15,000          
4251 Municipal Pool Fees -                     22,000           22,000           22,000          
4253 Center Rentals 10,472                10,000           28,000           10,000          
4255 Harbor Rentals 1,540                 1,000             1,000             1,000           
4270 Code Enforcement Fees 38,428                10,000           30,000           10,000          
4280 Zoning Request Fees 58,215                50,000           75,000           50,000          
4283 Construction Inspection 603,475              500,000          500,000          500,000        
4295 Fire - Plans 5,915                 4,500             4,500             4,500           

Total Fees 733,655              612,500          690,500          612,500        

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

508



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Adopted
Account Description 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

4300 Building Permits 1,324,038           1,000,000       1,300,000       1,150,000     
4302 Fence Permits 26,950                20,000           20,000           20,000          
4304 Electrical Permits 31,604                25,000           25,000           25,000          
4306 Plumbing Permits 67,964                50,000           50,000           50,000          
4308 Mechanical Permits 39,055                55,000           35,000           55,000          
4310 Daycare Center Permits 4,330                 5,500             5,500             5,500           
4312 Health Permits 111,438              132,000          120,000          132,000        
4314 Sign Permits 17,073                20,000           20,000           20,000          
4288 Beverage Permits 7,845                 15,000           15,000           15,000          
4320 Miscellaneous Permits 65,510                50,000           65,000           50,000          

Total Permits 1,695,805           1,372,500       1,655,500       1,522,500     

4400 Court Fines 277,588              275,000          250,000          250,000        
4402 Court Fees 74,886                80,000           50,000           50,000          
4404 Warrant Fees 38,108                35,000           30,000           30,000          
4406 Court Deferral Fees 119,321              150,000          80,000           80,000          
4408 Animal Registration Fees 4,173                 5,000             5,000             5,000           
4414 Alarm Fees and Fines 56,953                59,000           59,000           59,000          

Total Municipal Court 571,028              604,000          474,000          474,000        

4001 Interest Earnings 203,835              70,000           70,000           50,000          
4007 Sale of Supplies 42                      500                500                500              
4010 Auction/Scrap Proceeds 97,756                20,000           110,000          20,000          
4019 Miscellaneous 30,235                20,000           20,000           20,000          
4450 Land Sales -                     -                 -                 -               
4480 Tower Leases 21,826                25,000           25,000           25,000          
4680 Developer Contributions 91,729                -                 -                 30,000          

Total Miscellaneous 445,424              135,500          225,500          145,500        

4500 Grant Proceeds 503,646              -                 3,244,450       1,013,850     
4510 School Patrol 621,890              621,850          621,850          621,850        
4520 County Contracts 800                    1,000             1,000             1,000           
4530 City Contracts 452,230              525,650          525,650          525,650        

Total Intergovernmental 1,578,566           1,148,500       4,392,950       2,162,350     

Total Revenues 40,754,206         38,918,600     47,103,450     44,545,650   

509



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Adopted
19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

Other Financing Sources

          Operating Transfers In:
From Water & Sewer 200,000        300,000        300,000       300,000        
From Court Fees 13,200          -               -               -               

Total Other Financing Sources 213,200        300,000        300,000       300,000        

Other Financing Uses

          Operating Transfers Out:
To Rec. Dev. Fund -               -               -               800,000        
To Employee Benefit Fund (Ins.) 2,250,000     2,250,000     2,250,000     2,750,000     
To Workers Compensation Fund 180,000        180,000        180,000       200,000        
To Tech. Replacement Fund 202,700        213,350        213,350       299,650        
To Vehicle Replacement Fund 250,000        250,000        250,000       -               

Total Other Financing Uses 2,882,700     2,893,350     2,893,350     4,049,650     

Less Capital Reserve -               -               -               -               

Net Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (2,669,500)    (2,593,350)    (2,593,350)    (3,749,650)    

SUMMARY OF OPERATING TRANSFERS

510



City of Rockwall 2021 - 2022 Annual Budget

Fund
01   General

Actual Budgeted Amended Adopted
Dept. Div. 19-20 20-21 20-21 21-22

10 01 Mayor/Council 88,568           121,800         121,800          125,550        
10 05 Administration 2,026,704      2,080,350      2,189,850        2,018,000     
10 06 Administrative Services 521,408         569,700         499,700          492,600        
10 07 Information Technology -                -                -                 998,700        
10 09 Internal Operations 2,453,372      2,384,100      2,687,100        2,867,600     
15 11 Finance 737,711         890,600         800,600          1,048,250     
15 15 Municipal Court 389,693         463,000         455,900          500,500        
20 25 Fire Operations 4,630,849      4,983,400      5,449,100        6,172,200     
20 29 Fire Marshal 647,568         677,650         685,850          772,200        
30 31 Police Administration 1,404,227      1,262,950      1,245,950        1,561,250     
30 32 Communications 1,191,493      1,441,150      1,352,150        1,465,000     
30 33 Patrol 6,059,221      6,223,000      6,198,500        7,015,150     
30 34 CID 1,699,350      1,914,750      1,644,150        2,203,000     
30 35 Community Services 1,470,630      1,552,950      1,468,150        1,756,750     
30 36 Warrants 227,976         247,350         247,350          259,050        
30 37 Records 490,172         515,000         517,500          338,500        
40 41 Planning 786,505         863,100         813,100          852,200        
40 42 Neighborhood Improv. 510,268         538,300         538,300          588,600        
40 43 Building Inspections 811,031         803,500         803,500          781,500        
45 45 Parks 2,973,313      3,112,900      3,070,900        3,265,750     
45 46 Harbor O&M 594,486         583,200         583,200          640,300        
45 47 Recreation 750,733         1,010,150      1,021,650        1,174,400     
45 48 Animal Services 653,605         658,650         658,650          739,700        
50 53 Engineering 1,027,645      1,081,050      1,081,050        1,290,350     
50 59 Streets 3,958,755      3,140,750      3,612,050        5,215,800     

36,105,280    37,119,350    37,746,050      44,142,900   

Less Capital Reserve -                794,100         1,599,100        3,721,850     

Total Operating Expenditures 36,105,280    36,325,250    36,146,950      40,421,050   

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

511



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Tax Rate Adoption 

  
 
The Council agenda for Monday September 20, 2021 includes the ordinance to adopt 

the Ad Valorem tax rate of 35.00 cents per one hundred dollars of assessed value.  Specific 
language in the motion is not required this year since we are adopting a rate less than the No 
New Revenue tax rate.  

 

512



Ordinance Levying Ad Valorem Taxes – Page 1 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, LEVYING THE AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2021 AT A 
RATE OF $.3500 PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) ASSESSED 
VALUATION ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY AS OF JANUARY 1, 2021 TO PROVIDE REVENUES 
FOR THE PAYMENT OF CURRENT EXPENSES AND TO PROVIDE AN 
INTEREST AND SINKING FUND ON ALL OUTSTANDING DEBTS OF THE 
CITY; PROVIDING FOR DUE AND DELINQUENT DATES, TOGETHER WITH 
PENALTIES AND INTEREST; APPROVING THE 2021 TAX ROLL; 
PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS OF PERSONS OVER SIXTY-FIVE (65) 
YEARS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That there be and is hereby levied for the year 2021 on all taxable 

property, real, personal and mixed, situated within the limits of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and 
not exempt by the Constitution of the state and valid State Laws, a tax of $.3500 on each ONE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) assessed value of taxable property and shall be apportioned 
and distributed as follows: 
 

a. For the purpose of defraying the current expenses of municipal 
government of the City, a tax of $.205416 each ONE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($100.00) assessed value of all taxable property. 

 
b. For the purpose of creating a sinking fund to pay the interest and principal 

on all outstanding bonds of the City not otherwise provided for, a tax of 
$.144584 each ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) assessed value of 
all taxable property, within the city which shall be applied to the payment 
of such interest and maturities of all outstanding bonds. 

 
Section 2. That all ad valorem taxes shall become due and payable on October 1, 

2021, and all ad valorem taxes for the year shall become delinquent after January 31, 2022.  If 
any person fails to pay the ad valorem taxes on or before the 31st of January, 2022, the 
following penalties shall be payable thereon, to wit: 

 
During the month of February, six percent (6%); during the month of March, 
seven percent (7%); during the month of April, eight percent (8%); during the 
month of May, nine percent (9%); during the month of June, ten percent (10%); 
and on or after the first day of July, twelve percent (12%). 
 
Section 3. Taxes are payable in Rockwall, Texas, at the office of the designated Tax 

Collector.  The City shall have available all rights and remedies provided by law for the 
enforcement of the collection of taxes levied under this ordinance. 

 
Section 4. All delinquent taxes shall bear the maximum rate of interest per annum as 

provided by law, in addition to the penalties provided herein. 

513



Ordinance Levying Ad Valorem Taxes – Page 2 

 
Section 5. All taxes for the year 2021 which remain delinquent on July 1, 2022 shall 

incur an additional penalty of twenty percent (20%) of the amount of taxes, penalty and interest 
due to defray cost of collection. 
 

Section 6. That pursuant to Article VIII-1b of the Constitution of Texas, $60,000 of 
the appraised value of residence homesteads of any married or unmarried persons, including 
those living alone, who were sixty-five (65) years of age or older on January 1, 2005, shall be 
exempt from ad valorem taxes. 
 

Section 7. This ordinance is enacted in order to authorize the collection of ad 
valorem taxes for the year 2021 and shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 

TEXAS, this 20th day of September, 2021. 
 
 
 
   
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 
 

514



Rockwall  
 Central Appraisal District 

 

 

841 Justin Road           Metro: 972-771-2034 

Rockwall, TX 75087              Toll Free: 1-877-438-5304  

www.rockwallcad.com              Fax: 972-771-6871  

September 7, 2021 

 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

MARY SMITH 

385 S GOLIAD 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 Texas Property Tax Code Sec. 6.03(a): The Appraisal District is governed by a board of directors.  

Five directors are appointed by the taxing units that participate in the district as provided by this section 

. . . To be eligible to serve on the board of directors, an individual . . . must be a resident of the district 

and must have resided in the district for at least two years immediately preceding the date the 

individual takes office. 

 

 Texas Property Tax Code Sec. 6.03(d): The voting entitlement of a taxing unit that is entitled to 

vote for directors is determined by dividing the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the 

district by the taxing unit for the preceding tax year by the sum of the total dollar amount of property 

taxes imposed in the district for that year by each taxing unit that is entitled to vote, by multiplying the 

quotient by 1,000, and by rounding the product to the nearest whole number.  That number is 

multiplied by the number of directorships to be filled. 

 

 Texas Property Tax Code Sec. 6.03(g): Each taxing unit . . . that is entitled to vote may nominate 

by resolution adopted by its governing body one candidate for each position to be filled on the board of 

directors.  The presiding officer of the governing body of the unit shall submit the names of the unit’s 

nominees to the chief appraiser before October 15. 

 

 Texas Property Tax Code Sec. 6.03(j): Before October 30, the chief appraiser shall prepare a 

ballot, listing the candidates whose names were timely submitted under Subsection (g) . . . 

alphabetically according to the first letter in each candidate’s surname, and shall deliver a copy of the 

ballot to the presiding officer of the governing body of each taking unit that is entitled to vote. 

 

 Attached is a list reflecting each taxing unit’s number of votes. 

 

 

Current Appointed Members are: 

Russell Summers 

Mark Moeller 

John Hohenshelt 

Lorne Liechty 

Vicki Wallace 

515

http://www.rockwallcad.com/


2022 – 2023 Rockwall Central Appraisal District 

Board of Directors Election 
 

 

 

Entity 
 

Number of Votes 

City of Dallas 0 

City of Fate 80 

City of Garland 0 

City of Heath 145 

City of McLendon-Chisholm 15 

City of Rockwall 455 

City of Rowlett 110 

City of Royse City 90 

City of Wylie 10 

Rockwall ISD 2755 

Royse City ISD 520 

Rockwall County 815 

  

516



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-12 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR SUBMISSION OF 
NAMES FOR BOARD MEMBER NOMINATIONS TO THE 
ROCKWALL CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT (CAD) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 2022-2023; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Texas Property Code Sec. 6.03 (a) provides that a board of directors 

governs the central appraisal district (CAD); and 
 

WHEREAS, state law requires board of director appointments to the Rockwall 
CAD Board every odd numbered year to take office in even numbered years; and 

 
 WHEREAS, eligible taxing units participate in the appointment process by 

nominating up to five candidates for service consideration and submitting those names to 
the chief appraiser by October 15; and 

 
WHEREAS, the chief appraiser will then prepare a ballot of all nominees and 

deliver it to the presiding officer of the governing body of each of the taxing units for voting 
by October 30; and 

WHEREAS, a taxing unit’s entitlement is determined by dividing the total dollar 
amount of property taxes imposed in the district by the taxing unit for the preceding tax 
year by the sum of the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district for that 
year by each taking unit entitled to vote, by multiplying the quotient by 1,000 and rounded 
to the nearest whole number; and 

WHEREAS, according to the chart contained within the letter dated September 7, 
2021 and mailed to the City of Rockwall by the appraisal district, the City of Rockwall will 
have 455 votes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  the Rockwall City Council, as a result of the Executive Session held at 
its regular city council meeting on the 20th day of September, 2021 hereby nominates and 
instructs the City Manager to send for submission to the CAD the following individuals: 
 

1. _______________ 
 

2. _______________ 
 

3. _______________ 
 

517



4. _______________ 
 

5. _______________ 
 

Section 2.  this Resolution shall become effective from and after its adoption and it is 
so resolved. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS THE 20th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021. 
 
 
 
  
ATTEST:        Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 
 
Kristy Cole, City Secretary 

518


	09/20/21 Regular CC Mtg
	 "Happy 25th Anniversary, Rockwall School of Music!" Day
	 Proclamation (RSM)

	 Consider approval of the minutes from the September 7, 2021 regular city council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	 09/07 CC Mtg Minutes

	 Consider authorizing a repair to Ladder Truck 2 in the amount not to exceed $45,000 to Metro Fire Apparatus Specialists to be funded out of the General Fund, Fire Operations Vehicle Repair Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider approval of a lease agreement with JBC Land and Cattle Company, LLC for office space in the Rockwall Technology Park, authorizing the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Rockwall, and take any action necessary.
	 Contract

	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an annual interlocal agreement with Rockwall County related to fire protection services, and take any action necessary. 
	 Memo

	 Consider awarding a bid to Grass Kisser and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for Neighborhood Improvement Services forced mowing in the amount of $33,000 to be funded out of the General Fund NIS Code Enforcement Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider awarding bids to Caldwell Country Chevrolet, Rockdale Country Ford and Pursuit Safety, authorizing the City Manager to execute Purchase Orders for six new Police Pursuit SUV's and aftermarket vehicle equipment in the amount of $382,890 to be funded out of the General Fund Police Patrol Budget and take any action necessary.
	 Z2021-032 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Sam Moore of Main & Main on behalf of Jason Claunch of 7.1 Ridge LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with a Drive-Through or Drive-In for the purpose of constructing a restaurant (i.e. Dutch Bros. Coffee) on a 0.57-acre portion of a larger 8.583-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Sky Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally located southeast of the intersection of Ridge Road [FM-740] and W. Yellow Jacket Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Memorandum

	 Z2021-033 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB Companies on behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change amending Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) [Ordinance No. 01-26] to allow a Mixed-Use Development (i.e. Apartments, Retail/Restaurant, and Office land uses) on a 12.1148-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Survey
	 Concept Plan
	 Conceptual Building Elevations
	 Scenic District (Comprehensive Plan)
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2021-034 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Maxwell Fisher of Masterplan on behalf of Saro Partners, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District for a 5.07-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Airport Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Memorandum

	 Z2021-035 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert LaCroix and Brian Berry of BNSBS, L. P. on behalf of Bradley Gideon for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Neighborhood Services (NS) District for a 2.751-acre identified as Tract 1-04 of the S. R. Barnes Survey, Abstract No. 13, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, located at the southeast corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Quail Run Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Property Owner Notifications (1)
	 Property Owner Notifications (2)
	 Property Owner Notifications (3)
	 Public Notice
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Concept Plan
	 Conceptual Building Elevations
	 Northeast Residential District (Comprehensive Plan)
	 Neighborhood Services (NS) District Land Uses
	 Residential Office (RO) District Land Uses
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2021-037 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by James Best for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for an accessory building on a 2.60-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, Best Estate Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 54 Shadydale Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Neighborhood Notification Email
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Draft Ordinance

	 A2021-005 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Pat Atkins on behalf of Betty Thompson for the approval of an ordinance for the annexation of 6.70-acre tract of land identified as Tract 1-1 of the P. B. Harrison Survey, Abstract No. 97, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall's Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), contiguous to the existing corporate limits of the City of Rockwall, addressed as 911 E. FM-552, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Memorandum
	 Location Map
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Legal Description
	 Survey
	 Municipal Services Agreement
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2021-036 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Adam Shiffer of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Gordon C. Fogg for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change to amend Planned Development District 91 (PD-91) [Ordinance No. 21-36] to incorporate a 20.00-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 22-04 & 22-05 of the W. M. Dalton Survey, Abstract No. 72, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 505 Clem Road, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Memorandum

	 Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) budget for fiscal year 2022 and amended budget for fiscal year 2021 and take any action necessary.
	 cover memo
	 Board Memo
	 Annual Workplan
	 FY2021 List of Accomplishments
	 Budget worksheets

	 Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Technology Park Association budget for fiscal year 2022 and amended budget for fiscal year 2021, and take any action necessary
	 cover memo
	 Board Memo
	 Budget worksheets

	 Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending the budget for fiscal year 2021, and take any action necessary.
	 Staff memo
	 Amending Ordinance

	 Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance adopting the proposed budget for fiscal year 2022, and take any action necessary.
	 Budget memo
	 Budget Adoption Ordinance
	 Budget worksheets

	 Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance levying ad valorem taxes for the tax year 2021, and take any action necessary.
	 Tax Rate Memo
	 Tax Rate Ordinance

	 Discuss and consider approval of a resolution providing for the submission of names to the Rockwall Central Appraisal District (CAD) for nominations to the Board of Directors, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo
	 RCAD Resolution (Board Member Nominations)




